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9{ammorúon ßoar{ of ftrucøtíon
566 Old Forks Road + PO Box 308

Hammonton, NJ 08037
Phone 609-567-7000 * Fax 609-561-4420

Website: www. hammontonps.org

Dr. C. DAN BLACHFORD
S u pe ri nte ndenf of Schoo/s

November I0,20II

Honorable President and
Members ofthe Board of Education
Town of Hammonton School District
Atlantic County, New Jersey

Dear Board Members:

The comprehensive annual financial report of the Town of Hammonton School District (Disfiict) for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the dat¿ and
completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of the
Board of Education (Board). To the best of our knowledge and beliet the data presented in this report is
accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial
position and results of operations of the various fi¡nds and account groups of the District. All disclosures
necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the Districfs financial activities have been
included.

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections: introductory, financial, statistical
and single audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the Districfs organizational
chart and a list of principal ofFrcials. The financial section includes the basic financial statements and
schedules, management's discussion and analysis, as well as the auditor's report thereon. The statistical
section includes selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year
basis. The District is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformþ with the provisions of the
Single Audit Act of 1996 and the US. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of
States, L,ocal Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and the New Jersey OMB Circular 04-04,
Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid Paymenfs. Information
related to this single audit, including the auditoCs report on the internal control stuucture and compliance
with applicable laws and regulations and findings and recommendations, are included in the single audit
section of this report.

1) REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES: The Town of Hammonton School District is an
independent reporting entity as set forth in Section 2100 of the GASB Codification of Governmental
Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards. All funds and account groups ofthe District are included
in this report. The Town of Hammonton Board of Education and all its schools constitute the District's
reporting entþ.

BARBARA S. PRETTYMAN
B u s i n e ss Ad m i n i st rato r/B o a rd S ecreta ¡y



The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels Pre-K through
twelve. These include regular as well as special education for handicapped children. The District
completed the 2010-2011 fiscal year with an average daily enrollment of 3,521 students, which is 101

students above the previous year's average daily enrollment. The following details the changes in the
student enrollment of the District over the last ten years.

Fiscal
Year

20t0-2011
2009-20r0
2008-2009
2007-2008
2006-2007
2005-2006
2004-2005
2003-2004
2002-2003
200r-2002

Average Daily
Enrollment

3,521
3,420
3,362
3,265
3,294
3,367
3,301
3,241
3,113
2,49r

Percent
Change

2.95
1.72
2.97
(.88)
(2.r7)
1.99
1.85
4.lL

24.97
16.46

2I ECONOMIC CONDITION AI\D OUTLOOK:

The status of funding for our school district continues to be exceptionally difficult. For example, the New
Jersey Department of Education has communicated that the state underfunds us by 56,234,396.

During the2009-2010 school year approximately $1,000,000 of our reserve funds were taken back by the
State and the State reduced our funding by approximately 52,000,000. This reduction was not logical
considering that we are at the bottom of spending per student in our group (K to 12 schools with over
3500 students).

In addition to the State's lack of logic in funding school districts, the climate in NJ is very pessimistic.
Much of the pessimism is generated by the State government. Fortunately, the Hammonton Board was
able to recommend a no tax increase budget which the voters approved,

Hammonton Public Schools will continue to use every possible technique to provide the students with an
efiFrcient education, as well as, a thorough education. For the 201L-2012 school year we are an approved
NJ Department of Education Choice School for grades 9-10. This will bring in additional funding of
about $250,000 to our high school.

3) MAJOR INITIATIVES:

There are several new initiatives for 20ll-2012 that arc designed to improve student academic
accomplishments. Hammonton will continue with staff development and monitoring in the areas of
differentiated instruction, Sheltered Instruction Observation Protocol (SIOP), Collins Writing, and Kid
Writing. This addresses all the CCCS. Other initiatives include the following:

. The faculties at the Warren E. Sooy School, Hammonton Middle School, and Hammonton
High School have fully implemented a positive behavior approach that inoludes the
Renaissance Program. This program has assisted the students in becoming more successful
and recognizing their accomplishments. At the Early Childhood Education Center the facuþ
uses Be a Top Apple to reinforce positive behavior and promote respect.



The Hammonton School District's initiative of Professional Learning Communities has
gained state wide recognition and we have expanded it for 20ll-2012. Our decision making
flow chart starts with initiatives and ideas from classroom teachers. Department chairs in the
schools focus on overseeing the curriculum/content areas in every grade and department
(CCCS: 3.1,3.3,3.4).

For the 20lI-2012 school year \¡/e will be participating in the Rowan University
Math/Science Initiative in conjunction with the facuþ from our two sending districts
(Folsom and Waterford). Our teachers in these area will receive taining that will increase
their knowledge of the content of their discipline and their knowledge of instructional
methodolory. This addresses all the CCCS in math and science.

rWe will continue to use formative and summative assessments to more clearly focus
instruction on the areas of student needs. All our benchmarks have been improved and placed
on our student dat¿ information system so our teachers can analyze class and individual
sfudent areas of performance.

In 2010-2011 we implemented an extensive Writers Workshop program and for the 2011-
2012 school year we have expanded it to grades K-12. All teachers have the students write in
a mutually supportive community. The staff has received intensive in-service training. The
program is in every grade level pre k to 12. (2010 English Language Arts Standard Writing)

We have a mentoring program for students in 9th grade and an Academio Support Advisor
for promoting peer-tutoring.

Improving student academic accomplishments is partially dependent on improving the
structure and delivery of instruction. We have new emphasis in this area with our Virtual
High School. The students are able to take additional electives in about 130 areas. We are
also increasing our Dual Credit program. For the 20ll-2012 school year we have added CP
Italian 3, CP Italian 4, CP Spanish 3, CP Spanish 4, CP German 3, and CP German 4.

We started Walk-Throughs last year and will expand them this year. All administrators
conduct walk-throughs to improve instruction and we graph the number of walk-throughs
each administrator completes.

The phonics program and sight words initiative for pre K to grade 2 has been greatly
improved for the 20II-20L2 school year. All teachers have received extensive in-service and
are working as teams to develop their lessons (CCCS: 3.1,3.2, 3.3,3.4 and 2010 English
Language Arts Standard Reading ).

We will increase the integration oftechnology into the curriculum. (CCCS: 8.1, 8.2)

Teachers, upon request, will be allowed to attend one out-of-district professional
development session that will enhance classroom instruction. PDO: 1-8)

The Hammonton Middle School faculty has implemented an exceptional block schedule. This
will give the students more background in algebra I and geometry Q0l0 Mathematics
Standard Cluster of Number and Quantþ, Algebra, functions, Modeling, Geometry, and
StatisticsÆrobabilþ). Additionally every other subject area will be able to go into more
depth in their subjects (NJ Common Core Standards in Language Arts Literacy, Science,
Health and PE).

We continue to revise all our curricula to be consistent with NJ Department of Education
guidelines and the "IJnderstanding by Design" initiative.



o The facuþ at the Warren E. Sooy School has implemented a modified block schedule for
grades 4 and 5 that will enable them to more effectively address the NJ Common Core
Standards in Mathematics and Language Arts Literacy.

o fu the 201 l-2012 school year we added more physics concepts to our 9ft grade science
program. We are considering implementing a 9n' Grade Physics class in the 2012-2013
school year. In the 201I-2012 school year we are designing a new 12ú gade math course
titled Mathematical Analysis, Application and Connections for implementation in 2012-2013.

4) INTERNAL ACCOIINTING CONTROLS: Management of the Dishict is responsible for
establishing and maintaining intemal controls designed to ensure that the assets of the District are
protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accountin g data are compiled to allow for
the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP). The internal control skucture is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, asswance that
these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that (1) the cost of a control
should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires
estimates and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal awards and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for ensuring
that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and
regulations related to those programs. This internal control structure is also subject to periodic evaluation
by the Dishict management.

As part of the District's single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy of the
internal control structure, including that portion related to federal awards and state financial assistance
programs, as well as to determine that the District has complied with applicable laws and regulations.

5l BUDGETARY CONTROLS: In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains
budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal
provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the voters of the municipality.
Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund, the special revenue fund, and the debt
service fund. Project-length budgets are approved for the capital improvements accounted for in the
capital projects fund. The final budget amount as amended for the fiscal year is reflected in the financial
section.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a line item
basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as re-appropriations of fund
balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be re-appropriated are reported as reservations of fund
balance at June 30, 201 1.

6l ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AI\ID REPORTS: The Districfs accounting records reflect generally
accepted accounting principles, as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB). The accounting system of the District is organized on the basis of funds and account groups.
These firnds and account groups are explained in "Notes to ttre Financial Statements", Note l.

Ð DEBT ADMINISTRATION: At June 30,2011, the District's outstanding debt issues included
$32,544,000 of general obligation bonds. The proceeds of the bond issues were used to provide firnds for
the construction of the High School and Early Childhood Center and also for capital improvements to the
Middle School and W.E.S. Elementary School. Capital leases outstanding at June 30,2011 amounted to
$353,143. These leases were originally issued for the purchase of various equipment and school buses.



& CASTI MANAGEMENT: The investunent policy of the District is guided in large part by state statute
as detailed in "Notes to the Financial Statements," Note I and 2. The District has adopted a cash
management plan that requires it to deposit public funds in public depositories protected from loss under
the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPA"). GUDPA was enacted in
1970 to protect Governmental Units from a loss of ftinds on deposit with a failed banking institution in
New Jersey. The law requires governmental units to deposit public funds only in public depositories
located in New Jersey, where the funds are secured in accordance with the Act.

9ì RISK MANAGEMENT: The Hammonton Board of Education is a member of the New Jersey School
Boards Association Insurance Group (NJSBAIG). The program provides school districts with a long-
term alternative to the conventional insurance market as a means of stabilizing the otherwise cyclical
nature of insurance expenditures. The Fund provides its member disfuicts with the following coverages:

L Property

2. Equipment Breakdown;

3. General and Automobile Liabilþ;

4. Worker's Compensation;

5. School Leaders Errors and Omissions Liability;

10) OTIIER INFORMATION:

A) Independent AudÍt - State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public
accountants or registered municipal accountants. The accounting frrm of Nightlinger, Colavit¿ & Volpa,
PA was selected by the Board. ln addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit
also was designed to meet the requirements of the Single Audit Act of 1996 and the related OMB Circular
A-133 and New Jersey OMB Circular 04-04. The auditols report on the basic financial statements and
combining and individual fund statements and schedules is included in the financial section of this report.
The auditods reports related specifically to the single audit are included in the single audit section of this
report.

11I ACKNOWLEDGMENTS:

We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the Town of Hammonton Board of
Education for their concern in providing fiscal accountabilþ to the citizens and taxpayers of the school
district and thereby contributing their full support to the development and maintenance of our financial
operation. The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the efficient and
dedicated services of our financial and accounting staff.

ír¡,/l---
I Barbara S. Prettyman

School Business Administrator/
Board Secretary

Respectfully submitted,
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A Pr oþssío n øI As so c istian

Certifie d Pub Iíe A c co untønts
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Williamstown, Nl 08094

(8s6) 629-3111
Fax (856) 728-2245

Novernber 10, 2011

INDEPENDENT AT]DITOR'S REPORT

Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Education
Town of Hammonton School District
County of Atlantic, New Jersey

Mesdames and Gentlemen:

We have audited the accompanylng financial statements of the govemmental activities, the business-t¡pe
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Board of Education of the
Town of Hammonton School District in the County of Atlantic, State of New Jersey, as of and for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as

listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Town of
Hammonton Board of Education's management. Our responsibility,is to express opinions on these

financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; and the standards applicable to financial audits contained inGovernment Audítíns Sta.ndørds,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and audit requirements as prescribed by the
Division of Finance and Regulatory Compliance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are ftee of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and.disclosures in the financial st¿tements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by managernent, as well as

evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly,in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Hammonton Board of Education in the County
of Atlantic, State of New Jersey, as of June 30,2011, and the respective changes in financial position and
cash flows, thereof where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Audítíns Standard$ we have also issued a reporf dated November 10, 2011

on our consideration of the Town of Hammonton Board of Education's intemal control over financial reporfing
and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and
other matters. The pu{pose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Govgrqments Audítíne Standard and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

9



The Management Discussion and Analysis and Budgetary Comparison Information on pages 1l through 19 and
53 through 65 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information
required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements
in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures, to
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods ofpreparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Town of Hammonton Board of Education's, basic financial statements. The accompanylng
introductory section and other supplementary information such as the combining and individual fund financial
statements, long-term debt schedules and statistical tables are presented for purposes of additional analysis and
are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund financial
statements and long-term debt schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedure applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, in our opinior¡ are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section and statistical tables have not been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we
express no opinion on them.

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are presented for
purposes of additional anaþis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits
of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit organizations; and New Jersey OMB's Circular 04-04, Single
Audit Policy For Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid, and are not a required part of the
basic financial st¿tements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and, in our opinior¡ is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
basic financial statements taken as a whole.

The information included in this comprehensive annual financial report designated as the Statistical Section in
the table of contents, is presented for the pu{pose of additional anaþis. This information has not been audited
by us and accordingl¡ we express no opinion on this information.

Respectfully submitted,

NTGTTTLTNGER, COLAVITA & VOLPA, P.A.

,'%Ø
Raymond Colavita, C.P.A., R.M.A.
Licensed Public School Accountant
No.915

A ProfessÍonal Assocì ation

10
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Required S upplementary fnformation
Part f



MANAGEMENT' S DISCUSSION AI\D ANALYSß

This section of the Town of Hammonton School District ("District") annual financial
report presents our discussion and analysis of the District's financial performance during
the fiscal year that ended on June 30, 2011, Please read it in conjunction with the
transmittal letter at the front of this report and the District's financial statement.

X'INANCIAL TTIGHLIGHTS

o The net assets of the District increased approximately $1,560,000 as a result of
unspent appropriations ofßet by a decrease in state aid.

o The State of New Jersey reimbursed the District$2,728,369 during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 201 1 for the employer's share of social security contributions and
pension contributions for TPAF members as calculated on their base salaries.
This amount, which is not budgeted, is included as both a revenue and
expenditure in the financial statements.

o As indicated by New Jersey State Statutes, the unreserved fund balance of the
general fund is limited to 2Yo of the total general fund expenditures. Any excess
is required to be designated as Reserved Fund Balance - Excess Surplus and
included in the subsequent years' budget as budgeted fund balance. As of June
30,2011 the District had $0 excess surplus.

o During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the District's revenue realized was
approximately $1.5 million more than total expenses. Depreciation on capital
assets accounted for $1.2 million of these expenses. There was an increase in the
tæ< levy of $119,000, increase in miscellaneous revenue of $292,000, decrease in
transportation fees of $159,000 and decrease in state aid of $618,000. Expenses
decreased by $322,000. During the prior fiscal year, revenues realized was
approximately $10.3 million less than total expenses for bond proceeds which
were recognizedin the prior year.

o In the District's business-type activities, net assets decreased approximately
$12,000 in the Latchkey Program and net assets increased approximately $90,000
in the Food Service Fund. This increase in the Food Service Fund is a result of an
increase in revenues and efficient expenditures.

OVER\rIEW OF' THE F'INANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of four parts - management's discussion and analysis (this
section), the basic financial statements, required supplementary information, and an
optional section that presents combining statements for special revenue, proprietary, and
Jiduciary funds. The basic financial statements include two kinds of statements that
present different views of the District.

o The first two statements are government-wide financiøl statements that provide
both long-term and short-term information about the District's overall financial
status.
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o The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual
parts of the District's govemment, reporting on the District's operations lnmore
detail than the government-wide statements.

like instruction were financed in the short term as well as what remains for
future spending.

information about the activities the District operates like businesses, such
as the food service area and latchkey pro$am.

relationships - like the unemployment trust fund - in which the District
acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of others, to whom the
resources in question belong.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the
financial st¿tements and provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a
section of required supplementary information that further explains and supports the
information in the financial statements. Figure A-1 shows how the required parts of this
annual report are arranged and relate to one another.

Figure A-1 summarizes the major features of the Distict's financial statements, including
the portion of the District's govemment they cover and the types of information they
conJain. The remainder of this overview section of management's discussion and
analysis explains the structure and contents of each of the statements.
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Figure A-l Major tr'eatures of Town of Hammonton Board of Educationns
Government-wide and X'und F inancial Statements

Fund Statements
Govemment wide Governmental Proprietary Fiduciary

Statements Funds Funds Funds
Scope Entire Distict

(except fiduciary
tunds)

The activities of
the District that

are not
proprietary or
fiduciary, such
as food service

and student
activities

Activities the
District

operates similar
to private

businesses;
food service
and latchkey

lnstances in which
the District is the

trustee or agent for
someone else's

resources, such as

payroll agency and
student activities.

Required
financial

statements

Statement of net
assets

Statement of
activities

Balance sheet

Statement of
revenues,

expenditures,
and changes in
ftmd balances

Statement of
net assets

Statement of
revenues,

expenses, and
changes in net

¿NSetS

Statement of
cash flows

Statement of
fiduciary net assets

Statement of
changes in

fiduciary net assets

Accounting
basis and

measurement
focus

Accrual
accounting and

economic
resources focus

Modified
accrual

accoturting and
current

financial
resources focus

Accrual
accounting and

economic
resources focus

Accrual
accounting and

economic
resources focus

Type of
asselliability
information

All assets and
liabilities, both
financial and

capital, and short-
term and long-

term.

Only assets
expected to be

used up and
liabilities that

come due
during the year

or soon
thereafter; no
capital assets

included.

All assets and
liabilities, both
financial and
capital, and

short-term and
long-term.

All assets and
liabilities, both
short-term and

long-term.
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Type of
inflow/outflow

information

All revenues and
expenses during

the year,
regardless of when
cash is received or

paid.

Revenues for
which cash is

received during
or soon after the
end of the year;

expenditures
when goods or
services have
been received

and payment is
due during the
year or soon

thereafter

All revenues
and expenses,
regardless of
when cash is
received or

paid.

All revenues and
expenses during

year, regardless of
when cash is

received or paid.

Government-wide Statements

The government-wide statements report information about the District as a whole using
accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of
net assets includes all of the government's assets and liabilities. All of the current year's
revenues and expenses are accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of when
cash is received or paid.

The two government-wide statements report the District's net assets and how they have
changed. Net assets - the difference between the District's assets and liabilities - is one
way to measure the District's financial health, or position.

o Over time, increases or decreases in the District's net assets are an indicator of
whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

o To ¿ßsess the overall health of the Disüict you need to consider additional non-
financial factors such as changes in the Town's property tax base and the
condition of the District's facilities.

The government-wide financial statements of the District are divided into two categories:

o Governmental actívities - most of the District's basic services are included here,
such as instruction, transportation, administration, and plant operations. Property
taxes and state and federal grants finance most of these activities.

o Business-type activities - the District charges fees to customers to help it cover
the costs of certain services it provides. The Disfict's food service and latchkey
programs are included here.
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Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the Dishict's most
significant "funds - not the District as a whole. Funds are accounting devices that the
District uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending for particular
purposes.

The District has three kinds of fi¡nds:

o Governmental funds - Most of the District's basic services are included in
goveÍimental funds, which focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets that
can readily be converted to cash flow in and out and (2) the balances left at year-
end that are available for spending. Consequently, the governmental funds
statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps you determine whether
there are more or few.er financial resources that can be spent in the near future to
finance the District's programs. Because this information does not encompass the
additional long-term focus of the government.wide statements, we provide
additional information at the bottom of the governmental frrnds statement that
explains the relationship (or differences) between them.

o Proprietary funds - Services for which the District charges customers a fee are
generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds, like the government-
wide statements, provide both long- and short-term financial information. In fact,
the District's enterprisefunds (one type of proprietary fund) are the same as its
business-type activities, but provide more detail and additional information, such
as cash flows.

o Fiduciary fundt - The District is the trustee, or /ìducìary, for its employees'
unemployment compensation plan. It is also responsible for other assets that -
because of a trust arrangement - can be used only for the trust beneficiaries. The
District is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used
for their intended purposes. All of the District's fiduciary activities are reported
in separate statement of fiduciary net assets and a statement of changes in
fiduciary net assets. V/e exclude these activities from the District's government-
wide financial statements because the District cannot use these assets to finance
its operations.

F'INANCIAL ANALYSIS OF'THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE

Net assets. The District's governmental activities net assets decreased between fiscal
years 2010 and 2011 as a result of increased revenue and unspent appropriations. The
business-type activities net assets increased due to an increase in revenue in the current
year.
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Governmental Activities
20tt 2010

9,861,616 17,406,695
40,339,330 4A,721,889

Business-tvne Activities Total
20tt 2010 20lt 2010

787,483 675,872 10,649,099 18,082,567
147,804 168,986 40,487,134 40,890,875

s0.200.946 58.128.584 93s.287 844.858 51.136.233 s8.973,442

34,158,738 35,426,504
3,588,346 11,730.635

21,326
55,659

15,919 34,180,064 35,442,423
48,809 3,644,00s 11,779,444

Current and other
assets

Capital assets

Total assets

Long-term
liabilities
Other liabilities

Total liabilities
Net assets

Invested in capital
assets

Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net assets

37,747,084 47,157,139 76,985 64,728 37,824,069 47,221,867

8,417,262 8,040,999
8,283,302 7,393,396

(4.246.702\ (4.462.9s0)

147,804 168,986 8,565,066 8,209,985
8,283,302 7,393,396

710.498 6tt,t44 (3,536,204) (3,851,806)

12,453,862 10,971,445 858,302 780,130 13,312,t64 11,751,575

Net assets of the District increased due to increased revenue and unspent appropriations.
Included in long-term liabilities are amounts due to be paid on capital leases and compensated
absences.

As required by New Jersey Statutes, the unrestricted net assets of the District are not permitted to
exceed 2Yo of total general fund expendiqures, after reductions for On-behalf TPAF pension and
social security and assets acquired under capital leases. Any excess must be appropriated as

budgeted fund balance in the subsequent years' budget. As of June 30,2011 the District had $0
excess surplus.

Changes in net assets. The total general fund revenue of the District decreased approximately
$300,000. There was an increase in the local tax levy of approximately $119,000, increase in
tuition revenue of approximately $69,000 and increase in miscellaneous revenue of
approximately 5292,000 offset by a decrease in state aid, federal aid and grants of approximately
$61 8,000 and decrease in transportation fees of $ I 59,000. This local tax levy is 37 .25% of total
revenues. The municipality levies this tax on properties located in the Town and remits the
collections on a monthly basis to the Distict.

Approximately 25.78%of the District's revenue comes from the State of New Jersey in the form
of non-restricted state aid. This aid is based on the District's enrollment as well as other factors
such as legislative funding of the CEIFA formula. The District expenses are primarily related to
instruction, administration, and plant operations.

Property taxes
Unrestricted Federal and State aid
Tuition

20tt 20tt
Amount Percentage
17,330,874 37.25%
tt,993,92l 25.780/o

11,004,932 23.650/o

2010 2010
Amount Percentage

17,2t1,528 36.75%
12,612,680 26.93%
10,935,928 23.35%

268,006 57%
5,484,198 ll.7l%

611,773 t.3r% 319,s44 .68%
46,524,528 100.00% 46,831,884 100.00%

Transportation fees from other LEA's 108,608 .23o/o

Operating grants and contributions 5,474,420 11.77%
Other
Totals
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Governmental Activities

The following schedule summarizes the governmental and business-type activities of the
District during the 2011 and 2010 fiscal yerirs.

Governmental
Activities

20ll 2010

Business-type
Activities

20tL 2010

848,817 861,663
4,015,534 633,990 585,363
1,468,664 15,350 26,843

Revenues
Program revenue

Charges for services
Federal grants
State grants/entitlements

General revenues
Property taxes
Tuition

2,119,677
3,355,743

Total
20lt

848,817
2,752,667
3,371,093

17,330,874
11,004,932

108,608
11,993,921

621,679

2010

861,663
4,600,997
1,495,507

17,211,529
10,935,929

268,006
12,612,680

326.165

Transportation Fees from other LEA's 108,608 268,006

17,330,874 17,211,528
11,004,932 10,935,928

11,993,921 12,612,680
61t,773 3t9.544 9.906 6.621

46,524,528 46,831,884 1,508,063 t,480,490 48,032,591 48,312,374

State aid entitlements
Other
Total revenues

Expenses
Instruction:

Regular
Special Education
Other Instruction

Support services:
Tuition
Student & instruction related services
School admin services
General admin services
Plant operations/maintenance
Pupil transportation
Business and other support services

lnterest on long term debt
Business-type activities

Total expenses
Excess(deficiency) before special item
Increase (decrease) in net assets
Net assets - beginning
Net assets - ending

21,995,805
3,776,332
1,126,267

820,226
5,065,316
2,652,669

872,481
4,639,128
1,919,705

870,618
1,303,565

1,429,891 1,350,979 1,429,891

21,995,805
3,776,332
1,126,267

820,226
5,065,316
2,652,668

872,481
4,639,r29
l,glg,705

870,618
1,303,565

21,833,680
3,695,329
l,33g,5gl

62?,344
5,467,949
2,g2g,ll5

9'.10,211
4,4lg,l2g
1,939,913
l,l75,ggg

978,539

21,833,690
3,695,329
1,338,591

627,344
5,467,949
2,928,115

970,211
4,419,129
1,939,913
1,175,899

978,539
1,350,979

45,042,111 45,364,497 t,429,891 1,350,979 46,472,002 46,715,476
1,482,417 1,467,387 78,772 129,511 1,560,589 1,596,898
1,482,417 (10,332,613) 7g;172 t29,5n 1,560,589 (10,203,102)

10,971,445 21,304,058 780,130 650,619 t1,751,575 21,954,677
n,751,57512,453,862 t0,971,445 858,302 780,130 13,312,164

Business-type Activities

Operating revenues of the District's business-type activities increased approximately
$27,000 over the previous year and expenses increased by approximately $79,000.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF' TIIE DISTRICT'S F'TJNDS

As of the year end, the governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $12.9
million which is approximately $2 million higher than the beginning of the year.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

As further explained in the Footnotes to the Financial Statements, arurual appropriated
budgets are prepared in the spring ofeach year for the general, special revenue and debt
service frrnds. The budgets are submitted to the County office and, as a Type II School
District, are approved by the voters annually. Transfers of appropriations that do not
exceed lïYo on a cumulative basis may be made by Board resolution at arry time during
the fiscal year. Transfers of appropriations that exceed l}Yo on a cumulative basis must
be approved by the Commissioner of Education. The District is permitted to encumber
funds throughout the year for purchases ordered but not yet received. Any open
encumbrances as of June 30m carry over to the next fiscal year and are added to the
appropriation reflected in the certified budget.

After adjusting total revenue reported on Exhibit C-l for the Reimbursed TPAF Social
Security Contribution and on-behalf TPAF Pension Contributions, which are not
budgeted, the District's actual revenue exceeded the budget by approximately $101,000.
Again, after adjusting for the Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contribution and on-
behalf TPAF Pension Contributions, actual expenditures \¡/ere below the budgeted
appropriations by approximately $1.2 million. Audit exhibit C-l does not include cunent
year depreciation expense.

CAPITAL ASSET AI\D DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

At the end of 2011, the District had invested $40.4 million in a broad range of capital
assets, including land, buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment.

Land
Construction in progress
Site improvements
Bldgs and Bldg impr.
Machinery & equipment
Total

Detailed information
financial statements.

Governmental
Activities

20tt 2010
324,908 324,908

12,34t,919 11,949,549
1,090,279 1,228,930

25,120,248 25,939,964

Business-type
Activities Total

20tt 2010 20tt 2010
324,908 324,908

12,341,919 11,949,549
1,090,279 1,228,930

25,120,248 25,939,964
1,461,976 1.278,538 147.804 168.986 1.609.780 t.447.s24

40,339,330 40,721,889 147,804 168,986 40,487,134 40,890,875

about the District's capital assets is presented in Note 9 to the
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Long-term Debt

All bonds are authorized in accordance with State law by the voters of the District. At
the end of the current fiscal year, the District had total bonded debt outstanding of
532,544,000 and obligations under capital leases of $353,143.

Balance
6/30/10

Issued/
Refunded

Retired/
Adiusted

Balance
6130ltt

Governmental Activities
Bonds payable
Obligations under

Capital leases
Compensated absences

Payable

$33,314,000

34t,965

2,701,137

151,700

172,572

______3u42_

32,544,000

. 353,143

2,973,709
35,7',10,952

770,000

140,522

Total Governmental Activities 36,35'1,102

Business-type Activities
Compensated absences

Payable $28,094
Total Business-type Activities 28,094

9r0,522

6,768 21,326
6,738 21,326

More detailed information about the District's long-term debt is presented in Note l0 to
the financial statements.

The legal debt limit for the District is $60,462,261, of which $27,918,261 or 46Yois
available to be authorizedby voter approval.

ECONOMIC F'ACTORS A}[D NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

The student population in the Dishict has increased approximately 60Yo ove.r the past 10
years, resulting in a significant strain on the school district and the local taxpayers. The
2010-2011 state aid funding decreased approximately $.6 million. Based on this
economic factor, we are unable to predict what the future holds as far as future state aid
allocations.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to present users (residents, receiving districts, and
creditors) with a general overview of the Distict's finances and to demonstrate the
District's accountability. If you have questions about the report or need additional
financial information, contact the District's business administrator at 566 Old Forks
Road, Hammonton, New Jersey 08037.
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DISTRICT . WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display information about the
District. These statements include the financial activities of the overall District, except for
fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-counting of interna
activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and
business-type activities of the District.



TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 201 I

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activitles

Exhibit A-l

Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Authorized bond proceeds receívable
Receivables, net
Defened bond issue costs - net
Due from other govemments
lnventory
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land
Construction in Progress

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
TotalAssets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued ínterest payable
lntergovemmental payable
Deferred revenue
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year
Due beyond one year

Total liabilities

NETASSETS
lnvested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:

Capitalprojects
Debt service
Other Purposes

Unrestricted
Total net assets

$7,138,535
1,349,877

9,655
214,237

1,149,312

324,908
12,341,919

$733,897

2,003

41,810
9,773

g7,872,432
1,349,877

11,658
214,237

1,191,122
9,773

324,908
12,341,919

(4,246,702\ 710,498 (3,536,204)
$12,453,862 $858,302 $13,312,164

27,672,503 147,804 27,820,307
$50,200,946 $935,287 $51,136,233

$1,044,948
582,763
29,460

319,061

'l ,612,114
34,158,738

$37,747,084

$8,417,262

1,543,422
168,285

6,571,595

$39,965

15,694

2'1,326
$76,985

$147,804

$1,084,913
582,763
29,460

334,755

'l ,612,114
34,180,064

$37,824,069

$8,565,066

1,543,422
169,295

6,571,595

See Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements
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Functions/Programs Expenses

Govemmenlal activities:
lnstruction:

Regular
Special education
Other instruction

Support services:
Tuition
Student & instruction related services
School administrative serv¡ces
General administrative services
Plant operations and maintenance
Pupil transportation
Business and other support services
Unallocated benefits

lnlerest on long-term debt

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Food Service
After School Program

Total business-type activities
Total primary government

N)
F

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 20ll

$16,666,072
2,907,161

871,266

lndirect
Expenses
Allocation

General revenues:
Taxes:

Property taxes, levied for general purposes, net
Taxes levied for debt service

Federal and State aid not restricled
Transportation fees from other LEAs
Tuition received
lnvestment Earnings
Miscellaneous lncome

Total general revenues, special items, adjustments, extraordinary items and transfers
Change ¡n Net Assets

Net Assels-beginning
Net Assets--ending

See Accompanying Noæs ø the Financial Statements

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Program Revgnues.. Changes ¡n NetAssets

596,687 223,s39 69,140
4,129,295 936,021 570,072
1,966,647 686,021 428,118
767,235 105,246 32,552

4,181,487 457,641 141,549
1,621,333 298,372 92,286
683,193 187,425 57,971

9,348,170 (9,348,170)
1,303,565

5,329,733 3,735,026
869171 268,834
255,001 78.872

Charges for Grants and Governmental
Services Contr¡but¡ons Activities

1,328,84'l
101,050

1,429,89'l
$46,472,002

('t8,260,779)
(3,507,4e8)
(1,047,395)

(751,086)
(4,495,2441
(2,224,5501

(83e,e2e)
(4,497,579)
(1,827,419)

(812,647)

(1,303,565)

Business-t¡rpe
Activities

Exhibit A-2

762,141 649,340

(18,260,779)
(3,507,498)
(1,047,395)

(751,086)
(4,49s,244)
(2,224,550)

(839,929)
(4,497,579)
(1,827,419)

(812,647)
0

(1,303,565)

82,640
(14,374\
68,266

$15,873,706
1,457,168

1 1,993,921
108,608

11,004,932
136,986
474,787

68.266 (39,499,425)

82,640
(14,374\
68,266

$12,453,862 858,302 13,312,164

9,906 41,060,014

9,906

15,873,706
1,457J68

1 1,993,921
108,608

11 ,004,932
146,892
474,787

780,130 11,751 ,575

78,172 1,560,589



FUN D FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The lndividual Fund statements and schedules present more detailed information for the
individual fund in a format that segregates information by fund.
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TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
June 30, 20ll

Exhibit B-1

Debt Total
Service Governmental
Fund Funds

General
Fund

Special
Revenue

Fund

Capital
Projects

Fund

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Capital reserve cash
lnterfund accounts receivable
Authorized bond proceeds receivable
Receivables. net
Receivables from other governments

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
lntertund payable
Due to other governments
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Fund Balances:
Committed:

Encumbrances
Restricted:

Legally restricted - designated for
subsequent yeafs expenditures

Capital Reserve designated
for subsequent yea/s expenditures

Tuition Reserve account designated
for subsequent yea/s expenditures

Capital Reserve
Tuition Reserve
Maintenance Reserve
Emergency Reserve

Unassigned:
General fund
Special revenue fund

Total Fund balances
Total liabilities and fund balances

379,814

614,625

500,000
3,827,801

500.000
820,759
308,410

(361,174)
(48,032)

6,590,235 (48,032)

__$IM,1Jg_ _t97Ég5-

82,247,775
4,442,426

335,606

9,655

2',t2,815

1,349,877

168.285 2,628,875
4,442,426

335,606
1,349,877

9,655
591,657 557,655 1149312

____J.92L119_ __lE?ÆE_ ___1,!9e992_ -_---109¿99- _--9.91-þ&L

921,454 19,270 1,044,948
268,372
29,460

319,061
1,661,84119.270 n

115,430 203,631
1,036,884 605,687

104,224
268,372
29,460

14,626

1,528,796

394,440

1,697,081

614,625

500,000
3,827,801

500,000
820,759
308,410

(361,174)
(48,032)

168.285

1,543,422 168,285 8,253,910
__1É02ëL __199¿95-

Amounts reported lor govemmental activities in the statement of
net assets (A-1 ) are difierent because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.

The cost associated with the issues of various bonds are expensed
in the govemmental funds in the year the bonds are issued, but
are capitalized in the Statement of Net Assets.

Accrued interest payments on long-term liabilities are not due and
payable in the current period and therefore are not reported
in the funds.

Long{erm liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and
payable in the cunent period and therefore are not reported
in the funds.

Net assets of governmental activities

40,339,330

214,237

(582,763)

(35,770,852)

$12.453.862

See Aocompanying Notes to the Financial Statements 22



TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, And Changes ln Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 201 I

Exhibit B-2

Debt Total
Service Governmental
Fund Funds

REVENUES

Local tax levy
Tuition charges
Transportation fees from other leas
lnterest earned on capital reserves
lnterest
Miscellaneous
Local sources
State sources
Federal sources

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Cunent:

Regular instruction
Special education instruction
Other instruction

Support services and undistributed costs:
Tuition
Student & instruction related services
General administrative services
School administrative services
Plant operations and maintenance
Pupil transportation
Business and other support services
Unallocated Benefits

Debt service:
Principal
lnterest and other charges

Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

oTHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)

Capital lease proceeds
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other f¡nancing sources and uses

Net change in fund balances
Fund balance-July 1

Fund balance-June 30

General
Fund

$r 5,873,706
11,004,932

108,608
38,259
78,290

474,787

14,307,389
119,205

42,005,176

13,912,660
2,775,736

832,708

562,886
3,707,202

751,321
1,646,984
3,143,460
1,576,219

654,854
9,299,799

1,001,766
39,865,595

2,139,581

151 ,700

(798,362)
(646,662)

1,492,919

Special Capital
Revenue Projects
Fund Fund

20,437

24,821
721,758

1,999,472

2,746,051

2,088,042

't,457,'168

295.696

20,437 1,752ß64

280,561

215,932

48,371

114.646
2,747,552

(1,501)

187,370
187,370

(166,933)

1,270,000
1,139,830

2¿09^85õ-

(656,966)

17,330,874
1 I,004,932

108,608
38,259
98,727

474,787
24,821

15,324,843
2,'t18,677

46,524,528

16,000,702
2,775,736

832,708

562,886
3,987,763

751,321
1 ,862,916
3,143,460
1,576,2't9

654,854
9,348,1 70

1,270,000
1 ,1 39,830
1,303,782

45,210,347

1,314,181

151,700
818,799

(818,799)
818,799

(20,437\
(20.437\ 818,799 151,700

(1,501) (1 87,370) 161,833 1,465,881
5,097,316 (46,531) 1,730,792 6,452 6,788.029

_$9É99A9_ ___148,032t __J"9!s,422 _l99¿!L ______Ê,293p19_

See Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements 23



Exhibit B-3

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,

and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activ¡t¡es

For the Year Ended June 30, 20ll

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds (from B-2) $1 ,465,881

Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the statement
of activities (,4-2) are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in govemmental funds as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation
expense. This is the amount by which depreciation exceeded capital outlays in the period.

Depreciation expense (1,217,5131
Capital outlays 834,954 (382,559)

Repayrnent of long term debt is an expenditure in the govemmental funds, but the repayment
reduces long{erm liabilities in the statement of net assets and is not reported ¡n the statement
of act¡vities 770,000

Ïhe issuance oflong-term debt (e.9., bonds, leases) provides cunent f¡nanc¡al resources to
govemmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current
financial resources of govemmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net
assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and
similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are defened and amortized in the
statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these differenees in the treatment of
long-term debt and related items. (151,700)

Repayment of capital leases is an expenditure in the govemmental funds, but the repayment
reduces long-term liabilitíes in the statement of net assets and is reported in the statement
of activities. 140,522

Payment of accrued interest on long term debt is an expenditure in the governmental funds,
but the pavment reduces the liability in the statement of net assets and is not reported in the
statement of activities. (163,735)

Bond issue costs are reported in the govemmental fund as expenditures in the year the
bonds are issued. However, on the statement of activities, the costs are amortized over the
life of the bonds. (23,420\

ln the statement of activities, certain operating expenses, e.g., compensated absences (vacations)
are measured by the amounts earned during the year. ln the govemmental funds, however,

expenditures for these items are reported in the amount of financial resources used (paid).
When the eamed amount exceeds the paid amount, the difference is reduction in the
reconciliation G); when the paid amount exceeds the earned amount the difference is an
addition to the reconciliation 1+¡. (172,572)

Change ¡n netassets of governmental activities --W

See Accompanying Noúes to the Financial Statements
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TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
June 30,2011

Exhibit B4

Business-type Activities -
Enterpïise fvnds

Latchkey
Program

(Non Major
Fund)

Food
Service

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equÍvalents
Accounts receivable
Other accounts receivable
lnventories

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Furniture, machinery & equípment

Less accumulated depreciation
ïotal noncurrent assets

Totalassets

LIABIL¡TIES

Current liabilities:
lnterfund Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable
Deferred Revenue
Compensated absences

ïotal current liabilities

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

lnvested in capital assets net of
related debt

Unrestricted
Total net assets

855.840 _1_19Égl_ 1,992gJ_

$656,104
41,810

349

145,O27

1,654

Totals

801,131
41,910

2,003
9,773

854,717

596,644
(448,840)

67,234
39,965
15,691
2132:ß

144,219

144,219

9.773
709,036

588,794
(440,990)
147,904

54,368
39,965

8,592
18,672

121,597

121,597

146,681

7,850
(7,850)

0

12,866
0

7102
2,654

22,622

22,622

147,804
586,439

-gl3!243_

124,05s i1i"23t
_124,059- ____qgg.,g02_

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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Exhlbit B-5

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 201 I

Business-Çpe Activities -
Enterprise Fund

Latchkey
Program

(Non Major Total
Fund) Enúerprise

Operating revenues:
Charges for services:

Daily sales - reimbursable programs
Daily sales - non-reimbursable programs
Special functions
Miscellaneous
Latchkey program revenue

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Cost of sales
Salaries
Employee benefits
General supplies & materials
Other costs
Depreciation

Total operating expenses
Operating (loss)

Nonoperating revenues:
State sources:

State school lunch program
Federal sources:

National school lunch program
National school breakfast program
National school snack program
Food distribution program

lnterest and investment revenue
Total nonoperating revenues

Change in net assets
Total net assets-beg¡nning
Total net assets-ending

43,841

-T328 
41 lo1.oso ---@(566,700) (14,374) (581,074)

Food
Service

8374,727
349,130

37,170
1,114

m 86,676
86,676

374,727
349,130

37,170
1,114

86,676
848,817

661,595
406,093
138,446
56,006
22,860

89,190
7r958
3,902

661,595
495,283
146,404
59,908
22,860

15,350

480,616
87,962

926
64,486

9,906

15,350

480,616
87,962

926
64,486
7,918 1,988

657.258 1.988 659,246
90,558 (12,386) 78,172

643,685 136,445 780,130
$734,243 124,059 858,302::-:

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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Exhibit B-6

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Business-type Activities -
Enterorise Funds

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Payments to employees
Payments to suppliers

Net cash provided/(used) by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from state and federal reimbursements

Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITALAND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of capital assets

Net cash (used) by capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
lnterest and dividends

Net cash provided by investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Balances-beginning of year
Balances-end of year

Reconciliation of operating income(loss) to net cash
provided(used) by operating activities:

Operating income/(loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income(loss) to net cash

provided/(used) by operating activities
Depreciation and net amortization
Federal commodities
(lncrease)/Decrease in accounts receivable, net
Decrease in inventories
(Decrease)/lncrease in accounts payable
(Decrease)/lncrease in interfund accounts payable
(Decrease)/lncrease in deferred revenue
(Decrease)/lncrease in compensated absences payable

Total adjustments
Net cash provided/(used) by operating activities

Food
Seruice

$761,767
(4ee,806)
(664,143)
(402,182',)

576,892
576,892

(22,65s)
(22,659)

Latchkey
Program

(Non.Major
Fund)

94,965
(83,14e)

(3,902)
7,914

o

o

Total
Enterprlse

856,732
(582,955)
(668,045)
(394,268)

576,892
576,892

(22,65e)
(22,65e)

164,518 22,288 186,806
($402,182) 7,er4 (394,268):

7,918 1,988 9,906
7.918 1,988 9,906

159.969 9,902 169,871
496,135 135,125 631,260

($566,700)

43,841
64,486

689
(3,4e5)
15,327
52,634
(1,063)
(7,901)

($14,374) (581,074)

43,841
64,486

3,528 4,217
(3,495)
15,327

12,866 65,500
4,761 3,698
1,133 (6,768)

See Accompanying Noûes to Financial Statements
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Exhibit B-7

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds
June 30,2011

Unemployment Private Purpose Agency
Compensation Trust Scholarship Fund Fund

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $267,842 79,447 286,725

Total assets 267,842_ 79,447 _296J25_
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 5,513 734
Payable to student groups 285,989
Payrolldeductions and withholdings 2

Totalliabilities re -- Æ-
NET ASSETS

Held in trust for unemployment
claims and other purposes $262,329 79,447

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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ADDITIONS
Contributions;

Plan member
Transfer in from generalfund
Donations

Total Contributions

lnvestment earnings:
lnterest

Net investment earnings
Total additions

DEDUCTIONS
Unemployment claims
Scholarships awarded

Totaldeductions
Change in net assets

Net assets-beginning of the year
Net assets-end of the year

Exhibit B-8

Unemployment Private Purpose
Compensation Trust Scholarship Fund

947,219
50,000

97,219 483

4.448
4,448

101,667

237,557

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Ghanges in Fiduciary Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30.2011

237,557
(135,890)
398,219

$262,329
83,508rc

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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Town of Hammonton School District
Notes to X'inancial Statements
June 30,2011

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Town of Hammonton School District is an instrumentalþ of the State of New Jersey,
established to function as an educational institution. The Board consists of elected officials and
is responsible for the fiscal control of the District. A superintendent is appointed by the Board
and is responsible for the administrative control of the District.

The financial statements of the Board of Education (Board) of the Town of Hammonton School
District (District) have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting
and financial reporting principles. In its accounting and financial reporting, the District follows
the pronotrncements of the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the
pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) and its predecessor
organizations issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless they conflict with or contradict
GASB pronouncements. Although the District has the option to apply FASB pronouncements
issued after that date to its business-type activities and enterprise funds, the District has chosen
not to do so. The more significant accounting policies established in GAAP and used by the
District are discussed below.

In June lggg,the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), unanimously approved
Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis for
State and Local Governments. This Statement provides for the most significant change in
financial reporting over twenty years and is scheduled for a phase-in implementation period
(based on amount of revcnues) starting with fiscal years ending2002 (for Ïmger governments).
In addition, the school district has implemented GASB Statement No. 37, Basic Statements and
Management's Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments: Omnibus, Statement
No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures and GASB No. 54 Fund Balance
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Descriptions.

A. REPORTING ENTITY:

The Town of Hammonton School District is a Type II district located in the County of Atlantic,
State of New Jersey. As a Type II District, the School District functions independently through a
Board of Education. The board is comprised of nine members elected to three-year terms. In
addition, one member is appointed from the Folsom School District and the Waterford School
District under a sending/receiving relationship, as required by the statutes. The purpose of the
district is to educate students in grades K-12 as well as providing educational services for the
Borough of Folsom students in grades 9-12 andthe Township of Waterford students in grades 7-
12. The Town of Hammonton School District had an approximate enrollment at June 30,2011
of 3,534 students.

The primary criterion for including activities within the Disúict's reporting entity, as set forth in
Section 2100 of the GASB Codification of Governmental Accou:rting and Financial Reporting
Standards, is whether:



Town of Hammonton School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30,2011

Based on the aforementioned criteria, the District has no component units.

B. BASIC X'INAITICIAL STATEMENTS - GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS:

The District's basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the DisÍict as

a whole) and fund financial statements (reporting the District's major frrnds). Both the
government-wide and fund financial statements categofize primary activities as either
govemmental or business type. The District's general, special revenue, capital projects and debt
service activities are classified as governmental activities. The District's food service and
latchkey program are classified as business-type activities. Fiduciary funds are excluded from
the govemment-wide financial statements.

In the govemmental-wide Statement of Net Assets, both the govemmental and business-type
activities columns (a) are presented on a consolidated basis by column, (b) and are reported on a
full accrual, economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as
well as long-term debt and obligations. As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been
eliminated from the government-wide financial statements. The District's net assets are reported
in three parts-invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted net assets; and unrestuicted
net assets. The District first utilizes reshicted resources to finance qualifying activities.

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of each of the
District's functions and business-type activities (food service and latchkey). The functions aÍe
also supported by general government revenues (property taxes, tuition, certain
intergovernmental revenues, etc.). The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses
(including depreciation) by related program revenues, operating and capital grants. Program
revenues must be directly associated with the function (regular instruction, special education,
student & instruction related services, etc.) or a business-type activity. Operating grants include
operating-speciflrc and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants while the capital grants
column reflects capital-specific grants.

The net costs þy fimction or business-type activity) are normally covered by general revenue
(property taxes, tuition, interest income, etc.).

a. The District does allocate indirect costs such as depreciation expense, compensated
absences, bond,issues costs, On-behalf TPAF Pension Contributions, and Reimbursed
TPAF Social Securþ Contributions.
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Town of Hammonton School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30,2011

The govemment-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the District as an entity and the
change in the District's net assets resulting from the current year's activities.

C. BASIC F'INANCIAL STATEMENTS: X'T]ND F'INA¡ICIAL STATEMENTS

The financial hansactions of the District are reported in individuat funds in the fund flrnancial
statements. Each frrnd is accounted for by providing a separate set of selÊbalancing accounts
that comprise its assets, liabilities, reseryes, fund equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses.
The various funds are reported by generic classification within the financial statements.

The following fund t¡tes are used by the District:

l. Governmental X'unds:

The focus of the govemmental funds' measurement (in the fund statements) is upon
determination of financial position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and balances
of financial resources) rather than upon net income. The following is a description of the
governmental funds of the District.

a. General fund is the general operating fund of the District. It is used to account for all
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

b. Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources
that are legally restricted to expenditures for a specific pu{pose.

c. Capital projects funds are used to account for all financial resources to be used for the
acquisiti.on or constnrction of major capital facilities. The finaneial resources are derived
from temporary notes or serial bonds that are specifically authorized by the voters as a
separate question on the ballot either during the annual election or at a special election.

d. Debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the
payment of principal and interest on bonds issued to finance major property acquisition,
construction and improvement programs.

2. Proprietary f,'unds:

The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of operating income, changes
in net assets, financial position, and cash flows. The generally accepted accounting principles
applicable are those similar to businesses in the private sector. The following is a description of
the proprietary funds of the District:

a. Enterprise funds are required to be used to account for operations for which a fee is
charged to external users for goods or services and the activity (a) is financed with debt
that is solely secured by a pledge of the net revenues, (b) has third parfy requirements that
the cost of providing services, including capital costs, be recovered with fees and charges
or (c) establishes fees and charges based on a pricing policy designæed to recover similar
costs.
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Town of Hammonton School DÍstrict
Notes to X'inancial Statements
June 30,2011

3. F'iduciary X'unds:

Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and
therefore are not available to support District programs. The reporting focus is on net assets and
changes in net assets which are reported using accounting principles similar to proprietary funds.

The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in either the governmental or
business-type activities categories. Non-major funds by category are summarized into a single
column. GASBS No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of the assets, liabilities,
revenues or expenditures/expenses of either fund category or the governmental and enterprise
combined) for the determination of major funds. The non-major funds are combined in a column
in the fund financial statements.

The District's fiduciary funds are presented in the fiduciary fund financial statements by type
(pension, private purpose and agency). Since by definition these assets are being held for the
benefit of a third parfy (other local governments, private parties, pension participants, etc.) and
cannot be used to address activities or obligations of the government, these funds are not
incorporated into the govemment-wide statements.

D. BASIS OF'ACCOUNTING

Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures/expenses are
recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. It relates to the timing of the
measurements made regardless of the measurement focus applied.

1. Accrual:

Both govemmental and business-type activities in the govemment-wide financial statements and
the proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recognizedwhen earned and expenses are recognized when incured.

2. Modified Accrual:

The governmental fund financial statements are presented on the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when
susceptible to accrual; i.e., both measurable and available. "Available" means collectible within
the current period or within 60 days after year end. Expenditures are generally recognized under
the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related liability is incurred. The exception to
this general rule is that principal and interest on general obligation long-term debt, if any, is
recognized when due.
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Town of Hammonton School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30,2011

E. F'INANCIAL STATEMENT AMOT]NTS

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash, change funds, cash in banks and all highly liquid
investments with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase and are stated at cost
plus accrued interest. U.S. Treasury and agency obligations and certificates of deposit with
maturities of one year or less when purchased are stated at cost. All other investments are stated

at fair value.

For the purpose of determining cash equivalents the District considers all investments with an
original maturity of three months or less as cash equivalents.

New Jersey school districts are limited as to the types of invesûnents and types of financial
institutions they may invest in. New Jersey statute l8A:20-37 provides a list of permissible
investments that may be purchased by New Jersey school districts.

Additionally, the District has adopted a cash management plan that requires it to deposit public
funds in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit
Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPA"). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect Governmental
Units from a loss of fi.mds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey.

NJSA 17:9-41 et. Seq. establishes the requirements for the sectrity of deposits of governmental
units. The statute requires that no governrnental unit shall deposit public funds in a public
dcpository unless such funds are secured in acsordance with the Act. Public depositories include
Savings and Loan institutions, banks (both state and national banks) and savings banks the
deposits of which are federally insured. All public depositories must pledge collateral, having a
market value at least equal to five percent of the average daily balance of collected public funds,
to secure the deposits of Governmental Units. If a public depository fails, the collateral it has
pledged, plus the collateral of all other public depositories, is available to pay the full amount of
their deposits to the Governmental units.

34



Town of Hammonton School District
Notes to X'inancial Statements
June 30,2011

2.Investments:

Invesfrnents, including deferred compensation and pension funds, are stated at fair value, (quoted
market price or the best available estimate). Interest eamed on investments in the Capital
Projects Fund is recognized in the District's Debt Service Fund.

3. Inventories:

Inventories in the general fund consist of expendable supplies held for the District's use and are

ca:ried at cost using the first-in, first-out method. Inventories in the enterprise fund are valued at
cost, which approximates market, using the first-in, first-out method. As of June 30, 201 1, the
District did not have inventory in the general fund and had the following inventory in the
enterprise fund:

Food
Supplies

S 7,442
2,331

s 
---2lJ]-

The value of Federal donated commodities as reflected on Schedule A (required by the Single
Audit Act of 1996) is the difference between market value and cost of the commodities at the
date of purchase and has been included as an item of non-operating revenue in the financial
statements. The amount of commoditv food value on hand included above is $3"076.

4. Capital Assets:

Capital assets purchased or acquired \¡rith an original cost of $2,000 or more are reported at
historical cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported at fair market value as

of the date received. Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend
the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are

expensed as incurred. Depreciation on all assets is provided on the straight-line basis over the
following estimated usefrrl lives:

Infrastructure l0-20 vears
Buildines 20-50 vears
Machinerv and eouioment 5-10 vears
Improvements 10-20 vears

GASBS No. 34 requires the District to report and depreciate infrastructure assets. Infrastructure
assets include roads, parking lots, underground pipe, etc. Neither their historical cost nor related
depreciation has historically been reported in the financial statements.

35



Town of Hammonton School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30,2011

5. Revenues:

Substantially all governmental fi.rnd revenues are accrued. Property taxes are susceptible to
accrual and under New Jersey State Statutes a municipality is required to remit to its school
district the entire balance of taxes in the amourt voted upon or certified, prior to the end of the
school year. The District records the entire approved tax levy as revenue (accrued) at the start of
the fiscal year, since the revenue is both measurable and available. In the proprietary funds,
operating revenues consist of revenues that are a direct result of the operations of the program.
Subsidies and grants to proprietary frrnds, which finance either capital or current operations, are

reported rN non operating revenue based on GASBS No. 33. In applying GASBS No. 33 to grant
revenues, the provider recognizes liabilities and expenses and recipient recognizes receivables
and revenue when the applicable eligibility requirements, including time requirements are met.
Resources transmitted before the eligibility requirements are met are reported as advances by the
provider and deferred revenue by the recipient.

6. Expenditures:

Expenses are recognized when the related fund liability is incurred. Inventory costs are reported
in the period when inventory items are used, rather than in the period purchased.

7. Compensated absences:

Compensated absences are those absences for which employees will be paid, such as vacation,
sick leave, and sabbatical leave. A liability for compensated absences that are attributable to
sen¡ices already rendered, and that are not contingent on a speeific went that is outside the
control of the District and its employees, is accrued as the employees earn the rights to the
benefits. Compensated absences that relate to future services, or that are contingent on a specific
event that is outside the conkol of the Dishict and its employees, are accounted for in the period
in which such services are rendered or in which such events take place.

In government¿l and similar trust funds, compensated absences that are expected to be liquidated
with expendable available financial resources are reported as expenditure and fund liability in the
fund that will pay for the compensated absences. The remainder of the compensated absences
liability is reported in the District-wide Financial Statements as a Governmental Activity.

In proprietary and similar trust funds, compensated absences are recorded as an expense and
liability of the fund that will pay for them.

36



Town of Hammonton School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30,2011

8. Interfund Activity:

Interfund activity is reported as either loans, services provided, reimbursements or tansfers.
Loans are reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to
elimination upon consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates,
are treated as revenues and expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a
cost, charges the appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related costs as reimbursement. All
other interfund transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers between govemmental or
proprietary funds are netted as part of the reconciliation to the government-wide financial
statements.

9. Budgets/Budgetary Control:

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the general, special
revenue and debt service funds. The budgets are submitted to the county office for approval and
are voted upon at the annual school election on the third Tuesday in April. Budgets are prepared
using the modified accrual basis of accounting, except for the special revenue fund as described
later. The legal level of budgetary control is established at line item accounts within each fund.
Line item accounts are defined as the lowest (most specific) level of detail as est¿blished
pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced in N.J.A.C. 6:23-2 (g). The Board of
Education did not make any material supplemental budgetary appropriations during the fiscal
year. Transfers of appropriations may be made by School Board resolution at any time during
the fiscal year. However, any fuansfer that cumulatively exceeds ten percent of the advertised
budget category must receive the approval of the County Superintendent of Schools. The
following material transfers were made tol (from) budgetary line iterns:

AccountName Amount
Resular Prosrams - Salaries of Teachers 1-5 (1 18.200)
Regular Programs -Other Purchased Services 196,165

Resular Prosrams - General Suonlies 3t7.750
Tuition to CSSD & Reeional Dav Schools 119.900

Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 200.300
Unallocated Benefits - Unemplovment Ø44.071\
Unallocated Benefits - Health Benefits (680.120)

Equipment - Custodial Services 237.000
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Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2011

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control
device dwing the year. For governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the
budgetary basis of accounting and generally accepted accounting principles with the exception of
the legally mandated revenue recognition of the last state aid payment for budgetary purposes

only and the special revenue fund as noted below. Encumbrance accounting is also employed as

an extension of formal budgetary integration in the governmental fund types. Unencumbered
appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accounting
budgetary basis. The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant

accounting budgetary basis recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the
related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental records are

maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis financial reports.

Explanation of Differences between Budeetar.y Inflows and Outflows and GAAP Revenues and

Expenditures
General

Fund

s 41,813,926

Special
Revenue Fund

2,760,857

I,229,438

1,237
(14,542)

46,531

State aid payment recognized for budgetary purposes, not
recognized for GAAP statements until the subsequent year. (1,038,188) (48,032)

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental
funds $ 42,005,176 2,746,051

Sources/inflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary) oorevenues" from the budgetary
comparison schedules

Difference - budget to GAAP:
Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in

that encumbrances are recogni-zed as expenditures, and the
related revenue is recognized.

Prior Year
Current Year

State aid payment recognized for GAAP statements in the
current year, previously recognized for budgetary purposes.
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Uses/outflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) o'total outflows" from the
budgetary comparison schedule

Differences - budget to GAAP:
Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but not

received are reported in the year the order is placed for
budgetary purposes, but in the year the supplies are received
for financial reporting purposes.

Prior Year
Current Year

Transfers to and from other funds are presented as outflows
ofbudgetary resources but are not expenditures for fïnancial
reporting purposes. Net transfers (outflows) to capital
project fund.

Total Expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental
funds

10. Encumbrances:

$ 39,865,595 2,760,957

1,237
(r4,542)

$__i2"qÉI,ses_ 2,747,552

Under encumbrance accounting purchase orders, contracts and other commiünents for the
expendittue of resources are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable appropriation. Open
encumbrances in governmental funds, other than the special revenue fund, are reported as

reservations of fund balances at fiscal year end as they do not constitute expenditures or
liabilities but rather commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods and services.

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund, for which the District has received advances,
are reflected in the balance sheet as defened revenues at fiscal year end.

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year. An entry will be

made at the beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the appropriation reflected in the
certified budget by the outstanding encumbrance amount as of the current fiscal year end.

11. Tuition Receivable

Tuition charges were established by the Board of Education based on estimated costs. The
charges are subject to adjusûnent when the final costs have been determined.
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12. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those results.

13. Allocation of Costs

In the government-wide statement of activities, the District has allocated unallocated benefits to
various programs based on the actual salary and tuition expenditures by program.

F" RECENT ACCOTJNTING PRONOTJNCEMENTS

In July 2004, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) adopted Statement No. 45,
o'Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Post Employment Benefits other than
Pensions." This statement will become effective for entities on a phased in basis beginning with
fiscal years beginning after December 15,2006. The effective date for this entity is the fiscal
year beginning July 1, 2008. This statement will require governmental entities to report the
future cost of other post employment benefits (OPEB) on a present value basis instead of the
present "pay as you go" method. The impact on the financial position or results of operations
can not be readily determined at this time.

NOTE 2. - INVESTMENTS

As of June 30,2011, the district had no investments.

Interest Rate Risk. The district does not have a formal invesünent policy that limits inveshent
maturities as a means of managing its exposr¡re to fair value losses arising from increasing
interest rates. However, New Jersey Statutes l8A.20-37 limits the lengfh of time for most
investments to 397 days.

Credit Risk. New Jersey Statutes l8A:20-37 limits district investments to those specified in the
Statutes. The type of allowable investments are Bonds of the United States of America or of the
district or the local units in which the district is located; obligations of federal agencies not
exceeding 397 days; government money market mutual funds; the State of New Jersey Cash
Management Plan; local government investment pools; or repurchase of fully collateralized
securities.

Concentration of Credit Risk. The distict places no limit on the amount the district may invest
in any one issuer.
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NOTE 3. _ CASH

Custodial Credit RisleDeposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank
failure, the School District's deposits may not be returned to it. The disûict's policy is based on
New Jersey Statutes requiring cash be deposited only in New Jersey based banking institutions
that participate in the New Jersey Governmental Depository Protection Act (GUDPA) or in
qualified investments established in New Jersey Statutes l8A'20-37 that are treated as cash
equivalents. As of June 30, 2011, the School District's bank balance of $8,892,415 was insured
or collateralized as follows:

$8,892,415

NOTE 4. CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT

A capital reserve account was established by the Town of Hammonton Board of Education in a
prior year, which was certiflred for taxes, for the accumulation of funds for use as capital outlay
expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The capital reserve account is maintained in the general

fund and its activity is included in the general fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are resfficted to capital projects in the district's
approved Long Range Facilities Plan (LRFP) and updated annually in the Quality Assuranee
Annual Report (QAAR). Upon submission of the LRFP to the department, a district may
increase the balance in the capital reserve by appropriating funds in the annual general fund
budget certified for taxes. A district may also appropriate additional amounts when the express
approval of the voters has been obtained either by a separate proposal at budget time or by a
special question at one of the four special elections authorized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:60-2.
Pursuant to NJAC 6:23A-14.1(g), the balance in the account cannot at any time exceed the local
support costs of uncompleted capital projects in its approved LRFP.

The activity of the capital reserve for the July 1, 2010 to June 30, 2011 fiscal year is as follows:

Insured
Uninsured and collateralized with

Securities held by pledging financial institutions

Bank balance. June 30. 201 I

Beginning balance, July l,2010
Interest Earnings
Deposits - Board Resolution June23,20ll
Budgeted Withdrawal
Ending balance, June 30, 2011

s 261,779

8,630,636

$4,044,107
39,259

1,590,000
(1,230,940)

_s+An,q26

The 20Il-2012 Budget includes a withdrawal from the Capital Reserve Account in the amount
of 5614,625.
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NOTE 5. EMERGENCY RESERVE

New Jersey Statute l8A:7F-41(c) permits school districts to establish a current expense emergency
reserve in the general fund with deposits made to the account with voter approval, beginning in the fiscal
year 2008 budget process, or at year end by board resolution. This reserve account is to be used to finance
fr¡ture unanticipated (reasonably unforeseeable) general fund expenditures required for a thorough and
effrcient education. The emergency reserve balance cannot exceed $250,000 or one percent of the
district's general fund budget (which amounts to $401,177 for the 2011 fiscal year) up to à maximum of
$1 million, whichever is greater. Withdrawals require the approval of the Commissioner unless the
withdrawal is necessary to meet an increase in total health costs greater than four percent.

The activity in the emergency reserve for the 2011 fiscal year is as follows:

NOTE 6. MAINTENANCE RESERVE

New Jersey Statute 18A:7G-9 permits school districts to accumulate funds for the required maintenance
of a facility in accordance with EFCFA. The balance may only be increased through an appropriation in
the annual general fund budget certified for taxes. Upon completion of a school facilities projects,
districts are required to submit a plan for maintenance of that facility.

The activþ in the maintenance reserye for the 2011 fiscal year is as follows:

Beginning balance, July 1,2010
Interest Earnings
Ending balance, June 30, 201 1

Beginning balance, July 1,2010
lnterest Eamings
Ending balance, June 30, 2011

$ 303,285
5,125

_$_108,119_

$ 808,760
lr,ggg

$ 820,759

NOTE 7. TUITION RESERVE 2OO9.2OIO

New Jersey Statute permits school diskicts to accumulate funds for tuition adjusfinents. The district shall
make full appropriation of the reserye for tuition adjustrnents in the second year following the contract
year.

The activity in the tuition reserve for the 2011 fiscal year is as follows:

Beginning balance, July 1, 2010
Budget Appropriation
Ending balance, June 30, 2011

$ 500,000

$ 500,000

The 2011-2012 Budget includes a withdrawal from the Tuition Reserve Account in the amount of
$500,000.
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NOTE 8. TUITION RESERVE 2O1O-2OI I

New Jersey Statute permits school districts to accumulate funds for tuition adjustments. The
district shall make full appropriation of the reserye for tuition adjustments in the second year
following the contract year.

The activity in the tuition reserye for the 2011 fiscal year is as follows:

Begiruring balance, July 1, 2010
Board Resolution, dated Jlur¡¡e 23, 201 |
Ending balance, June 30, 2011

NOTE 9. FIXED ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2011 was as follows:

Balance
June 30.2010 Additions

Governmental Activities :

Capital assets that are not
being depreciated:
Land $
Construction in Progress

Total capital assets nof
being depreciated

Site improvements
Bldg and bldg improve
Machinery & equipment
Total at historical cost

Less accum depr for:
Site improvements
Bldg and bldg improve
Machinery & equipment
Total accum deprec

Total capital assets being
depr, net ofaccum depr

Governmental activities
capital assets, net

Business-type activities :
Equipment

324,908
1l 949.s49

12.274.457

3,088,791
39,981,275
4,683,246

47,753,312

(1,859,861)
(14,041,311)
(3,404,708)

(19,305,880)

28.447.432

#
573,995

392,370

392,370

67,240
376,856 (1,513)

. 444,096

(138,651)
(886,956)
(191,906)

(1,217,513)

(1,513)

(773,417)

_É!!plzL ______cé13L

22,659

0

500"000

_s_lgq{gq_

Disposals I Balance
Adiustments June30.2011

324,908
12,341,9t9

12,666,827

3,088,791
40,049,515

5,058,589
48,195,895

(1,998,512)
(t4,928,267)

(3,596,613)
(20,523,392)

27,672,503

40,339,330
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Less accum depr for:
Equipment (404,999) (43,841)

Business-type activities
capital assets, net $ þ!,9!É_ Qt,l82)

Depreciation expense as charged to governmental functions as follows:

Regular instruction
Special education
Other instruction
Tuition
Student & instruction related services
School administrative services
General administrative services
Plant operations and maintenance
Pupil transportation

(448,840)

0 t47.804

694,t49
113,202
33,212
29,114

t21,908
89,348
13,707
59,604
38,859

Business and other support services 24,410
s 1217,5ß

NOTE IO. GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2011 was as follows:

Balance Balance Amounts
Due Within

6-30-10 Issued Retired 6-30-11 9ryfgq_
Governmental Activities
Bonds & loans payable:

School bonds $ 33,314,000 770,000 32,544,000 1,205,000
Obligations under capital

Leases 341,965 151,700 t40,522 353,143 114,714

Other liabilities:
Compensated absences
Payable 2,701,137 172,572

Government¿l activities long-
term liabilities

2,873,709 292,400

3QlllJ02 --34272 --)lge- LuJ9Å2 ---l,6Plll
Business-type Activities:
Other liabilities:

Compensated absences
Payable 28,094 6,768 2r,326 0

Business-type activities long-
term liabilities $ 28,094 6,768 21,326 0
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A. Bonds Payable:

Bonds are authorized in accordance with State law by the voters of the Distict through
referendums. All bonds are retired in serial installments within the statutory period of
usefulness. Bonds issued by the Board are general obligation bonds.

Long-term debt as of June 30,2011 consisted of the following:

$21,611,000 School Bonds dated 10/1512001payable in annual installments through August 1,

2011. Interest is paid semiannually at a fixed rate of 4.75% per annum. The balance as of June

30, 2011 was $535,000, $7,385,000 of these bonds were refunded on 9119106. The net present
value savings amounted to 5426,798. $10,890,000 of these bonds were refunded on 3123110.

The net present value savings amounted to $449,777.

$10,890,000 School Bonds dated 3/2312010 payable in annual installments through August 1,

2025. Interest is paid semiannually at varying rates between 2.00% and 5.00% per annum. The
balance as of June 30,2011 was $10,780,000.

$7,385,000 School Bonds dated 911912006 payable in annual installments through August 1,

2030. Interest is paid semiannually at varying rates between 3.00% arÃ 4.20% per annum. The
balance as of June 30,2011 was $7,365,000.

$2,614,000 School Bonds dated 4/1512006 payable in annual installments through July 15, 2021.
Interest is paid semiannually at varying rates between 4.25% and 4.30o/o per annum. The balance

as of June 30,2011 was $2,064,000.

$11,800,000 School Bonds dated 612412010 payable in annual installments through Juty 1, 2030.
Interest is paid semiannually at varying rates between 3.25% and 4.125%o per annum. The
balance as of June 30,2011 was $11,800,000.

Principal and interest due on serial bonds outstanding is as follows:

Principal lnterest Total
Year ending June 30,

20t2
20t3
2014
2075
20r6

2017-2021
2022-2026
2027-2031

$ 1,205,000
1,235,000
1,310,000
1,330,000
1,365,000
7,765,000
8,294,0A0

10,040,000

$ __¡2,s14,q9q

1,263,417
1,222,267
1,186,941
l,l50,2ll
1,102,860
4,559,003
2,933,057
1,079,401

-JIAel]57

2,468,417
2,457,267
2,496,941
2,4go,2ll
2,467,860

12,324,003
11,227,057
11,119,401

47,041,157
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B. Bonds Authorized But Not Issued:

As of June 30,2011 the Board had authorized but not issued bonds in the amount of $1,880,341.

C. Capital Leases Pa)'able:

The Dishict is leasing various equipment, textbooks, buses and has two energy conservation
leases totaling $353,143 under capital leases. Semiannual lease payments are made to
Susquehanna Pahiot Bank and John Deere Credit, and include interest at a rate of 4.50%o to
5.75% per annum. Assets acquired under the leases are included in the general fixed assets of the
District; but the District has not segregated those assets or the related depreciation expense. The
following is a schedule of the future minimum lease payments under these capital leases and the
net minimum lease pa¡rments at June 30, 2011.

Year ending June 30,

2012
2013
20t4
2015
Total

Principal

$ t 14,714
91,945
96,167
50,317

15,429
10,513
6,290
1,872

34,104

130,143
102,458
t02,457
s2.t89

353.143 387,247

NOTE 11. BOND ANTICIPATION NOTES

Bond Anticipation Notes in the amount of $7,100,000 dated July 15, 2009 with a net interest cost
of 1.5285% were due and payable on July 15,2010. $6,600,000 was repaid from bond proceeds
and the remaining $500,000 was paid from 2010-2011Budget appropriations. The balance on
June 31,201,1 was $0.

NOTE 12. PENSION PLANS

Description o-f Plans

A substantial number of the School District's employees participate in one of the following
defined benefit pension plans: the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund and the Public
Employees' Retirement System, which are administered by the New Jersey Division of Pensions
and Benefits. In addition, several School District employees participate in the Defined
Contribution Retirement Program, which is a defined confibution plan. This too is administered
by the New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits. Each plan has a Board of Trustees that is
primarily responsible for its administration. The Division issues a publicty available financial
report that includes the financial statements and required supplementary information. That
report may be obtained by writing to: State of New Jersey, Division of Pensions and Benefits,
PO Box 29í,Trenton, Ne\M Jersey, 08625-0295.
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Teachers' Pension andAnnuity Fund

The Teachers'Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) is a cost-sharing conÍibutory defined benefit
pension plan which was established as of January 1, 1955, under the provisions of N.J.S.A.
184:66. The TPAF provides retirement, death and disability, and medical benefits to qualified
members. Vesting and benefit provisions are established by N.J.S.A. 184:66.

The contribution requirements of plan members are determined by State statute. In accordance
with Chapters 113, ll4 and 115, P.L. 1997, planmembers enrolled in the TPAF were required to
contribute 5Yo of their annual covered salary. Effective July l, 2007, however, in accordance
with Chapter 92, P.L. 2007 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2007, plan members were required to
contribute 5.5% of their annual covered salary. For employees who were enrolled in the
retirement system prior to July l, 2007, the increase \Mas effective with the payroll period that
began immediately after July 1, 2007. The State Treasurer has the right under the current law to
make temporary reductions in member rates based on the existence of surplus pension assets in
the retirement system; however, statute also requires the return to the normal rate when such
surplus pension assets no longer exist.

Under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the State of New Jersey on-behalf
of the School District and all other related non-contributing employers. No normal or accrued
liability contribution by the district has been required over several preceding fiscal years.

Public Employees' Retirement System

The Public Employees'Retirement System (PERS) is a cost-shadng contributory defined benefit
pension plan which was established as of January 1, 1955. The PERS provides retirement, death
and disability, and medical benefits to qualified members. Vesting and benefit provisions are
established by N.J.S.A.43:l5A and 43:38.

The contribution requirements of plan members are determined by State statute. In accordance
with Chapter 62,P.L. 1994, plan members enrolled in the PERS were required to contribute 5%
of their arurual covered salary. Effective July 1, 2007, however, in accordance with Chapter 92,
P.L. 2007 and Chapter 103, P .L. 2007 , plan members were required to contribute 5.5% of their
annual covered salary. For employees who were enrolled in the retirement system prior to July
I,2007, the increase \ilas effective with the payroll period that began immediately after July 1,

2007. The State Treasurer has the right under the current law to make temporary reductions in
member rates based on the existence of surplus pension assets in the retirement system; however,
statute also requires the return to the normal rate when such surplus pension assets no longer
exist.

The School District is billed annually for its normal contributíon plus any accrued liabilþ.
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Three-Year Trend Information for PERS

Year
Fundins

6/30ltt
6/30n0
6/30/09

Year
X'unding

6/30llt
6/30/t0
6/30t09

Annual
Pension

Cost (APCI

502,109
375,426
322,130

Annual
Pension

Cost IAPCI

1,297,257
1,159,683
l,ll2,0l4

Percentage
Of APC

Contributed

100

100
100

Percentage
Of APC

Contributed

100

100
100

Net
Pension

Oblieation

0
0

0

Net
Pension

Oblieation

0

0
0

Three-Year Trend Information for TPAX'(Paid on-behalf of the Districtl

During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011,2010 and 2009, the State of New Jersey contributed
51,297,257, $1,159,683 and $1,112,014 respectively, to the TPAF for post-retirement medical
benefits on behalf of the Board. Also, in accordance with NJSA 184:66-66 the State of New
Jersey reimbursed the Board $1,431,112,51,476,105 and $1,400,049 dwing the same fiscal
years for the employer's share of social security contributions for TPAF members as calculated
on their base salaries. These amounts, which are not required to be budgeted, have been
ineluded in the finaneial statanents, and the combining and individual fund and account group
statements and schedules as revenues and expenditures in accordance in GASB 27.

The Board's total payroll for the years ended June 30,2011,2010 and 2009 was $25,438,460,
526,760,288 and $23,182,980 and covered payroll was $18,688,353, 519,074,803 and

517,984,202 for TPAF; and $4,3 98,3 3 6, $4,5 95, I 8 3 and $4,427,47 6 for PERS.

NOTE 13. POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

P.L. 1987, c.384 and P.L. 1990, c.6 required Teachers' Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) and
the Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS), respectively, to fund post-retirement medical
benefits for those State employees who retire after accumulating21 years of credited service or
on a disability retirement. P.L. 2007, c.103 amended law to eliminate the funding of post-
retirement medical benefits through the TPAF and PERS. It created separate funds outside of the
pension plans for the funding and payment of post-retirement medical benefits for retired State

employees and retired educational employees. As of June 30,2010, there were 87,288 retirees
eligible for post-retirement medical benefits. The cost of these benefits is funded tfuough
contributions by the State in accordance with P.L. 1994, c.62. Funding of post-retirement
medical premiums changed from a prefunding basis to a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in fiscal
year 1994.
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The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to P.L. 1992 c.126, which provides free
health benefits to members of PERS and the Alternate Benefit Program who retired from a board
of education or county college with 25 years of service. The State paid $126.3 million toward
Chapter 126 benefits for 14,050 eligible retired members in Fiscal Year 2010.

NOTE 14. DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The Board offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 403(b). The plans, which are administered by the entities listed below,
permits participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Amounts deferred under
the plans are not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable
emergency. The plan administrators are as follows:

Ameriprise
American Century
TPAF Supplemental Amuity
Puüram
Lincoln Investrnent Planning
Siracusa Benefits Program
Vanguard
Catanta
Equitable

NOTE 15. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g. sick leave) as directed by Govemmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16 (GASB 16), "Accounting for Compensated
Absences". A liability for compensated absences attributable to services already rendered and
not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and employee is
accrued as employees eatn the rights to the benefits.

District employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts under the District's
personnel policies. Sick leave benefits provide for ordinary sick pay and is capped based on the
various employee contracts.

In the district-wide Statement of Net Assets, the liabilities whose average maturities are greater
than one year should be reported in two components - the amount due within one year and the
amount due in more than one year.

The liabitity for vested compensated absences of the proprietary frrnd types is recorded within
those funds as the benefits accrue to employees. As of June 30, 2011, a liability existed for
compensated absences in the Food Service Program and the Latchkey Program in the amounts of
8 I 8,67 2 and $2,6 5 4, respectively.
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NOTE 16. DEFICIT FUND BALANCES

The District has a deficit fund balance of $361,174 in the General fund and $48,032 in the
Special Revenue Fund as of June 30,2011 as reported in the fund statements (modified accrual
basis). N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2 provides that in the event a state school aid payment is not made
until the following school budget year, districts must record the last state aid payment as

revenue, for budget purposes only, in the current school budget year. The bill provides legal
authority for school districts to recognize this revenue in the current budget year. For
intergovemmental transactions, GASB Statement No. 33 requires that recognition (revenue,
expenditure, asset, liability) should be in symmetry, i.e., if one govemment recognizes an asset,
the other government recognizes a liability. Since the State is recording the last state aid
payment in the subsequent fiscal year, the school district can not recognize the last state aid
payment on the GAAP financial statements until the year the State records the payable. Due to
the timing difference of recording the last state aid payment, the General and Special Revenue
Fund balance deficits do not alone indicate that the district is facing financial difficulties.

NOTE 17. FUND BALANCES

Committed

General Fund - As of June 30,2011, $379,814 is for year-end encumbrances.

Capital Projects Fund - As of June 30,2011,514,626 is for year-end encumbrances.

Restricted

General Fund - As of June 30,2011,$4,442,426has been reserved in the Capital Reserve
Account (5614,625 of the total Capital Reserve has been appropriated and included as

anticipated revenue for the year ending June 30,2012); $820,759 has been reserved in the
Maintenance Reserve Account; $308,410 has been reserved in the Emergency Reserve
Account; $500,000 has been reserved in the 2009/2010 Tuition Reserve Account
designated for subsequent year's expenditures and $500,000 has been reserved in the
2010-2011 Tuition Reserve Account.

Capital Projects Fund - On June 24,2010, the School District issued $11,800,000 of
general obligation bonds. The bonds were authorizedby a proposal adopted by the Board
and approved by the voters of the school district at a special election held on December 9,
2008. The bond issue was approved by the voters for renovations to the Waren E. Sooy
Elementary School. As of June 30,2011, the legally restricted amount was $1,528,796.

Debt Service Fund - As of June 30,2011, $168,285 has been legally restricted for future
debt service payments.
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Unassigned

General Fund - As of June 30,2011, the unassigned fund balance of the general fund was
a deficit of $361,174. The deficit is a result from the delay in the payment of state aid
until the following fiscal year.

Special Revenue Fund-As of June 30,20II, the fund balance of the special revenue
fimd was a deficit of $48,032. The deficit is a result from the delay in the pa¡rment of
state aid until the following fiscal year.

NOTE 18. CALCULATION OF EXCESS SURPLUS

In accordance with NJSA l8A:7F-7, as amended, the designation for Reserved Fund Balance -
Excess Surplus is a required calculation pursuant to the New Jersey Comprehensive Educational
Improvement and Financing Act of 1996 (CEIFA). New Jersey school districts are required to
reserve General Fund fund balance at the fiscal year end of June 30 if they did not appropriate a
required minimum amount as budgeted fund balance in their subsequent years' budget. The
excess fund balance at June 30,2011 is $0.

NOTE 19. RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

Property and Liabilit]¡ Insurance - The District maintains commercial insurance coverage for
property, liability and surety bonds. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 the District did
not incur claims in excess of their coverage and the amount of coverage did not significantly
decrease.

New Jersey Unemplor¡ment Compensation Insurance - The District has elected to fund its New
Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the "Benefit Reimbursement Method".
Under this plan, the Diskict is required to reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund
for benefits paid to its former employees and charged to its account with the State. The District
is billed quarterly for amounts due to the State. The following is a summary of Diskict
contributions, employee contributions, reimbtrsements to the State for benefits paid and the
ending (deficit) balance of the District's expendable trust fund for the current and prior two
vears:

Fiscal District Employee Interest
Year Contributions Contributions Earned

2010-2011 $50,000 47,219 4,448
2009-2010 25g,gtg 64,911 1,613
2008-2009 0 50,992 1,276

Amount
Reimbursed

Ending
Balance

262,329
398,2r9
147,936

(237,557)
(75,060)
(42,362)
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NOTE 20. ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY
:

: ttre District is heavily reliant on local property taxation to fund the District operations and debt
service. Property taxes funded37.25% of the Districts 2010-2011 governmental operations.

, NOTE 21. DEFERRED BOND ISSUE COSTS

r The costs associated wittr the issues of various bonds are expensed in the governmental funds in

; F" year the bonds are issued, but are capitalized in the Statement of Net Assets. The bond
; issuance costs are $248,962 and the accumulated amortization is 534,725 resulting in an
i unamortized balance of $214,237.

NOTE 22. RESTATEMENT OF BALANCES

; Certain accounts have been restated in the prior year to conform to categories established in the
current year. The amounts are immaterial to the financial statements.

NOTE 23. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

The following Interfund balances remained on the balance sheet at June 30, 20ll:

Fund

General Fund
Special Revenue Fund
Latchkey Fund
Food Service Fund

Receivable Payable

$ 335,606

$ 268,372
12,966

54,368

$ 335,606 $ 335,606

NOTE 24. FOOD SERVICE ENTERPRISE FUND

Approximately $50,000 will be needed from the Food Service Enterprise Fund to replace
cafeteria equipment for the 20ll-2012 school year.
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REVENUES:

Local Sources:
Local Tax Levy
Tuition
Transportation Fees from Other LEA'S
lnterest eamed on eapital Reserves
lnterêst eamed
Miscellaneous

Total - Local Sources

State Sources:

Equâlizat¡on Aid
Categorical Special Educat¡on Aid
Spec¡al Education Eritraordlnary Aid
Non Public Transporlât¡on Aid
TPAF Wage Freeze Allocation
On-behaff TPAF Non-Contributory lnsurance
On-Beha[ TPAF Pênsion Contribut¡ons-Post Retirement

Medical Contr¡butions (non-budgeted)

Reimbursed TPAF Social Securily Contribut¡ons (non-budgeted)

Total - State Sources

Federal Sources:
Med¡ca¡d Re¡mbursement and unrestr¡cted federal funds
Education Jobs Fund

(¡
(^¡

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetary Comp¡rlson Schedule

General Fund
For tho Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2Oll

Original Budget
Budget Transfers

$15,873,706 0
11,110,1U 0

300,000 0
0

Total Revenues

27,283,840

10,013,456

1,263,188
129,363

F¡nal
Budget Actual

15,873,706 15,873,706
't't,110,134 11,004,932

300,000 108,608
0 38,259

78,290
0 474,787

27,283,840 27.578.5820

11,406,007

55,538
441,41',1

496,949

39,t86,796

Exhiblt C-l

Variance
Under(Ovêr)

Final to Actual

0
(105,2O2t)

(1s1,392)
38,259
78,290

474,787

294,742

0

0
(27,389)

5,220
3,932

58,330

1,238,927

't,431,112

2,710,',t32

(8,s03)
(368,841)

(377,744\

10,013,456
1,263,188

129,363

0

10,013,¿156

1,263,188

101,974
5,220
3,932

58,380

1,238,927
1,431,112

14,1 16,139

46,635
72,570

119,205

, 11,¡106,007

55,538

496,94.9

0 39,186,796 41,813,926 2,627,130

(continued)



EXPENDITURES:

Current Expense:
Regular Programs - lnstruction:

Salaries ofTeachers:
Preschool

K¡ndergarten
Grâdes 1-5

Grades 6€
Grades 9-12

Regular Pfograms - Home lnstrudion:
Salaries of Teachers

Purchased Techn¡cal Services
Other Purchased Services
General Supplies
Te)dbooks
Other Objects

Total Regular Programs
(Jl
Þ 

Speclal Educat¡on- lnstruct¡on:
Leaming and/or Language D¡sab¡lities

Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for lnstruct¡on
General Suppl¡es

Total Leaming and/or Language Disabilities

Behavioral Disab¡lities

Salaries of Teacher
Other Salaries for lnstruction

General Suppl¡ôs
Textbooks

Total Behavioral Disabilities

Multiple Disabilities
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salar¡es for lnstruction

General Supplies
Textbooks

Totâl Multiple Disabilities

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTR¡CT
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

General Fund
For tho Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Original Budget Final
Budget Transfers Budget

Purchased Profess¡onal-Educat¡onâl Services
Regular Programs - Undistributed lnstruclion:

Purchased Professionâl-Educational SeNices

155,353
829,653

3,614,875

3,259,384
5,278,993

58,000
48,000

(40,000)

(98,s00)
(1 18,200)

(es,s50)
29,150

16,450

54,850

1,450

3,000
2,200

196,165
3't7,750
(15,200)

253,565

(38,100)

0
100

(38,000)

(22,000)

1,000
(2,o2o)

(580)

(23,600)

131,600
15,300

0- 
(4,600)

142,3æ

477,O98
95,500
26,900

13,843,756

215,281
47,086

1 15,353

731,153
3,496,675
3,163,834
5,308,143

74,450
102,850

1,450

3,000
2,200

673,263

413,250
11,700

14,æ7,321

177,181
47,086

100

224,367

336,429
68,277

4,1s0
4,320

413,176

192,881
132,s08

8,700
5,600

339,689

Act¡al

Exhlbit C-l

262,367

358,429
67,277

6,170
4,900

436,776

61,281
117,208

8,700
10,200

197,389

1'13,583

730,600
3,484,389
3,157,191
5,308,097

74,'168

102,149

1,159

3,000
1,ß4

631,274
247,512

7,668

13,902,29

,t62,208

45,632
58

207,898

336,288
67,æ2

3,031
0

406,881

't92,O't5
132,143

7,754
861

332,773

Veriâncê
Under(Over)

Final to Actual

1,770
553

12,286
6,643

46

291

0

736
41,989

125,734

. 4,032

195,067

14,973
1,454

42

16,469

242
701

141

715
I,1 19
4,320

6,295

866
365
946

4,739

6,916

(continued)



Resource Roorn/Resoufce Center
Salaries of Teachers
Olher Salaries for lnstruction
General Suppl¡es
Textbooks

Total Resource Room/Resource Center

Autism
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries Íor lnstfuction
Generâl Suppl¡es
Texlbooks

TotalAutism

Preschool Disabillties - Part-Timè
Salaries ofTeaclìers
Other Selaries for lnstruction
General Supplies

Total Speciel Education - lnstruct¡on

Bilingual Educetion - ¡nstruct¡on:
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for lnstrudion
General Supplies

Total Bilingual Educet¡on - lnstruclion

Schod bponsored Cocunicular Ac{iv¡ties - lnstrudion:
Salaries
Purchased SeMces
Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total School Sponsored CocuricularActivities - lnstruction

School-SÞonsored Athletics - lnstruction .

Salaries
Pufchased Services
Supplies and Materials

Total School-Sponsored Athlet¡cs - lnstruct¡on

Total lnstrucl¡on

ur(¡

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

General Fund
For the Fiscat year Ended June 30. 20ll

Var¡enceOriginal Budget F¡nal Under(Over)Budget Transfers Budget Actuâr Finar to Actuâr

1,520,587 (129,000) 1,391,5S7 1,979,s23 11.664't36,088 (54,400) 81,688 80,696 ss2
11,400 (1,300) 1O,IOO 6,989 3,111
12,900 (9,000) 3,900 2,7A7 1,113

1,680,97s (193,7æ) 1,487,275 1,470,39s 16,880

202,528 (70,900) 131,628 130,650 978
208,487 (12,000) 196,487 166,757 2s.7so

6,800 0 6,8æ 5,021 1,779
50005000500

418,315 (82,900) 335,415 302,428 32,987

18,000 37,500 55,500 55,361 139

3,013,822 (158,400) 2,885,422 2,775,736 79,686

334,867 (38,700) 296,167 296,058 109
45,943 25,000 70,943 70,703 240
6,600 612 7,212 5,651 1,561

387,410 (13,088) 374,322 372,412 1,910

102,461 50,000 152,461 150,415 2,U6
19,200 19,200 3,850 15,350

75,200 (47,800) 27,4OO 6,114 21,286

9,000
9,000

0 9,000 8,951 49
37,350 46,350 46,307 43

150 150 103 47

Exhlb¡t C.l

'177,661 37,500 215,16'1 161,9U 53,257

202,500 0 202,500 189,984 12,516
15,500 15,500 12,534 2,966

130,000 (15,500) 114,500 95,874 18,626

332,500 0 3i:ì2,500 298,392 34,108

17,755,',149 119,577 17,A74,726 17,510,698 364,028

16,100 16,100 1,525 14,575

(continued)



Und¡stributed Expenditures - lnstruction:
Tuition to Other LEAS Wth¡n the State - Regular
Tuition to Other LEAS W¡thin the State - Spec¡ât
Tuition to Co. Voc. School Distrist - Regular
Tu¡tion to CSSD & Regional Day Schools
Tu¡tion to Private Schools for the Disabled - Within Stâte
Tuition - State Facilities

Total Undistributed Expenditures - lnstrucl¡on

Undistr¡büted Expend¡tures - Attendance and Social Work:
Salaries
Purchased Proessional & Techn¡cal Serv¡ces
Other Purchâsed Services
Suppl¡es and Materials

Total Und¡str¡buted Expend¡tures - Attendance and Soc¡al Work

Und¡stributed Expenditures - Hêalth Serv¡ces:
Selaries
Purchased Profess¡onal and Technical Services
Other Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials

Total Und¡stributed Expend¡tures - Health Services

Und¡stributed Expenditures. Other Supporl Services -
Students - Related Services:

Salaries
Purchased Profe$Ìonal-Educetional Services
Suppliès and Mater¡als

Total Undisttibuted Expend¡tures - Other Support Services -
Students - Related Services

Und¡stributed Expenditures - Other Support Services -
Students - Extraordinary Serv¡ces:

Salaries
Purchased Professional Educational Serv¡ces

Supplles and Materials
Other Objects

Total Undistributed Expenditures - Other Support Serv¡ces -
Students - Extraodinary Serv¡ces:

¡Jr
ctr

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetãry Comperlson Schêdulo

General Fund
For th6 Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2O1t

Orig¡nal Budget
Budget Trânsfers

24,M (9,600)

15,000
51,122 8,600

239,000 119,900
190,000 (60,000)

, 53,521 0

557,643 73,900

66,943 16,200
30,000
3,300

2,800

71,743 49,500

. 226,462 800
22,OOO 5,100

400 738
14,085 (2,138)

28aU7 4,500

210,141 (51,000)
40,000 28,700

Final
Budget Actual

14,400 674
15,000 14,622
s9,722 59,672

358,900 358,838
130,000 7s,559
53,521 53,521

631,543 562,886

85,1¿13 85,032
30,000 29,309
3,300 0

. 2,800 1,196

121243 115,537

227,262 227,193
27J00 25,818
1,138 757

11,947 11,260

267,447 265,028

159,141 155,499
68,700 58,240

300 194

Êxh¡b¡t C-î

Variance
Under(Over)

Final to Ac{ual

13,726
378
50
62

il,441
0

68,657

't11
691

3,300
1,6tX

5,706

69
1,242

381
687

2,419

3,642
10,460

106

2s0,141

283,764

1,000

300

(22,000) 22A,141 213,933 14,208

15,000 298,764 297,129 1,635
85,680 85,680 79,055 6,625
5,000 6,000 5,001 999

2,720 2.720 2,716

108,400 393,164 383,901 9,263284,7il

(continued)



Und¡stributed Expenditures - Other Support Services -
Students - Regular

Salaries of Other Professional Stâff
Salaries of Secretarial and Cler¡cal Assistants
Olher Purchased Profess¡onal & Technical Services
Other Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials

Total Undisk¡buted Expenditures - Other Support Services -
Regular

Und¡str¡buted Expend¡tures - Other Support Serv¡ces -
Studentrs - Sp€cial:

Salar¡es of Other Professional Stafi
Salar¡es of Secretarial ånd Clerical Assistants

. Purchâsed Professional Educational Serv¡ces
Other Purchased Profess¡onal and Technical Serv¡ces
Miscelbneous Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

(tt Total Undlstr¡buted Expenditures - Other Support Services -
{ Students-Spec¡al

Undistr¡buted Expenditures - Other Support Services -
lmprovement of lnstructionâl Services

Purchased Professional Educational Services
Supplies ând Materials

Total Undislr¡buted Expenditures - Other Support Services -
lmprovement of lnstructional Serv¡ces

Undistr¡buted Expenditures - Educationa¡ Media Services -
Sehool Library

Salaries
Purchæed Professionel & Technical Serv¡ces
Supplies and Materials
Other ObjecÍs

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetery Comparison Schedule

Gêneral Fund
For the FÉcal year Ended Jun6 gO, 2011

Original
Budoet

654,828
148,287

38,400

841,51s

1,001,352
. 92,904

80,æ0

25,600

Budget
Transfers

(86,0æ)
23,700

1,725
1,270

(6,070)

(65,375)

(72,000)

0
20,000
40,970

700
(8,825)

975

Final
Budoet

568,828

171,987
'1,725

't,270
32,330

776,140

929,352
92,904

100,000

40,970
700

16,775
975

Total Undistr¡buted Expenditures - Educational Med¡a Seru¡ces -
School Library 286,759

Undistributed Expenditures - hstructional Staff Tra¡ning Services
Salâries of Superuisors of lnstruct¡on 483,4U
Salar¡es of Secretar¡al and Clerical Assistants 43,993
Other Salaries

I,199,856

_3ï_

563,463
164,029

1,725
1,203

18,309

748,729

885,839
79,281
91,057
28,201

510
15,945

674

Purchæèd
Other Purchased Services
Suppl¡es and Materials
Other Objects

Exh¡b¡t C-l

Total Undistributed Expenditures - lnslruct¡onal StaffTraining Srvc 532,427

Variance
Under/(Over)

Final to Actual

5,365
7,958

0
67

14,O21

27,411

¿1:ì,S13

13,623
8,943

12,769
190
830
301

(18,180) 1,181,676

24,OOO 24,OOO

6,300 6,300

30,300 30,300

(86,700) 150,559
19,500 19,500
17,148 66,6¿18

6,500 6,500

0

237,259

49,500

Services

1,101,507 80,169

23,690 310
5,841 ¿159

29,53't 769

150,522 37
19,386 114
s7,532 9,116
6,500 0

(43,s521

97,370
0

630
(700)

700
800
800

3,500

I,500

243,207

580,804
43,993

630
2,800

700
2,300

800

99.600 632.027

233,9¿10

565,571
¿Kt,993

630
2,280

300
1,577

9,267

15,233
0
0

520
400
723

745 s5

615,096 16,931
(continued)



Undistr¡buted Expend¡tures - Support Serv¡ces - G6n. Adm¡n.
Salaries
Legâl Serv¡ces
Audit Fees
Arch¡tectural/Engineer¡ng Services
Other Purchased Profess¡onal Serv¡ces
Communications/Telephone
BOE Other Purchased Serv¡ces
Other Purchased Serv¡ces
General Suppl¡es
Miscellaneous Expenditures
Membership Dues and Fees

ql
óo

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2Oll

Total undistr¡buted Expenditures- support services- Gen. Adm¡n. 8oo,2o7 s9,296 Bsg,so3 7s1,gz1 ioB,l82

Undistributed Expenditures - Support Serv. - School Admin.:
Salaries of Prlncipals/Ass¡stant Princ¡pals
Salar¡es of Secretârial and Clerical Assistants
Purchased Professionâl and Technical Services
Other Purchased Servicgs
Suppl¡es ând Materials
Other Objects

VarianceOriginal Budget Finat Under4over)Budget Transfers Budget Adual FinaltoActuàl

272,107 6,000 278,107 265,017 13,090230,000 37,000 267,000 196,606 70,39420,000 0 2o,ooo 19,230 720
51,400 51,¡100 49,1U 2,256

18,000 (10,900) 7,1OO 468 6,632
74,000 49,675 123,675 115,633 8,042
1,100 (1,000) 100 o 1oo

144,500 (64,425) 80,075 77,416 2,65s
4,300 4,300 4,040 260

16,s00 (9,754) 6,746 3,631 3,115
24,OOO (3,000) 21,000 20,126 874

Total Undistributed Expenditures - Support Serv. - SchoolAdmin. 1,648,056 '123,924 1,771,980 i,646,984 124,996

Undistr¡buted Expenditures - Central Services
. Salaries
Purchased Prþfessional Services
Purchased Technical Services
Misc. Purchased Services (40ù500 series)
Supplies and Materials
lnterêst on Lease Purchased Agreements
Miscellaneous Expenditures

Total Undistributed Expend¡tures - Central Services

1,085,822 (90,000)

340,2U 200,300
10,000 E,700

132,500 3,300
66,400 ,t,824

Exhlbtt C-f

300,230 9,500
25,000 (2,000)
15,000 8,700
7,000 1,000

30,s00 7J8e
22,AOO 6,000
3,000 0 3,000 1,345 1,655

¿103,530 30,388 433,918 358,197 75,721

gçts,e22

540,534
18,700

135,800
68,224

971,',t24

540,389

0
73,991
51,4',t4

309,730
23,000
23,700
8,000

37,688
28,800

24,698
145

l8,7oo
61,809
16,810

293,802
19,9¿t3

23,396
6,260

12,924
s27

15,928
3,057

304
1,7&

24,7U
28,273

(continued)



Und¡stributed Expenditures - Adm¡n. lnfo Technotogy
Salar¡es
Purchasèd Techn¡cal Services
Other Purchased SeMces (40G5OO series)
Supplies and Materials

Total Undistr¡buted Expenditures - Admin. lnfo Technology

Undistributed Êxpenditures - Required Maint for School Facilitìes
lnterest Eamed on Mâintenance Reserve
Salar¡es

Cleaning, Repa¡r, and Maintenance Serv¡ces
General Supplies

Total Undistr¡buted Expenditures - Required Maint for
School Fâcil¡ties

Und¡stributed Expenditures - Operation and Maintenance
of Plant Serv¡ces:

Salaries
. Salar¡es of Non-lnstructional Aides

Purchased Professlonal and Technical Services
Cleening, Repair, and Ma¡nlenancè Services
Other Purchased Property Services
lnsurance

Miscellaneous Purchased Services
Generâl Suppl¡es
Energy (Natural cas)
Energy (Electricity)

Total Undistributed Expend¡tures - Operation and Maintenance
of Plant Services

Undistributed Expend¡tures - Care and Upkeep of Grounds
Salaries
Clean¡ng, Repair, and Ma¡ntenance Services
General Supplies
Other Objects

Total Undistr¡buted Expenditures - Care and Upkeep
of Grounds

(¡
rú'

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetary Compar¡son Schedule

Gêneral Fund
Forthe Flscâl year Ended June 30,2oll

Original

Budoet

141,239
¡ltt,500

20,000
181,860

386.599

1,000
559,170
136,000
30,500

726,670

644,993
167,335

6,000
36,200

190,884
163,000

400
213,0ü)
4¡15,000

935,000

2,801,812

188,350

75,000

Budget

Transfers

45,000
12,900

(200)
(20,000)

37,700

(1,000)
1,500

850,.t00
l5l,300

I,001,900

(1s,soo)
4,000

(2,600)
36,700

(s4,67s)
(30,000)
13,090
7,690

(82,000)

5,100

(162,19s)

(e00)

16,000
(8,230)

2,090

s,960

Final
Budget

't86,239

56,400
19,800

161,860

424,299

560,670
986,100
181,800

1,728,570

625,493
171,335

3,400
72,900
96,209

133,000
13,490

220,690
363,000
940,100

2,639,617

187,¿Í50

16,000

66,770
2,090

272,310

17AJ45
56,¿t51

3,220
58,841

296,657

0

193,003
249,7't2

_ 66,484

509,199

609,216
162,728

0
59,222

40,958
126,804

10,9¿15

159,735
238,840
789,421

2,197,869

1A7,422

15,699

40,317

1,381

244,8',t9

Exhlb¡t C-l

Variance
Under(Ove0

Final to Actual

8,094
(51)

16,580

, 103,019

127,642

0
367,667
736,388

115,316

1,219,371

16,277
8,607
3,400

13,678

55,2s1
6,196
2,545

60,955
124,160
150,679

M1,748

28

301

26,453
709

27,49',1263.350

(continued)



Undistr¡buted Expenditures - Security
Purchased Professional & Techn¡cal Services
Clean¡ng, Repair, & Maintenance Serv¡oes
General Supplies

Total Und¡stributed Expenditures - Security

Total Operation & Maintenance Services

Und¡stributed Expenditures - Student Transportation Services:
Salaries of Non-lnstruGt¡onal A¡des
Sal for Pup¡l Transp (Between Home and School)-Reg.
Sal for Pup¡l Transp (Betwsen Home and School)-Sp Ed
Sal for Pupil Transp (Other lhan Between Home & School)

' .Other Purchased Professional and Technicål Services
Clean¡ng, Repa¡r, and Maintenance Services
Leâse Purchase Payments - School Buses
Contracted Services - (Between Home and School) - Vendors
Contracled Servicês - (other than Betw Home/Sch) - Vendors
Contracted Services - (Between Home and School) - Jo¡nt Agr
Contracted Sefvices - (Special Educat¡on) - Joint Agr
Contracted Services - Aid ¡n Lieu of Payments-Non Pub Sch
Contracted Serv¡ces - Aid ¡n Lieu of Payments-Charter
M¡scellaneous Purchased SeNices
Suppl¡es and Materials
Other Objects

ctìo

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetary Comparison Schedulê

General Fund
For thê Flscal Yeer Ended June 30, 2Oll

Var¡anceOriginal Budget Final Under(Over)Budget . Transfêrs Budget Actual Final to Actual

165,000 28,000 193,OOO 190,481 2,51s
4,000 (300) 3,700 o 3,700
1,000 900 1,900 1,0s2 808

170,000 28,600 198,600 1s1,s73 7,027

3,961,832 877,265 4,839,097 3,143,460 1,695,637

Totaf Und¡str¡butedExpenditures-StudentTransporlationserv. 1,683,006 28,7A9 1,7'11,795 1,576,219 135,5Z6

lnterest Eamed on Current Expense Emergency Reserves

Unallocated Benefits:

Sociâl Security Contributions
Other Retirement Contribut¡ons - Regular
Unemployment Compensation

Workmen's Compensation
Heâlth Benefits
Tuition Reimbursement
Other Employee Benef¡ts

Total Unalloceted Benêt¡ts

153,284
637,460
246,130

3,000
4,000

25,000
101,282

12,000
8,000

39,CÐO

95,000
355,850

2,500
(22,300)
(28,300)

0
0

8,000
28,929
(6,000)
10,400
23,000
22,OOO

(8,884)

884
1,295

(2,735',)

Exhibit C-l

1,000 (1,000)

't55,7U
615,160
217,830

3,000
4,000

33,000
130,211

6,000

18,¿m0

23,000
22,OOO

30,116
884

96,295
353,1 1 5

488,000
¿t50,000

500,000

494,000
5,890,460

62,300
194,020

8,078,780

155,718
574,141
175,089

2,O87

3,851

3',t,7',t7

130,211
0

15,225
22,868
21,222
26,901

884
92,775

323,380

(54,r00)
90,5()0

(444,o711

0
(680,120)

(2,000)
(s0,000)

(1,179,7911

66

41,019
42,741

913

149
1,283

0
6,000

3,',175

132
778

3,215
0

3,520
29,735

433,900
540,500
s5,929

494,000
5,210,340

60,300
104,020

6,898,989

0

433,691

539,912
51,145

476,341
4,999,257

32,080
39,004

6,571,430

209
588

4,7U
17,659

211,O83

28,220
65,016

327,559

(continued)



On-behalf TPAF Non-Corìtributory lnsurance
On-Behelf TPAF Pens¡on ContÌibutions-post Retirement

Medical Contributions (non-budgeted)
Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contribut¡ons (non-budgeted)

Total on-behalf contribulions

Total Undistributed Expenditures

Totâl CuÌrent Expense

Capital Outlay:
lnterest Depos¡t to Câpital Reserve

Equipment

Grades 1-5
Grades 6-8
Grades 9-12

Special Education
Und¡stributed Expenditures:

lnstruc{ion
Support Sêrvices - lnstruc{¡onal Stafi
Admin. lnformation Technology
Requ¡red Ma¡ntenance for School Fâcil¡ties
Undíslr. Expendltures - Custod¡al Services
Undistr. Expend¡tures - Care and Upkeep of Grounds
Undistr. Expendilures - Security

Total Equipment

Facilities Acqu¡sit¡on and Construclion Serv¡côs
Architectural/Eng¡neer¡ng Services
Construction Services
Other Objects

Total Fâcilities Acquisn¡on and Construct¡on Services

Total Assets Acqulred under Câpital Leases (Non-Budgeted)

Total Capltal Outlay

Or
l-¡

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetary Comparlson Schedule

General Fund
For the Flscal year Ended June 30, 20il

Or¡ginal Budget Finat
Budget Transfers Budget

0

21,250,805

39,005.954

1,000

25,000
10,000
10,000

0

193,664

31t,241

(r,000)

(23,600)

(5,000)

22,325
2,475

38,500
14,087
40,216

(16,100)

237,OOO

21,700
(30,000)

301,603

533,671

0

0

533,671

0 2,728,369

21,444.469 21,342,725

39,319,195 38,853,423

16,100

13,400
40,358

1 14,858

50,000
132,578

182,578

1,238,927
1,431,112

Exhlblt C-l

Var¡ance

Under(Over)
Final to Adual

(58,330)

(1,238,927)
(1,43'1,1121

(2,728,3691

101,744

465,772

0

1,400

5,000
32,325
2,475

38,500
M,OA7

40,216

237,000
35,100
10,358

416,461

533,671
50,000

132,578

716,249

298,436 994,274 1,132,710

0
0

32,008
2,475

14,595
't3,117

38,950
0
o

35,067
0

138,212

53Ét,671

47,605

.132,578

713,854

23,905
970

1,266
0

237,OOO

33
10,358

280,249

0

2,395
0

2,395

1,¡too

5,000
317

0

151,700 (151,700)

1,001,766 130,944

(continued)



TÍansfers to Charler Schools

Total Expendlturcs

Other Financ¡ng Sources (Uses):
Capital Reserve Trânsfer to Debt Serv¡ce
Capital lease proceeds

Total Other Flnanc¡ng Sources {Uses}

Excess of Revenues and Other Flnanclng SourGes
Over Expendlturcs and Other Financlng Uses

Fund Balances, July 1

Fund Balânces. June 30

ct'r
t\)

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
BudgetaÌy Compadson Schêdule

General Fund
For the Flscêl year Ended June 30, 2oll

Originat
Budoet

14,983

39.319.373

(798,362)

Budget Final
Transfers Budget

0 14,983

.1,147,515 ¡t{1,¡t66,888

(798,362) 0 (798,362) (646,662t 151,700

(930,e3s) (1,'t47,s15) (2,078,454)

6,326,754 0 6,326,754

_______$8399Ã19_ ___ff42É1q _____l¿1!@_

Recap¡tulat¡on of Fund Balance:

Comm¡tted Fund Balance:
Yeer End Êncurnbrances

Relricted Fund Balance:
Tu¡tion ReseNe-2009/10 D$igneted for Subsequenl Yfs Expend
Tuilion Reserve-2o1 U 2O1 1

Ma¡ntenance Reserve
Emergency Reserve
Capital Reserve Designated for Subsequent Yea/s Expend¡tures
Capital Reserve

Unassigned Fund Balance

Reconciliation to Governmenlel Funds StaterrFnts (GAAP):
Last State Aid Payment Not Recogn¡zèd on GAAP Bâsis:

Fund Balance per Govemmental Funds (GAAP)

Variance
Under(Over)

Acluâl FinaltoActual

10,406 4,577

39,865,595 601,293

(798,s62) 0
151,700 151,700

o98,362)

Exhlb¡t C.l

1,301,669 3,380,123

6,326,79 0

_____lp8A23_ ________3É8123_

379,814

500,000
500,000
820,759
308,410
6',t4,625

3,827,801

677,O'14

7,628,423

(1,038,188)

_______$9É99&q_

(concluded)



REVENUES:
Federal Sources:

Education Jobs Fund

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Undistributed Expenditures - Other Support Services -
Students - Spec¡al:

Salar¡es of Other Professional Staff

Total Undistributed Expenditures - Other Support Serv¡cÆs -
Students - Special

Undistributed Expenditures - Required Maint for School Facilit¡es
Salaries

Total Undistr¡buted Expend¡tures - Required Maint for
School Facilities

,Undistributed Expenditures - Operation and Maintenance
of Plant Services:

Salaries

Total Und¡stributed Expenditures - Operat¡on and Maintenance
of Plant Services

Total Expenditures

Ctl(¡)

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetary Compar¡son Schedule

Educat¡on Jobs Fund
For the F¡scal Year Ended June 30, 201 I

Or¡g¡nal Budget
Budget Transfers

441,411

41,151

4'l,151

349,778

389,778

10,482

10,4A2

----___$441,411_

Final
Budget Actual

44't,4,11 72,570

0 41,151

0 41,151

0 3a9.77A

0 389,778

0 10,482

o 10,482

Exhibit C-lb

Variance
Under/(Over)
F¡nal to Actual

(368,841)

(368,841):

41,151 0

41,151

23,268 366,510

23,268 366,510

8,151 2,331

8,151 2,33'l

_____12.5¿j,_ _368,84!_



REVENUES:

Local Sources:
Local Programs

T.otal - Local Sources

State Sources:
Preschool Education Aid
Nonpublic aid

Total - State Sources

Federal Sources:
Title I

l.D.E.A., Part B
Vocational Education
Other

Total - Federal Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
lnstruction

Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for lnstruction

oìè

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Special Revenue Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June lO.2011

Original Budget Final
Budget Transfers Budget

39,931 39,931

0

General Supplies
Textbooks
Other Objects

Total ¡nstruct¡on

EXPENDTTURES (GONT'D):
Support Services

Purchased Professional. Technical and Educational Services

480,320
456,694

937,014

512,407
554,924
41,683

129,809

1,238,823

2,175,937

39,931

0
(45,'t24)

(45,124\

424,162
661,490

10,201
36,744

1,132,597

1,127,404

113,115
7,561

s37,027
(80,715)
(12,737)

39,931 24,776

480,320 340,510
411,570 382,749

Actual

24,776

Exhibit G-2

Variance
Under/(Over)
Final to Actual

(1s,15s)

891,890

936,569
1,216,414

51,884
166,553

2,371,420

3,303,41

492,181
393,912

1,376,616
213,185

42,403

379,066
386,351
839,589
293,900

55,140

1,954,046

723,259

698,694
1,136,119

51,884
126.12s

2,012,822

2,760,957

335,223
329,774

1,229,907
153,355

41,192

(1s,155)

(139,810)
(28,821)

6,357 6,357 3,269
570,608 2,524,654 2,092,720 431,9U

(168,631)

(237,875\
(80,2e5)

0
(40,428\

(358.598)

(4f2,384)

156,958
64,138

't46,709
59,830

1,211
3,088

(continued)



Salaries of Program Directors
Salaries of Other professional Staff
Salaries of Secretaries and Clerical Assistants
Personal Services - Employee Benefits
Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Other Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials
Travel

Total support seryices

Facilities acquisition and construclion services
lnstructional equipment
Non-lnstructional equipment

E Total facilltles acquisition and construction services

Exhiblt G-2
TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

Budgetary Gomparison Schedule
Special Revenue Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2011

VarianceOriginal Budget Final Under/(Over)Budget Transfers _ Budqet Actual Final to Actuál0go
227,434 227,434 215,932 11,50228,326 (3,817) 24,509 o 24,509't2,000 48,868 60,868 48,371 ,t2,4g7

82,427 160,567 242,994 222,981 20,61314,038 78,426 92,464 58,531 33,93385,000 (73,367) 11,633 8,237 3,396

-F 

4#--59#r-E!x_#----Te4sõ-
114,646 114,646 114,646 0

4,000 4,000 o 4.ooo

Total expenditurcs

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

0 118^646 1ì8.646 114,646 4p00

$0

2,175,837 1,127,404 3,303,241

---o- 00
2,760,957 542,384

(concluded)



Required Supplemental Information



Exhibit G-3

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Requ ired S upplementary I nformation

Budgetary Gomparison Schedule
Notes to Required Supplementary lnformation

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 201 1

Note A - Explanation of Difference between Budgetary lnflows and
Outflows and GAAP Revenues and Expenditures

General Special
Fund Revenue

Sources/inflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "revenue" from the budgetary

comparison schedule

Difference - budget to GAAP:
Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that
encumbrances are recognized as expenditures, and the
related revenue is recognized

Prior year
Current year

State aid payment recognized for GAAP statements in the

$41,813,926 2,760,857

current year, previously recognized for budgetary purposes. 1,229,438 46,531

State aid payment recognized for budgetary purposes, not
recognized for GAAP statements until the subsequent year. (1,038,188) (48,032)

Total revenues reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances -
governmental funds

Uses/outflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows" from the

budgetary comparison schedule

Differences - budget to GAAP:
Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but
not received are reported in the year the order is placed
for budgetary purposes, but in the year the supplies
are received for financial reporting purposes

Prior year
Current year

J2,999re_ J,Il9,0s1

39,865,595 2,760,857

1,237
(14,542)

1,237
(14,542)

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances
governmental funds 199,999,99þ_ J,l!1,552

66



SPEGIAL REVENUE FUND

The Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources
(other than expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to
expenditures for specific purposes.



REVENUES:

Local Sourcês
State Sources
Federal Sources

Total revênues

EXPENDITURES:
lnstruction:

Salâries ofteâchers
Other salaries of instrucl¡on
Pußhased profess¡onal, technical and educaüonal svcs
General suppl¡ës' Terdbooks
Other obiects

Total instruction

Support sêrvices:
Salafies of prooram directors
Salafþs of other profêss'tonal staff
Salades secretaries / clerical
Pèrsgnal seMces- emploveè bsnefits
Purchased professional and technical services
Other purchased seMces
Supplies and matêrials
Tnvel

Total support seMces

Facil¡tles acqu¡s¡t¡on and construction servic.s
lnstfuct¡onal equ¡pment

Total fac¡l¡t¡es acquþ¡Uon and construct¡on serv¡ces

Total expenditures

ctr

Walmart HSA Music Watmart HEF HEF HEF HEF HEFTeache¡ of lhe Calculator program lnstruct¡onal Dimension to Traveling Art Wi Are Fit Uteracv One BookYear Grant Grant Donation supolies Education Grant S";;t õ;"ì Grant Maoaz¡ne Grant Author Grant

$648 3,172 1.410 5OO 3,120 1,292 692 1,815 1.039

------ 648- ------ãf7| 
- 

r¡-iõ- -------Tõõ- ----J20- 

---T"" 
------õe-t 1¡îs- -------Tõãõ-

800 t.BtS 1,0006¿18 3,172 1,410 500 Z,g2O 1.292 692

--- 648 -----3.172 11410 ------- S00 3læ ----- 1.ZgZ --------92 ----- lSrS 

- 

rJoO

TOWN OF HAMIIONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Special Revenue Fund

Comb¡ning Schedule of Rêvenue and Expenditures
Budgetary Bas'ts

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED June 30, 2oll

39
---o---_00__--ooo----_--o---------o-39

o - o o o o o 
--- 

o 

-o 

o

$648 3,172 1,410 500 3,120 1,292 692 1,815 1,039

Exhiblt E-1

Page I

(@ilinurd)



REVENUES:

Local Sources
Stale Sources
Federal Sources

Toial revenues

EXPENDITURES:
lnstruc$on:

Salaries of teachers
Other salaries of instruclion
Purchased professionâ|, technical and educalional svcs
Generâl supplies
Textbooks
Other oblects

Total inslrucl¡on

Support serv¡ces:
Salafies of proqram directors
Salaries of other proÊssional stafi
Salafies secretafiês / clerical
Personal serv¡ces- emplovee benefits
Purchased profess¡onal and lechnical services
Olher purchased services
Supplies and materials
Travel

Toùal support gerv¡ces

Facllit¡es acquþ¡t¡on and construct¡on serv¡ces
lnstruclional equipment

Total fac¡lities acguisjtlon and construct¡on sewices

Total e)eenditures

TOWN OF HAMTUIONTON SCHOOL DISTR¡CT
Special Rovenuê Fund

Combin¡ng Schodule of Revenue and Expenditures
Eudgêtary Bas'ts

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED Juno 30, 2oll

HEF HEF HEF HEF HEF Tota|Solidwork Graphic Desion V¡deo phvs¡cs Control M¡ll Hammonton l_ocai NonÞubl¡c
supplv Grant Granr Grar¡t Grant Brass Grant Èunã" TeÍLooks

3.325 1,648 568 3,569 1,978 24.776
41,192

--- 332t 

-le¡¡- 

-------i6-8- 356õ- --i37a ------ ulÊ ----11:['-

or
00

2.s25 i,64a s6B r,e7' rî,3åå
41,152

2.825 1"648 ----- 568 0 1978 ------2066S 41192 16oi56- ------- o

39

soo 

- 

o -----------o o o 539 

- 
o

3,569 3,569

o --- o ----- o 3.569 O 3569 0

3,325 1,648 568 3,569 1,978 24,776 41,192

Nonpublic Aux¡liary Æd
Compensatory

Education Transportat¡on

160,756 25.979

-- 160-¡¡e- 

- 

2587e

Exhibit Ê-1

Page 2

160,756

25,979

-------------õ- 2re79

160,756 25.979

(@ntinu€d)



REVENUES:

Local Sources
. State Sources

Federal Sources

Total rcvenues

EXPENDITURÊS:
lnsfuction:

Salafies of teachers
Other salafies of ¡nstruct¡on
Purchased professional, technical and educational svcs
Genèral supplies
Tèxtbooks
Other obiects

Total¡nstruct¡on

SuDport seMoes:
Salaries of program directors
Salaries of other professional staff
Salaries secrelaries / clerical
Personal sêrv¡ces- êmployee beneÍts
Purchased professional and technical services
Other Þurchased services
Supplies and maÈrials
Travel

Total support serv¡ces

Fac¡l¡ties acquisltion and construction services
lnslructional equ¡pmenl

Total fac¡l¡ties acqu¡s¡t¡on and construction sêrvices

Total exDenditurcs

or(o

ÆedAid Nonpublic Preschool Totâl carrwver ïflèlE:<am¡naüo@NonpublicNonpublicHómeEducat¡onstateÏitlel.IitlelPartA
classification s¡eech lnslructlon Nursinq EsL tnstruction nid Fd¡¡ partA partA ARRA

$4E.967 24,252

------B-:õ¡ ------ãø

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Spocial Rovenue Fund

Combln¡ng Schedule of RevênuE and Expånditurcs
Budgetary Bas¡s

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED Junê 30, 2011

48"967 24.252

29,878 50,243 768 714 34o,5lo 723.259
491,813 111,507 89.475

------teãz¡- ---mI¡t --------Ì68 ------ iï¡----3405r0 ----7w 4erãfu iriso7- ----e¿-iB-

217,028 217,028 2,040 50,390123,482 123,482 183,ô28 3,38129.876 768 714 265,335 93,702 51.199
0 I I,161 1A,A24 6,321

41.192
o 747 2,522

æ3i8 o 768 --------7ß 340510 -- 647"037- 289238 74585 ----60p92

0
0 118,516 1,749 22,893
0
0 23,113 290 5,E6550,243 76.222 47.027
o 12,754 31.333 625
0 1.165 3.550
0

--- 
o so.z43 o 

-o 

-- o -----7W ----ø.s7ã- s6.sz2 2eis3

---o-00--0-------0_--------õ-o----------o-0

29,878 50,243 768 714 340,510 723,259 491,813 111,507 89,475

24,252

oo

a"

48,967 24,252

Exhlb¡t E-'l
Pagê 3

(@ntinued)



REVENUES:

Local Sourcês
State Sources
Federal Sourc,es

ïotal revenues

EXPENDITURES:
lnstruc{¡on:

Selaries of teachers
Olher salaries of instruction
Purchased profêss¡onal, technical and educal¡onal svcs
General supplies
Textbooks
Other obiects

Total insfrucl¡on

Support seMces:
Salâfies of program directors
Salaries of other professional stafi
Salaries secreta¡ies / clericål
Personal sefvices- emplovèe benefib
Purchased profebsional and technical services
Other purEhased seN¡ces
Suppl¡es and materials
Travel

Totâl support sefvices

Fac¡lities acquis¡tion and construct¡on seruices
lnstfuctional equipment

Total fac¡lities acqu'ls¡tlon and construct¡on sôrvicas

Total expenditures

Exhibit E-1
TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL D|STR|CT pase4

Spoc¡al Rêvenue Fund
Combinlng Schêdule of Revenue and Expenditures

Budgetary Basis
FOR THE FTSCAL YEAR ENDED Junê 30, 2oi1

cafryover 
_Ti$e ! Tiüe ilt "ïtril,* carryover carryove¡ |.D.E.Aïtle r rfle r schoor Ensrish Ensr¡sh |.D.E.A. |.D.E.A. |.D.E"A. |.D.E.A. |.D.E.A. paft - Bschool school lmprovement Langua0e LanguaEe Paft- B paft- B paft- B paft- B part- B preschæl

lmDrovement lmprovement ARRA Enhancemenl enñanò. ÀilRA 'a";¡" 
Bas¡c preschool preschool ARRA

$5"146 ¿tg3 2s,s3l 2,827 4o2,Bgz s64,255 126,290 zz,g24 1e,816
--- o ------37¡6- 

---?æ- - 25"53i- ------Tø ----@.æ2 -T6425s- --Tñ.N --zzø 

- 

0 1e318

\¡o

--------- o ----- 5.446 ---------T--- n.825 -- 1323 18õ:255 5ot3æ --72a2W - 22.s24 0 - 16576

420 1,143 744 70,467

33 1,563 44 7,835
40,325 56,A72

716

o 0 ------- 453- 2J06 1504 118527 56"8i2 0 ---- 0 o o

103,950 3,142

o ----------õ--------t o o ----læ850 o o 0 o 3J42

5,446 ¡153 25,531 2,827 402,ss2 564,255 126,290 22,924 0 19,818

5,4¡16

19,283
154,909 507,383 126,2U 22,9243,542 1,323 25,W ô 16.676



REVENUES:

Local Sources
Stale Sources
Federal Sources

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
¡nstruclion:

Salaries of têachens
Other salaries of instruction
Purchased profôssional, technical and educational svcs
General supplies
Textboolß
Other ob'[rcts

Total instruction

Suppoft services:
Salariês of pmoram directors
Salaries of other Drofessional stafi
Salaries secretaries / clerical
Personal serv¡css- emplovee benefits
Purchasèd professional and technical serv¡ces
Olher purchased serv¡ces
Suppl¡es and matefials
Travel

Total support servhes

Fac¡l¡t¡es acquþit¡on and construction sErvlces
lnstücl¡onal equipment

Total fac¡l¡t¡æ acquis¡t¡on and construction servlees

Total expenditures

Exhibit E-l
TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL D|STR|CT pase5

Spec¡al Rêvgnue Fund
Combining SchedulE of Revenue and ExpendítuÞs

Budgetary Bas¡s
FOR THE FTSCAL YEAR ENDED June 30. 20if

CarryoverCarryover Carrvover T¡ge lV, partA Total
T]tlê ll Tt¡e ll Tiüe ll TÜe ll perkins Druo Free FederatPartA PartA partD partD vocat¡onar sc'hoors 'Funds 

Totårs

24,776
723,25989,21? 2,198 286 I,515 51,884 4,556 2,012,822 2.012.822

-----W -----llõt ------ zs6- --ìJ-ìE- -----sr,ãg4 ------;sE6- --ñffø 
-l¿7-jñfnr

65,765 f13,tg5 a3S.Z23
206,292 329,774

4,556 960,957 1,225,907
787 ¿16,870 136,302 1S3.35S

o 41-,1s2
3,269 3,269

----6s.76t 

- 

o -- o - 7s7 46370 
---?.sE6 

-l,42s¡iã- ---2.æ21:æ

00
215,932 215,932

e,6z8 4sJ71 48.32?1,149 286 145,659 222.38113,819 SB,Sgf SB.S311,049 72A 1,029 8,237 8,ß7
039

n.447 2J9S -------ã86 -------728 rO29 0 476.i30 553391
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Exhibit E-2

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Preschool Education Aid
Budgetary Basis

Forthe Fiscal Year Ended June 30,20ll

Budgeted

$317,066
138,745

455,811

24,509

24,509

217,028
123,482

340,510

0
0

0

100,038
15,263

1 15,301

0
24,509

24,509

Actual Variance

EXPENDITURES:
lnstruction:

Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for lnstruction

Total instruction

Support services:
Salaries of Program Directors
Salaries of Secretarial/Clerical Assistants

Total support services

Total expenditures $480.320 _340,q!_ __1_99q19_

CALCULAT¡ON OF BUDGET & CARRYOVER

Total Revised 2010-11 Preschool Education Aid Allocation $480,320
Add: Actual ECPA Carryover (June 30, 2010) 0

Add: Budgeted Transfer from the General Fund 2010-1 1 0
Total Preschool Education Aid Funds Available for 2010-1 1 Budget 480,320

Less: 2010-1 1 Budgeted Preschool Education Aid(lncluding
prior year budgeted carryover) (480,320)

Available & Unbudgeted Preschool Education Aid Funds as of June 30, 2011 0

Add: June 30,2011 Unexpended Preschool Education Aid 139.810
2010-11 Carryover - Preschool Education Aid/Preschool $139,810

2010-11 Preschool Education Aid Carryover Budgeted for Preschool Programs 201'l-12 $O
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GAPITAL PROJEGTS FUND

The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for the acquisition and construction of major
capital facilities and equipment purchases other than those financed by proprietary funds.



TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
CapitalProjects Fund

Summary Statement of project Expenditures
Year Ended June 30, 201 I

Expenditures and OtherOriginal __ l¡nanc¡nq Uses to DaNumber lssue/Proiect Title Oãte Appropriations -TEr years _leqt''nt year

Totals

WES Elementary Renovations/Alterations $13,690,341 11,949,549

{
u,

_$ig6gq=41--l1p4e-;5f

Exhibit F-î

187,370

Unexpended
Balance

1,543,422

187,370 1.543.422::



Exhibit F-2

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Capital Projects Fund

Summary Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budgetary Basis

Forthe Fiscal Year Ended June 30.2011

Revenues and Othef Financing Sources:
lnterest earned

Total revenues and otherfinancing sources

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses:

Purchased professional & technical services
Construction services
Transfer to debt service fund

Total expenditures and other financing uses

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures and other financing uses

Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

20,437

20.437

34,942
152,428
20,437

207,807

(187,370)

1,730,792

$1,543,422
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Revenues and Other Financing Sources:
State Sources-EDA Grant
Bond oroceeds and transfers
lnterest earned
Premium on BANS

Expenditures and Other Financ¡ng Uses:

Purchased professional & technical services
Land and lmprovements
Construction services
Equipment purchases
Transfer to debt service fund
Transfer to general fund

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
financing sources over (under) expenditures
and other financing uses

Exhibit F-2a

Revised
Authorized

13,680,341 13,680,34i 13,680,34;
6,451 20,437 26,888

86.725 86,725

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRIGT
Gapital Projects Fund

Summary Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budgetary Basis

Warren E. Sooy School Renovations and Alterations
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 201 1

Prlor Periods Current Year Totals Cost

Total revenues and other financing sources 13,773,517 20í37 13,793,954 13,680,341

989,282 34,942 1,024,224 1,005,000

10,960,267 152,428 ',t1 ,112,695 12,67s,34',1

6,451 20,437 26,88;
86,725 86,725

Total expenditures and other financing uses 12,042,725 207 ,8O7 12,250,532 13,680,341

Additional project information:
Project number 1960-055-09-1000

Grant Date N/A
Bond Authorization Date 1219108
Bonds Authorized $13,680,341
Bonds lssued $1 1,800,000
Orisinal Authorized Cost $13,680,341
Additional Authorized Cost $0
Revised Authorized Cost $13;680,341

Percentage lncrease over Original
Authorized Cost 0.00%

Percentiage Completion 89.55%
Original target completion date 9/30/10
Revised target completion date 9/30/10
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Proprietary Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the district's board is
that the costs of providing goods or services be financed through user charges.

Food Services Fund - This fund provides for the operation of food services in all
schools within the school district.

Latchkey Ch¡ld Gare Fund - This fund provides for the operation of school chitd
supervision.

THIS SECTION HAS ALREADY BEEN INCLUDED IN STATEMENTS 84, 8.5 AND 8.6.



TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Enterprise Funds

Combining Balance Sheet
June 30,20ll

Food
Service

Exhibit G-l

Latchkey
Program 2011

145,027 901,131

1,769
40,041
2,003
9,773

1,654

$656,104

1,769
40,041

349
9,773

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts Receivable:

State
Federal
Other

lnventories

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets:
Equipment
Accumulated depreciation

Totalfixed assets

Totalassets

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY:

Current liabilities:
lnterfund accounts payable
Accounts payable
Deferred revenue
Compensated absences payable

Total current liabilities

Unreserved retained earnings
lnvestment in fixed assets

Totalfund equity

Total liabilities and fund equity

708,036

588,794
(440.990)
147,804

855,840

146,681

7,850
(7,850)

0

__39ÉqL

854,717

596,644
(448,8401
147,804

1,002,521

54,368
39,965

8,592
18,672

12,866

7J02
2,654

67,234
39,965
15,694
21,326

121,597

586,439
147,804

22,622

124,059

144,219

710,499
147,904

734,243 124,059 858,302

__ g9g 9_ _LfgÉll- _1_Ð92,521
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TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Enterprise Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Retained Earnings/Fund Balance

For the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2011

Exhibit G-2

2011
Food

Service Latchkev
OFERATING REVENUES:

Local Sources:
Daily sales- reimbursable programs

School lunch, breakfast, snack program
Daily sales non- reimbursable programs
Latchkey program revenue
Miscellaneous
Special Functions

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries
Employee benefits
Supplies & Materials
Depreciation
Cost of sales
Other

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues:
State sources

State school lunch program
Federalsources

National school lunch program
National school breakfast program
National school snack program
Food Distributíon Program

lnterest revenue
Total nonoperating revenues

Net income

Retained earnings, July I

Retained earnings, June 30

1.328.841 101.050

(566,700) (14,374)

9374,727
349,130

1,114
37,170

86,676

374,727
349,130

86,676
1,114

37,170

762,141

406,093
138,446
56,006
43,841

661,595
22,860

86,676

89,190
7,958
3,902

848,817

495,283
146,404
59,908
43,841

661,595
22,860

1,429,891

(581,074)

15,350

480,616
87,962

926
64,486
7,918

657,258

90,558

643,685

1,988
1,988

(12,386)

136,445

15,350

480,616
87,962

926
64,486

9,906
659,246

78,172

780,130

_fi734,243_ _124,059_ _gggÉ02_
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TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Gombining Statement of Cash Flows

All Proprietary Fund Types and Similar Trust Funds
For the Fiscal Year ended June 30. 20ll

Food
Service

$761,767
(4ee,806)
(664,143)

Latchkev

94,965
(83,14e)

(3,902)

Exhibit G-3

2011

856,732
(582,e55)
(668,045)

Gash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash payments to employees for services
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services

Net cash provided/(used) by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Cash received from state

and federal reimbursements

Net cash provided by noncapitalfinancing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Purchases of capital assets

Net cash (used) by capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
lnterest on investments

Net cash provided by investing activities

. Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, July 1

Cash and cash equivafents, June 30

Reconciliation of operating income/(loss) to net
cash provided/(used) by operating activities:

Operating income/(loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income/(loss)

to cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
Federal Commodities
Change in assets and liabilities:

Decrease/(lncrease) in accounts receivable
Decrease/(lncrease) in inventory
(Decrease)/lncrease in accounts payable
(Decrease)/l ncrease in interfund ace,ou nts payable
(Decrease)/lncrease in deferred revenue
(Decrease)/lncrease in compensated absence payable

Net cash provided/(used) by operating activities

576,892 576,892

(22,659)

(22^6591

7,918

(22,65e)

0 (22,659)

1,988 9,906

(402,182\

576,892

7,914 (394,268)

576,892

7,918

159,969

496, I 35

_$q5gg_

1,988

9,902

135J25

___1!þg_

9,906

169,871

631,260

_qq,lq!_

($566,700)

43,841
64,486

689
(3,495)
15,327
52,634
(1,063)
(7,e01)

@

(14,374) (581,074)

3,528

12,866
4,761
1,133

43,841
64,486

4,217
(3,4e5)
15,327
65,500

3,698
(6,768)

78
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F¡DUCIARY FUNDS

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for funds received by the school district for
a specific purpose.

Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the school district as an agent for
individuals, private organizations, other governments an/or other funds.

Student Activity Fund - This agency fund is used to account for student funds helc
at the schools.

Payroll Fund - This agency fund is used to account for the payroll transactions
of the school district.



TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Fiduclary Fund

Gombining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
June 30, 201 I

Exoendable Trusts

Exhibit H-{

2 634.014

Agency
Student
Activitv Pavroll Total

ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Payroll deductions and withholdings
Due to student groups

Total Liabilities

Fund balances:
Reserved - Expendable Trust
Unemployment
Scholarship

Total fund balances
Total liabilities and fund balances

286.723

5,513 734

285,989

0 5.513 286.723 2

262,329

Scholarship Unemplovment

$79,447 267,842

@.@
286,723

2 634.014

6,247
22

285,989

292,238

262,329
79,447

79,447 262,329
$79.447 267.842 ___299Jn_

0
2

341,776
634.014
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Exhibit H-2

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Student Activity Agency Fund

Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

Julv 1 , 2010 Additíons Deletions June 30, 201 1

ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents $272,717 698,136 684,130 286,723

Total assets

LIABILITIES:

Ace¡unts payable
Due to student groups

Total liabilities

@- eEJ36-- --69413õ- Æ

482 734 482 734
272,235 697,402 683,648 285,989

W- _cdT36-_-s4m-@.
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TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Scholarship Expendable Trust Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Ghanges in Fund Balance

for the Fiscal Year ended June 30,2011

Exhibit H-3

2011

$1,056
483

1,539

5,600

5.600

(4,061)

(4,061)

83,508

$79,447

OPERATING REVENUES:
Local sources:

lnterest on investments
Donations

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Scholarship payments

Total operating expenses

Operating (loss)

Net (Loss)

Fund balance, July 1

Fund balance, June 30
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TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Unemployment Expendable Trust Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures

and Ghanges in Fund Balance
for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2011

Exhibit H4

2011

OPERATING REVENUES:
Local sources:

lnterest on investments
Transfer in from generalfund
Contributions

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Payments of unemployment claims

Total operating expenses

Operating lncome

Net lncome

Fund balance, July 1

Fund balance, June 30

$4,448
50,000
47,219

101 667

237.557

237,557

(135,890)

(135,890)

398,219

$262,329
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Exhibit H-5

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Student Activity Agency Fund

Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements
Forthe Fiscal Yearended June 30,20ll

ECEC

Elementary School

Middle School

Middle School Athletics

High SchoolStudents

High SchoolAthletics

Totalallschools

Balance
July 1,2010

$20,368

36,484

63,604

983

149,714

1,082

Cash
Receipts

19,844

58,677

122,129

13

411,602

85,871

Cash
Disbursements

2'l ,964

59,664

120,695

37

397,209

84,079

Balance
June 30, 201 1

18,248

35,497

65,038

959

164,107

2,874

$272.235 698,136 683,648 286,723
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TOWN OF HAMMONTON SGHOOL DISTRICT
Payroll Agency Fund

Schedule of Receipts and Disburcements
Forthe Fiscal Yearended June 30,2011

Balance
Julv 1, 2010

$3,722

Additions

11,094,658

Deletions

11,098,378

Exhibit H-6

Balance
June 30, 201 1

2

- 2

--

ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents

Totalassets

LIABILITIES:

Payroll deductions
and withholdings

ïotal liabilities

_3:7n _!,q94É09_ _[9qq,378_

3,722

$3,722 1 1,094,658 11,098,378

11,094,658 11,098,378
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LONG-TERM DEBT

The Long-Term Schedules are used to reflect the outstanding principal balances of the
general long-term liabilities of the school district. This includes serial bonds outstanding
and obligations under capital leases.



Exhib¡t þl
TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

Long-Term Debt
Schedule of Ser¡al Bonds

June 30, 20ll

Date of Amount of Annual Maturities lnterest Belance Balance
lssue lssue Date Amount Ratê JUV l,2010 lssued Ret¡red June 30,2011

10t15t01 $2f,611,000 8t1t1'l
Various lmprovements

to D¡strlcd Facil¡ties

Refunding School Bonds

Refunding School Bonds

Reroof¡nq & addition
alterat¡ons to the
M¡ddle Scfiool

Various lmprovements to
W.E.S. Elementarv School

9/19/06 7,385,000 8t1t11
8t1t12

8t1t1ç16
8t1t17

8t1-18-22
8t1t23-24

811125
8t1t26
8t1t27
8t1t28
811129
8t1t30

3t23t10 10,890,000 8t1t11
8t1t12
8t1t13
811t14
8t1t15
8t1t16
8t1t17
8t1t18
8t'1t19
8t'U20
8t1t20
8t1tî¿1
8t1t22
8t1t23
8t1124
8t1t25

4t15t$8 2,614,000 7t15t11
7t15t12
7t15t13
7t15t14
7t15115
7t15t16
7l'15t17
7t15118
7t15t19
7t15t20
7t15t21

6t24t10 11,800,000 7t1tI1
7tlt12

7t1t13-15
711116-20' 7t1t21-23

. 711124
71112s26
7t1t27-28

7t1129
7t1130

2.OO0o/o

2.000%
2.000%
2.O00%
5.000%
5.000%
5.000%
5.000%
4.250o/o
4.500%
5.000%
3,125o/n

3.25OVo
5.000%
4.2500Á
4.000% 10,890,000

4.2500/o
4.250%
4,2500Á
1.250%
4.250%
4.2æo/o
4.250o/o
4.250Vo
4.250%
4.300%
4.300% 2,209,000

3.250%
3.250o/o

3.250o/o

3.500%
3.7500Á
4.000%
4.000%
4.000%
4.125o/o
4.125% 11,800,000

510,000 535.000

5,000 7,365,000

110,000 10,780,000

145,000 2,064,000

I 1.800.000

535,000

20,000
20,000
25,000
25,000
30,000
35,000

540,000
I,185,000
r,235,000
1,290,000
1,345,000
1,385,000

45,000
605,000
620,000
635,000
660,000
695,000
735,000
770,000
810,000
250,000
605,000
890,000
92s,000
965,000

1,015,000
555,000

155,000
160,000
165,000
170,000
180,000
185,000
195,000
200,000
210,000
220,000
224,000

450,000
450,000
500,000
550,000
600,000
600,000
650,000
700,000
750,000
800,000

4.7æolo

3.000%
3.2æ%
3.250%
4.200%
4.2000Á
4.z$o/o
4.2@%
4.2OOo/o

4.2000/o
4.2@oÁ
4.2æ%
4.200%

$1,045,000

7.370,000

-Tgs3î¡oõõ- ------T- ----i0-:õõõ- ---ãrE?¡õõ-
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Series

Chevy Minibus
Five Buses Refinanced
John Deere Mower
Two Buses
One Bus
Five Copiers
Two Buses

oo
Ol

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTR¡CT
Long-Term Debt

Schedule of Obligations under Gapital Leases
June 30,2011

lnterest
Rate Pavable

4.970o/o
4.890o/o

5.750o/o
4.500o/o
4.500o/o
5.472o/o
4.150o/o

Amount of Amount
Original Outstanding lssued
lssue Julv 1, 2010 Current year

$ 43,800
294,269
28,550

154,718
75,895
84,390

151,700

5,195
60,164
11,873

120,992
59,351
84,390

_ --1E17õo-re_ æ

Amount
Retired Outstanding

Current Year June 30, 2011

Exhibit l-2

$ 151,700

5,195
39,164
6,067

28,281
13,873
15,086
32,856

zt,ooo
5,806

92,711
45,478
69,304

118,844



REVENUES:
Local Sources:

Local Tax Levy

State Sources:
Debt Service Aid Type ll

Total - State Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Regular Debt Service:

nterest

i Redemption of principal

Total Regular Debt Service

Total expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

orHER FtNANCtNc SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other
Financing Sources Over (Under) Expenditures

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetary Gomparison Schedule

DebtSeruice Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 20ll

Original Budget Final
Budgçt Transfers Budget

295,696

295,696

1,752,8U

1,281,226
1,270,000

2,551,226

2,551,226

(7s8,362)

798,362

798,362

0

Fund Balance, July 1

Fund Balance. June 30

Recapitulation of Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (

Budgeted Fund Balance

1,457,168 1,457,168 0
1,457,168 1,457,168 0

Variance
Positive (Negative)

Actual Final to Actual

Exhibit l-3

295,696

295,696

1,752,864

1,281,226
1,270,000

2,551,226

2,551,226

(798,362)

798,362

798,362

0

295,696

295.696

1,752,864 0

$o

Under) Expenditures

$0

ft

n

1,'r39,830
1,270,000

2,409,830

2,409,830

(656,966)

(141,3e6)
0

(141,396)

(141,3e6)

141,396

818,799 20,437

818,799 20,437

rl

00

161,833

6,452 6,452

_:16-BzB-s ----tosZãs

161,833



Statistical Section

GovernmentalAccounting Strandards Board (GnSB) requires 10 years of
statistical information to be included in the CAFR. However due to the

change in the statistical requirements information was unavailable for all 10 years.



Gove¡.nmental activities
lnvested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total governmental activities net assets

Business-type activities
lnvested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestr¡cted

Total business-gpe activities net assets

District-wide
lnvested ¡n cap¡tal assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total district net assets

00
æ

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Net Assets by Gomponent,

Last Nine Fiscal Years
Unaudited

- 2o0r- --õõ4- 20õ5 - - ãõõSiscarYeariãBins!%àõ- - 2o0s --ã10- T
8,451,542 7,288,800 8,170,29.t 5,376,561 8,686,694 8,69s,671 19,768,759 8,040,999 8,417,26265,898 81,211 26,491 1]08Í20 104,355 501:350 6,098,093 Z,eSS,egO 8,283,302(?'?-!!,11? e.'!Z-s,,5.!?\ Q'913'I19r (?'119,1q+ (t,g2g,lg? q,2!9,1!?\ ll,lçz,zs¿t r+,¿oz,gsor (¿,uanzt
6.173,023 4.5e4.4ee_ 4,277,066 --iÞs;19¿ 3t6-ld'6- -54s-szg- -î;ão-4lg5q- ffi -@

-:: 

:::::

g24,677 286,989 264,520 290,695 274,464 257,926 212,338 168,986 147,804

119't?9 1e9'991 
-gj4-.--41€91 

?!9919 ?92,299 438,281 611,144 7ro,4e8444,006 486,323_ 452,0e7 582,2e7 5aZ,4B2 -565@ --o5õF --;ìãõ- B$fuoZ-:: ::::::

8,776,2',t9 7,575,789 8,434,811 5,667,256 8,961,158 8,953,597 19,981,097 8,209,985 8,565,066
65,898 81,211 26,491 1,708,420 104,355 501,350 6,098,093 7,393,396 8,283,302

(?,2?!,999r (2,9-7ç,1!y (3,7??,1?g) (?,159,187) (4,767,164t (2,e40,67e) (4,124,s13\ (3,851,806) (3,536,204)
6,617,029 5,080,822_ 4,729,163 2,217,489 4,298,Us _ Lreq -ã,s54,677-1TH,5ß W:::::

The District converted to GASB 34 in 2003, therefore only nine years are presented

Source: CAFR ScehduleA-1

J-1



Expenses
Govemmental activities

lnstruct¡on
Regular
Special educât¡on
Other special education
Vocational
Other ¡nstruction
Nonpubl¡c school programs
AdulUcontinuing education programs

, Support Serv¡ces:
Tuition
Student & ¡nstruct¡on related services
General administrative services
School adm¡n¡strative serv¡ces
Business administrative services
Plant operat¡ons and maintenance
Pupil transportat¡on

Capital Outlay
lnterest on long-term debt
Unallocated depreciation

Total govèrnmental activities expenses

Busi ness-type activities:
Food. service
Child Gare

Total business-type aclivities expense
Total distric't expenses

Program Rovenues
Govemmental act¡v¡ties;

Charges for serv¡ces:
Bus¡ness and other support seMces

Operating grants and contributions
Capital granb and contributions

Total governmental ac{iv¡t¡es program revenues

oo
r.o

Fiscal Year Endino June 30.
2003 2oo4 2005- ---2006! 2oo7 

-õõB- -õõd- 
Ã--ñ

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Changes in NetAssets, Last N¡ne F¡scal years

Unaud¡ted

14,860,674
2,769,398

893,617

15,842,897
2,725,604

783,862

1,415,031
3,083,693

898,367
1,946,151

631,894
3,023,223
1,438,876

1,355,965

16,287,798 18,343,s45
3,336,335 3,465,175

769,597 1,020,856

1,335,375
s,567,1 19

940,462
1,826,154

554,284
3,007,972
1,428,715

250,000
1,951,180

==.?7,,911 , e6,e84 s7,4o2 - 

-

32,374,703 34,350,648 35,280,06E 38,5E9,241 37,884,188 4'1,486,293 43,178,893 1s,564,197 4s,042J11

1,012,112 497,036
3,771,839 4,706,695
875,809 798,109

1 ,919,068 1,853,699
1,853,622 1,870,688
3,435,967 3,376,479
1,286,976 1,701,429

633.543 955,730

127,sg9 127,768 132,900 63,271 63,514 80,793 69,604

17,826,984
3,895,1 99

1,032,040

894,354 918,751 1,014,823 1,016,873 1,243,655 1,154,383 1,217,002 1,263,475

:ÆÆÆÆë
33,397,046 35,397,167 36,427,791 39,669,385 39,191,357 42,701,46933,397,046 s5.397.167 36.427.791 39.669.385 39.191.357 42.701.469
1,022,343 1,046,519 1,147,723 1p80j44 1,307,169 1,235,176

19,897,236
3,515,516

4,782,749 5,216,201 5,611,866 6,002,675 7,211,854 7,725,233

-îffi -5p16-po1 -T6'i1.866 6.oor"6if 
-2¡1ñ -?]@

657,085
4,191,705

908,488
2,486,401
I,1 59,896
3,21 9,932
1,067,345

1 ,439,113

1,064,603

20,399,302
3,616,097

1,237,852

J-2

783,618
4,723,O57

971,266
2,947,349
I,161,158
3,515,1 88
1,856,207

1,031,095

2l,833,680
3,685,328

1,338,591

689,630
4,896,573
1,060,889
2,635,498
1,294,613
4,464,788
1,899,21S

984,436

21,995,805
3,776,332

1,128,267

627,U4
5,467,848

s70,211
2,928,115
I,175,899
4,419,129
1,939,813

978,539

820,226
5,065,316

872,481
2,652,668

870,618
4,639,128
1,919,705

I,303,565

1,286,606
¿9,465,499:

87,504
1,350,sfe

_!9,715Jfj_

4,879,173 5,4U,158 5,474,420

@@@

1,328,841
101,050

1,429,891

_39,472W_



Businesstype activities:
Charges br serv¡ces

Food service
Child care

Operating grants and contributions
Câp¡tal grants and contribut¡ons

Total business type activ¡t¡es progr¿¡m revênues
Total district program revenues

Net (Expense)rRevenue
Governmential ac{ivities
Busi ness-type ac-tivities

.Total distr¡ct-wide net expense

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Assets
Governmental activ¡ties:

Property taxes levied for general purposes, net
Ta¡<es levied for debt serv¡ce

(o Unrestricted granb and contribut¡ons
O . Tuition Received

Author¡zed bond proceeds
Transportation fees from other LEA's
Premium on BANS
lnvestment earnings

M¡scellaneous income
,rCanceled accounts payable pr¡or year

Prior year tuition adjustment
Pr¡or year deprec¡ation adjustment

Total governmental activities

Bus¡ness-type act¡vities:
lnvestment eamings
Transfers

Toial business-type ac'tiv¡ties
Total district-wide

Change in Net Assets
Govemmental act¡vities
Bus¡ness-type act¡vit¡es
Total district

Unauclited

Fiscâl Year Endino June 30.
2003 2004 200s _ -006_

571,816 615,213 618,046 680,439
111,976 124,740 ,120,148 95,On
316,384 346,901 368,528 421.445

TOWN OF HAMÙIONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Changes ln Net Assets, Last Nine Flscal years

5,7e4925 6,303,055 6,718.583:

(27,5e1,954)
(22,167)

(27,614,121\

(2e,'t34,447)
40,335

(29,O94.112\

1,106,722

9,718,506 10,832,490
1,266,455 1,326,184
6,370,132 6,E85,518
7,894,502 8,458,423

6,143 19,337

1,404,450 33,9V1

2ooz 2oog -20õs - æìõ-- T

(29,668,202)
(41,001)

(29.709.203)

-

The D¡str¡ct converted to GASB 34 in 2003, therefore only nine years arc presented

Source: CAFR Schedulg A-2

ils6'sfi --@ @s, 1p6i3ã. u73"869- 1.4eBF!199,911 1,2,12,s62 1,257,4s7 1,367,583 1,4ß,e6s
_Ll_gg,qgg_

717,O6s 704,928
109,467 90,284
416,430 462.285

(32,586,s66)
118.767

l3-2¡6-6,?e-õt

26,66oJBB ?35sB2a 2qæ0,?6e @ #*--E-rq-U-E6s6Jr, 2e,s4i-686 4ipsoJoo

12,187,484 13,457,287
1,426,713 1,424,33'l
7,460,826 7,222,920
8,147,795 7,58',t,076

- 96,898

38,461 90,020

89,490 72,160

8,454,816

(30,672,334) (33,737,060)
(64,207) 22,321

(30,736,541) (33.714.740\:::

2,209 2,012

2,209 2.042

jq,gg?Ég _n,557,s35_

8,986,729

(931,766) (1,578,524)
(19,958) 42,347

737,ø05 775,785 762,141
95,832 85,874 86,676

534,146 612,206 649,340

(s5't,724\ (1,536,177) (3s1,6s9) (2,511,674\ 2,080,814 2,2'1s,919 15,440,409 (10,203,102) 1,s60,s89

14,s21,766
1,531,728
7,301,497
6,734,504

176,431

1,568,078

6,246,756

@e,2s9,72O) (39,880,299) (39,567,691)
80,9V7 122,690 68,266

(38,218,743) (39.757.409) 139.499.425)

6,775 13,433

'15,286,742
1,355,828
9,018,736
9,673,374

372,546

1 04,908

1 07,638

_-9&992_

(34,226\ 130,200 (49,815) s3,2O7 84,e30 12s,511

13,433 14,392 10,886
29,958,125 32,817,355 35,930,658

(317,433) (2,641,874) 2,130,62s 2,',t82,7't2 15,355,479 (10,332,613) 1,482,417

15,551,044
1,472,365

1 I,953,996
10,332,988
13,680,341

374,232

25,673
555,375

(2s4,815)

14,392

1s,754,360 15,873,706
1,457,1A8 1,457,168

12,612,680 11,993,921
10,935,928 11,OO4,932

(1 l,800,000)
268,006 108,608

86,725
82,818 136,986

148,088 474,787
1.913

10,886

3853 6,621 9906

-_53,999J_q?_ J999!N_ _tlpggll_

3,953 6,621 9,906



General Fund
Reserved
Unreserved

Total general fund

All Other Governmental Funds
Reserved
Unreserved, reported in:

Special revenue fund
Capital projects fund
Debt service fund
Permanent fund

Total all other governmental funds

(o
ts

2oo3 2004 
_ _æ01_ _r#tyear E!Êitg June_99. 

,õõs= 
_

The District converted to GASB 34 in 2003, therefore only nine years are presented

Source: CAFR Schedule B-l

1,072
127,376
128,448

141,908

(94,012)

16,930

TOWN OF HAMI,IONTOI.I SCHOOL DISTRICT
Fund Balances, Govemmental Funds,

Last Nine Fiscal Years
Unaudited

15,570
(129,824\
(114,254)

65,641

(89,r66)

18.495

64^82õ- 

-0E0t --i5ã.¡¡at 
--TF3634t --@

57,506
(796,362)
(738.856)

43,839

(8e,166)

(s,717'

1,147
(2,527,337\

_c,526,199t

1,707,273

(89,166)

18,835

48,638
(1,475,7071
(1,427,069)

623,129
318,301
941.424

72,632

(r 10,054)

53,763

-16-ø

257,409

(89,166)

34,288

2009

3,884,621
(775,524)

3,109,097:

2,232,790

(45,752)

_7]8i¡38-

2010 2011

J-3

5,706,667
(609,351)

__å99¿$_

1,737,244

(46,53r)

6,951,409
(361,174)

6,590,235

-lõm7rt t$-6Fã

1,711,707

(48,032)



Revenues
Tax levy
TuÍtbn charges
Transportation fees from other LEA'S
Authorizêd bond proceeds
Premium on BANS
lnterest eamings
Miscellaneous
Local sources
Stale sources
Federal sources

Total revenue

Expenditures
lnstruction

Regulâr lnstruct¡on
Speciel education inslrucl¡on
Olher instruction

Support Serv¡oes:
. Tu¡t¡on
Student & instruction related sêMces
Generâl administrâtive services
School Adm¡nistrâtive services
Plant operetions and ma¡ntenance
Pupil transportation
Business administrat¡ve seMces
Unallocated employee benefi ts

Capitaloutlãy
Debt serv¡ce:

Principal
lnterêst ând other charges

Tolal expond¡tures
Excess (Deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures

Other F¡nanclng sources (usæ)
Prior year tuition adjustment
Canceled accounts payable prior year
Câpital leases (non-budgeted)
lncr€ase in Maintenance Reserve
Sale ofAssets
Sale Leaseback of Textbooks
Bond proceeds
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other f¡nencing sources (uses)

(o
N

10,984,961
7,894,502

17,473
554,569

10,082,827
1,O58,724

30,593,056

't1,291,159
2,1W,418

751,2't9

,t,415,03'l

2,537,508
719,0ô3

'1,587,246
2,æ7,102
1,393,376

547,250
5,050,907

s20,322

13,953

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds,

Last Nlno Fiscal year€

Unaudlted

'12,158,674 13,614,197 14,881,618 16,053,4928,458,423 s,147,7e5- rr3å:3i3 6,734,504

19,337 38,461 9o,o2o 176,431
34,772 89,490 72,160 1,568,078

10,820,115
1,280,934

32,772,255

11,æ3,740
2,O54,334

623,794

11,616,328
1,456,3ô4

34,962,635

12,155,534
2,346,714

610,208

1,085,108 739,690
2,786,728 2,857,E50
681,934 606,880

1,417,330 1,435,A17
2,427,519 2,805,954
1,209,841 1,092,639
511,688 1,718,256

6,2¡15,165 7,307,014
1,579,184 509,985

368,953 424,953

Netchange¡nfundbalances 181,348 (312,558\ (674,616) (95,3¡t8) (335,336)

Debt servicè a6 a percentiage of
noncap¡talexpend¡tures 436% 4.47 4.12% 3.85% 3.86%

The D¡stricl converted to GASB 34 in 2003, therefore only nine years are presênted

Source: CAFR Schedule B-2

1,355,965 1,039,095 1,021,757
32,360,519 33,084,813 35,637,251

11,775,958'12;999,729
1,449,637 1,5't3,622

35,947,367 39,0.15,856

(r,767,463)

173,930

599,881
925,000
250,000

6,130

16,642,570
9,ø73,374

372,il6

't04,908

107,638

15,296,007
1,¡151,962

¿$Í1,649,005

14,263,O14
2,41't,048

789,801

530,869
3,454,749

858,373
2,O48,926
3,096,687
1,428,176

916,767
9,270,2Æ
1,240,6W

624,953
1,032,392

41,9ô6,702

13,578,326
2,397,877

755,111

3¿ÍÍì,318
3,432,870

705,599
r,335,520
2,542,269
I,397,610
1,674,694
7,626,474
1,0'18,824

414,953
1,003,470

38,656,715

17,023Á09 17,211,528 17,3æ,874
10,3i¡2,988 10,935,928 11,004,932

374,232 268,006 108,608
13,680,341

86,725
29,673 82,818 136.986

555,375 148,088 474,787
445 .t5,090 

24.821
15,495,103 14,066,255 15,324,843

-J$ry- 
4,015,534 2,118,677

58,829,187 46,829,972 46,5U,5n

13,æ2,222
2,64t,398

737,417

444,086
3,O'12,741

803,757
1,742,670
2,844,7U

844,777
936,4¡16

8,526,050
1,791,581

404,953
986,860

39,409,692

(363,836)

28,500

€12,558) (674,616) (2,709,348)

1,948,811 ---_-________-_ _--: 2,614,000 28,500

(1,565) (4,683) (28,552\ (84,287\

J-4

2,614,000
1,565 4,683 28,552 84,287

14,514,741
2,715,445

917,775

480,244
3,855,42

940,582
1,884.,748
3,981,895
1,ÆO,764
1,0d,4,682
8,526,385

12,198,1 l0

649,953

15,737,602
2,768,922

984,650

¿lÍì0,965

4,288,327
838,312

2,O55,120
3,868,452
1,571,381

907,958
9,598,780

983,768

6rtÍì,953

1,682,303 4,ô33,185 1,174,578 1,314,181

(294,81s)
1.913

315,003 151,700
500,000

92,'tO7 93,176 818,799
(92,1071 1e3,176) (818,799)
500,000 (294,815) 3.16,916 .t51,700

2JA23o3 4,338,370 1,491,894 1,465,881

4.O7% 3.94% 3.63% 5.4æ/o

16,000,702
2,775,736

832,708

562,886
3,987,763

751,321
1,862,916
3,143,460
1,57A,2't9

654,854
9,348,170
1,303,782

1,270,OW
1,t 39,8301,005,236 976,798

¡15,654,994 45,210,347



J-5
TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
General Fund Other Local Revenue by Source

Last Ten Fiscal Years
Unaudíted

FiscalYear
Ended June 30,

lnterest on
lnvestments

Tuition
Revenue

Transportation
Fees from other

LEA's Misc. Total

2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011

Source: District Records

30,158
19,975
17,772
38,461
90,020

176,431
104,908
29,673
82,818

136,986

3,066,240
7,894,502
8,458,423
8,147,795
7,581,076
6,734,504
9,673,374

10,332,988
10,935,928
11,004,932

96,898

372,546
374,232
268,006
108,608

144,870
428,917
34,102
89,490
72,160

1,568,078
107,638
556,220
148,088
474,787

3,241,268
8,343,394
8,510,297
8,275,746
7,840,154
8,479,013

10,258,466
11,293,113
11,434,840
11,725,313
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Fisal
YêâaE¡ded 

sidênnâr FâñRd ñ6rF rorarAss*s€d 
tË.J*- 

Nervaruaüon "JffiTih ,åtffiH,*tiJunê 30' Vâcant Land Rèsidênliâl Fâm Rq. ofÊfm commefc¡al lndEùial Aparbnent v"¡r. prcærù public t üllüæ. ra-¡1" . _ vatuêl

2002 20,998,600
2@3 22,368/W
20u 27,0s4,4@
2005 23,939,500
2006 21,518,¿100
2007 19,674,500
2008 19,334,600
2009 18,665,200
2010 18,359,200
2011 18,128,500

(o
Þ

463,866,100
484,670,600
500,554,4(þ
533,381,500
567,908,100
590,584,400
607,801,900
614,622,900
617,744,600
620,302,800

Solfca: Dbtrict records Til liEl 6umh¿ry & Municipal Tq Asssor

23,212,600
23,451,400
22,æ4,100
22,279,600
22,690,900
23,686,300
23,043,600
23,667,400
23,051,900
21,771,æ0

Real pþperly b Þqù¡Gd to be âssæ€d at some pe@n@e of lrue vãlu€ (tatu or market Eluè) 6tablbhed by Éch coutrty board oltaÞtion.

Re*es6me[t occuE when oÍdeGd by $ð County B@rd of Tæ$ôn

Tæble Valuê of iísôh¡neM lmplemenb and Equ¡pmeñt of Têlephone, TelègEph and M*engêr System Commni6

Tq Eþ8 are per ¡'l 00

¡
b

TOI¡ì|N OF HAfiilIOr\¡TON SCHoOL DEiTR|CT
Assêsæd Valuê .nd ActEl Value of T.Eble pþpe¡ty,

L¡l Tên Fbet yÉE
Itnedíaed

5,925,600
5,926,000
5,867,000
5,764,500
5,980,700
5,889,80O
5,842,900
5,821,900
5,877,300
5,726,000

126,982,900
130,540,600
142,115,200
'142,374,700
140,103,800
145,483,600
147,23É,7@
153,108,200
156,430,100
155,236,500

21,455,100
21,094,800
21,001,100
21,007,300
21,031,700
21,O31,7@
23,512,800
20,219,4@
20,219,40{)
20,290,700

8,382,600
7,685,100
7,692,700
7,708,100
7,708,100
7,732,900
7,752,900
7,732,900
7,732,900
7,732,900

670,883,500
695,736,900
726,868,900
756,¡t55,200
786,941,700
814,083,200
834,505,400
843,837,900
849,415,400
849,189,000

1,785,300 6,¡t04,009
- 6,646,577

7,442,300 ô,133,153
5,254,10,0 5,426,724
3,573,400 4,280,750
1,332,300 3,77A,A74
2,879,100 3,605,816
2,686,000 3,310,989
2,592,500 3,4$,780
2,2e,800 3,086,138

675,502,209
702,383,477
725,559,753
756,627,824
787,649,050
816,525,774
835,232,'t16
444,462,AA9
850,313,680
850,046,338

1.626 707,776,A33
1.731 740,052j30
1.876 e25,343,821
1.967 924,294,923
2.038 1,162,989,293
2.039 1,363,394,393
2.038 1,493,581,717
2.038 1,560,289,186
2.038 1,485,2æ,070
2.038 1,528,585,395



J-7

Basic Rate â
Obligation Debt

Service b
Atlantic
County

Total Direct and
Overlapping Tax

Rate

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates

Rate per $100 of Assessed Value
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Unaudited

Overlapping Rates
Town of

Hammon-
ton

Total
Direct

Fiscal
Year

Ended
June 30,

2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011

1.439
1.542
1.680
1.779
1.844
1.873
1.872
1.865
1.867
1.867

0.187
0.1 89
0.197
0.188
0.194
0.166
0.166
0.173
0.171
0.171

1.626
1.731
1.876
1.967
2.038
2.039
2.038
2.038
2.038
2.038

0.700
0.730
0.740
0.740
0.751
0.755
0.760
0.761
0.765
0.769

0.530
0.540
0.510
0.510
0.539
0.513
0.519
0.559
0.562
0.656

2.856
3.001
3126
3.217
3.328
3.307
3.317
3.358
3.365
3.463

Note:

Source: District Records and Municipal Tax Collector

NJSA 184:7F-5d limits the amount that the district can submit for a general fund tax levy . The levy when added to
other components of the districfs net budget may not exceed the prebudget year net budget by more than the
spending growth limitation calculation.

The district's basic tax rate is calculated from the A4F form which is submitted with the budget and the
Net valuation taxable.

Rates for debt service are based on each yeafs requirements.
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Kramer Beverage RE LLC
FR Grand Ave LLC
Alanlitt Exchange Hammonton LLC
Rt 206 lnc.
1001 Grand St lnvestors LLC
Hammonton Realty Associates LLC
Wal-Mart RE Bus Trst
Peachtree LLC
Wm B Kessler MemorialHospital
Bellevue Prop Group LLC

Zirbser - Greenbriar lnc
999 Grand Ave Assoc
Rt 206 lnc
Gladstone Corporation
1001 Grand Ave Assoc
Wal-mart Stores lnc
Peachtree LLC
Rucha Corp
Blueberry Crossing Vision Properties
Hammonton 1 LLC

Total

(o
cD

TOWN OF HAMMONTON
Principal property Tax payers,

Current Year and Nine years Ago
Unaudited

2011
raxabte % of Total

Assessed Rank District Net
Value [Optional] Assessed Value

6,500,000
6,500,000
6,200,000
6,065,300
5,254,600
5,186,100
4,764,700
3,440,600
2,6110,000

2,457,500

1

2
3
4
5
6
7
I
I

10

Source: District CAF'R & Municipal Tax Assessor
District Total Taxable Value

2002

Assessed Rank District Net

0.76%
0.76%
O.73o/o

0.71o/o

0.62%
o.61%
0.56%
0.40o/o

ag%
o.29%

_l9p08,gqq_

J-8

6,601,600
6,056,700
5,614,000
5,186,100
4,673,700
4,553,200
3,353,100
2,429,700
2,194,200
2,429,700

1

2
3
4
5
6
7
I
I

10

43,092,000

1.01%
0.92%
0.86%
0.79o/o

0.71%
0.69%
0.51%
0.37%
0.33%
o.37%

-56!ã



J-9
TOWN OF HANíMONTON

Propefi Tax Levies and Gollections,
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Unaudited

Fiscal
Year

Ended
June 30,

2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011

Taxes Levied for
the FiscalYear

Collected within the FiscalYear of
the Lew

Amount
Percentage Collections in

of Le)ry Subsequent Years

100o/o

100o/o

100o/o

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100o/o

9,961,945
10,984,961
12,158,674
13,614,197
14,881,618
16,053,492
16,642,570
17,023,409
17,211,528
17,334,874

9,961,945
10,984,961
12,158,674
13,614,197
14,881,618
16,053,492
16,642,570
17,023,409
17,211,528
17,330,874

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F form)

Note: School taxes are collected by the MunicipalTax Collector. Under New Jersey State
Statute, a municipality is required to remit to the school district the entire property tax
balance, which is the amount voted upon or certified prior to the end of the school year.
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Governmental Activ¡ties

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Ratlos of Oubtanding Debt by Type

Last Ten Fiscal Yeaß
Unaudlted

J-l 0

28,145,272 0.117o/o 32,851
28,420,108 Q.1180/o 33,623
26,858,048 0.1290/o 34,671
25,000,700 0.143% 35,826
25,747 ,115 0.144o/o 37,194
24,534,413 0.1570h 38,553
23,035,722 0.173o/o 39,923
22,138,167 O.177o/o 39,156
40,755,965 0.096% 39,156
32,897,143 O.119o/o 39,156

Bus¡ness-Type
Activities

Bond
Year General certificates Anticipation Percentage of
Ended Obl¡gat¡on of Ca¡ital Notes Personal

June 30, Bonds b Participation Leases (BANS) Capital Leases Total District lncome a Per Capita a

2002 21,722,624
2003 21,736,577
2004 21,519,7't8
2005 21,094,765
2006 23,263,812
2007 23,287,859
2008 22,662,906
2009 22,012,953
2010 33,314,000
2011 32,544,000

6A22,648
6,683,531
5,338,330
3,905,935
2,483,303
1,246,554

372,816
125,214
341,965 7,100,000
353,143

Source: Distr¡c{CAFR Schedules l-1, l-2

Notê: Detalls regarding the district's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the flnancial statements.

a See Exhibit NJ J-1 3 for personal income and population data. These ratios are calculated using personal income and
population fot the prior calendar year.

b lncludes Early Retirement lncent¡ve Plan (ERIP) refunding. Also ¡ncludes funds in the amount of $6,600,000 used to retire
Bond Ant¡cipation Notes.
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J-1 1

TOWN OF HAMMONTON
Ratios of Net General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Last Ten Fiscal Yean¡
Unaudited

General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Fiscal
Year

Ended
June 30.

General
Obligation

Bonds Deductions

Net General
Bonded Debt
Outstanding

21,722,624
21,736,577
21,256,000
20,881,000
23,100,000
23,174,000
22,599,000
21,999,000
33,314,000
32,544,000

Percentage of
Actual Taxable

Value a of
Property

3.22%
3.09%
2.93%
2.760/o

2.93o/o

2.840/o

2.71%
2.610/o

3.92%
3.83%

Per Capita b

1,701
1,685
1,618
1,554
1,716
1,721
1,683
1,639
2,643
2,582

2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011

Note:

21,722,624
21,736,577
21,256,000
20,881,000
23,100,000
23,174,000
22,599,000
21,999,000
33,314,000
32,544,000

a
b

Details regarding the district's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
See Exhibit NJ J-6 for property tax data.
Population data can be found in Exhibit NJ J-14.
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Governmental Unit

Debt repaid with property taxes
Town of Hammonton

Other debt
Atlantic County

Subtotal, overlapping debt

Town of Hammonton School District Direct Debt

Total direct and overlapping debt

oo

TOWN OF HAMMONTON
Ratios of Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt

As ofJune gO,2011

Unaudited

Sources: Town of Hammonton Finance Officer, Atlantic County Finance Office
and Utility Authorities

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the District.
This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those over,lapping governments that is borne by the residents and
businesses of Hammonton. This process recognizes that, when considering the District's ability to issue and repay long{erm debt, the
entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account. However this does not imply that
every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping payment.

a For debt repaid with property taxes, the percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property values.
Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of another govemmental unit's taxable value that is within the
district's boundaries and dividing it by each unit's total taxable value.

Debt
Outstanding

25,846,498

137,O77,871

Estimated
Percentage

Applicable a

100.00o/o

3.1Ùo/o

Estimated
Share of

Overlapping
Debt

25,846,498

4,249,414

30,095,912

32,897,143

__62,ee3,099_

J-12

100.00%
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TOWN OF HAMTilONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Legal Debrt Margin lnformation,

Last Ten Fiscal Years
Unaudited

Legal Debt Margin Calculatlon for Fiscal Year 2011

Equalized valuation bas¡s
2010 1$22,788387
2009 1,469,260,961
2008 1,542,619,737

Debt limit

Total net debt âpplicable to limit

Legal debt margin

Total net debt appl¡cable to the limit
as a percentage of debt limit

2002

26,355,485

21,722,624

_4,63¿!gl_

82.42o/o

Source: Abstract of Ratables and District Records CAFR Schedule J-7

Average equalized valuation of taxable property

Debt limit (4 % of average
Net bonded school debt
Legal debt margin

Fiscal Year

2004 2005 2006

28,654,197 31,437,254 36,632,790

21,256,000 20,881,000 23,100,000

7,398,197 't0,556,254 13,532,790
:=:1.:

74-18o/o 66.42o/o 63.060/o

2003

27,080,671

21,708,671

_5,372,000

80.16%

fAt

tA/3¡

IB¡
tct

IB-CI

4,534,669,585:
1,511,5s6,528

2007

31,904,554

23,'t74,OOO

__e,i30,i9f_

72.640/o

60,462.261,

27,918.261:

J-1 3

2008

51,366,979

22,599,000

__28,767,979._

44.OOYo

2009

57,358,0't3

21,999,000

_-g5,3sqglg_

38.35%

2010

59,620,835

33,314,000

_?9,306,999_

55.88%

20't1

60,462,26'.|

32,544,OOO

_n-p18,261

53.83%



TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten FiscalYears
Unaudited

Per Capita
Personal

lncome"

J-14

Unemployment

Rate d

5.60%
5.90%
5.10o/o

6.50%
6.50%
7.20o/o

7.20%
8.90%

15.60%
16.00%

Year

Personal
lncome

(thousands of
Population a dollars) b

2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011

Source:

12,666
12,769
12,897
1 3,1 38
13,441
13,458
13,466
13,424
12,604
12,604

416,091
429,332
447,152
470,682
499,925
518,846
537,603
525,630
493,522
493,522

32,851
33,623
34,671
35,826
37,194
38,553
39,923
39,156
39,1 56
39,1 56

a Population information provided by the NJ Dept of Labor and Workforce Development
b Personal income is calculated by multiplying per capita income by the population
b Per Capita lncome US Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis
d t-lnemployment data provicied by the Nj Dept of Labor anci Worktbrce Deveiopment
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Employer

Fo
UJ

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Frincipal Employers,

Gurrent Year and Nine years Ago
Unaudited

2011

Rank
Employees (Optional)

Source:
GASB requires this table to present the principal taxpayers for the current year and nine years ago, however the information was not available.

Percentage of percentage of
Total Rank Total

Employment Employees (Optional) Employment

1

2
3
4
5
o
7
I
I

10

2002

J-1 5

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.009/o

0.00%
0.00%



Function/Prooram

lnstruction
Regular
Special education
Other special education
Vocational
Other instruction
Nonpublic school programs
AdulUcontinu¡ng education progft¡ms

Support Services:
Tuition
Student & instruction rêlated services
General adminsitrative services
School administrative services
Business administrative services
Plant operat¡ons and maintenance
Pup¡l transportation

Special Schools
Food SeMce
Child Care

Total

J-16
TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

Full-t¡me Equivalent Dlstr¡ct Employees by Functionrprogram,
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Unaudited

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2oO7 2008 2oo9 2o1o 2011

184.6 168.7 170.0 186.6 186.6 202.0 206.0 213.0 213.0 208.038.2 40.0 47.O 48.8 48.8 64.0 81.0 95.0 96.0 86.0

1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 2.0

ÞoÞ

Source: District Personnêl Records

lnfomation for support services for 2002 and 2003 was not available.

43.0 43.0 57.0 49.5 36.0 42.O 45.0 42.O
4.0 4.0 4.5 4.0 4.0 6.5 6.0 4.8

23.O 23.0 22.5 22.5 31.0 32.5 33.0 24.O
9.0 10.0 1.t.0 9.0 9.0 1.1.5 1o.O 8.0

33.5 33.5 33.5 28.0 42.5 47.5 45.5 44.O
50.0 50.0 50.0 37.0 37.5 36.5 41.O 39.0

17 17 17 l8 17 18.5
111114

19.5 19.5
44



Fiscal Opêrat¡ng Gost per percentage
Year Enrollment Expendituresâ pupil Change

2002 2,491 9,686,033
2003 3,113 31,018,738
2004 3,254 32,149,468
2005 3,305 34,646,525
2006 3,362 37,633,511
2007 3,284 36,445,075
2008 3,266 40,435,198
2009 3,395 42,194,4s7
2010 3,434 44,385,958
2011 3,534 43,738,546

Fo(/l
Sources: Dlstr¡ct records, ASSA and Schedu¡es J-12, J-14

Note: Enrollment based on annual October dlstfict count.

TOWN OF HAMTIIIONTON SCHOOL DISTR¡GT
Operating Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Yearc
Unaud¡ted

PUD¡¡/Têacher Rat¡o

3,888
9,964 156.26%
9,880 -0.85%

10,483 6.10Yo
11,194 6.78Vo

11,098 -0.86%
12,381 11.56%
12,428 11.99o/o

12,925 4.400h
12,376 -0.0370

a
b
c

Operat¡ng e)<penditures equal total expenditures less debt sêrvice and capital outlay; Schedule J-2
Teaching staff ¡ncludes only full-t¡me equivalents of certificated staff.
Average daily enrollment and average'da¡ly attendance are obt¡ained from the School Register Summary (SRS).

Teachlng Staff
b Elementarv

224
21tl
399
418
43i3

43râ

461â

50ts

514
481

Averagê
Daily Average Daily % Change in Studenf

Middle Enrollment Attendance Average Daily Attendance
School High School (ADE) c (ADA) c Enrollment percentage

1:16 1t1O 1:11
1:'15 1:13 1:13
1i21 1:13 1:11
1:15 1:12 1:14
1'.15 1:12 1'.14

l:15 1:'12 1114

1:15 '1112 1i14
1:15 1:12 1:14
1:15 1:12 1i14
1:15 1i12 1i14

2,491
3,113
3,241
3,301
3,367
3,294
3,265
3,3ô2
3,420
3,521

J-17

2,341
2,90A
3,035
3,069
3,133
3,071
3,057
3,143
3,175
3,280

16.460/o

24.970h
4.11Vo
1.85o/o

2.OO%

-2.16o/0

-3.03%
2.06%
4.75Vo

7.84o/o

93.98%
93.41%
93.64%
92.g7Vo

93.0s%
93.22%
93.63%
93.49%
92.95%
93.16%



J-18

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schoo! Building Information

Last Slx Fiscal Years
Unaudìted

District BuildinE
Earlv Ghildhood LearninE Genter

(2001)
Square Feet
Capacity (students)
Enrollment

Elementarv
(1 973)
Square Feet
Capacity (students)
Enrollment

Middle School
(1 e65)
Square Feet
Capacity (students)
Enrollment

Hiqh School
(2002)

Square Feet

Capacity (students)

Enrollment

Qther
Transportation

Square Feet

35,365
500
492

97,240
1,464

875

109,950
1,604

643

190,641

I,850
1,355

8,000

35,365
500
497

97,240
1,464

846

109,950
1,604

648

190,641

1,850

1,293

8,000

35,365
500
499

97,240
1,464

648

35,36s
500
418

97,240
1,464

809

2010 2011

35,365 35,365
500 500
432 424

97,240 97,240
1,464 ',1,464

840 908

109,950 109,950
1,604 1,604
816 849

190,641 190,641

1,850 1,850

I ,303 1 ,319

109,950 109,950
1,604 1,604
827 815

190,641 190,641

1,850 1,850

1,335 1,387

8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000

Number of Schools at June 30,2011
Early Learning Center = 1

Elementary = 1

Middle School = I
High School = 'l

Other = 3

Source: District records, ASSA
Note: Year of original construction is shown in parentheses. lncreases in square footage and capacity are the

result of additions. Enrollment is based on the ennual Oc'tober district count.

lnformation for years 2002 through 2005 was not available.
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School Fac¡l¡ties Proiect # (s)

High School
Middle School
Elementary School
Early Childhood Center

Total School Facilities

Other Facilities

Grand Total

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRTCT
General Fund

Schedule of Requlred Malntenance for School Facilities
Last Ten Years

Unaudited

UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURE:S - REQUTRED MATNTENANCE FoR scHooL FActLtTtES
1 l-000-261-xxx

tso

sP993411
N/A
N/A

sP99343

2002

-õ770
72,126
27.741

2003 2004 2005 2006
0 73,057 139,242 111,121

87,360 42,134 80,305 65,948
74,066 35,:147 67,370 55,171
28,487 13,553 25,831 21,298

184,938 189,913 164,091 312,748 253,538 227,342 307,518 754,416 335,375 509,199

_1_q4,9!q_ _lqe,gÉ_ __lg1gg1_ __312,748_ _2saggg_ ___2n342_ __39¿g1g_ _J54,416_ _ær3zg_ _50e,1-gg_

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

-

99,644 1U,785 330,661 147,195 286.799
59,132 79,985 196,224 94,181 1't0,111
49,470 66,916 t64,l6l 56,446 74,101
19,097 25,832 63,370 37,553 38.188

J-19
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TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
lnsurance Schedule

June 30,20ll
Unaudited

Coverage Deductible

New Jersey School Boards Assoc. lnsurance Group -
Cape May Atlantic lnsurance Pool

Property Package
Envíronmental Package
Extra Expense
Valuable Papers
Business lncome/Tuition
EDP
Equipment Breakdown

General Liability

Automobile Liability

Auto Phys. Damage
Auto Phys. Damage

Workers' Compensation and Supplemental lndemnity
Workers' Compensation Part #1
Employers' Liability Part #2

Each AccidenUEach Employee/Limit by Disease

School Leaders Errors and Omissions Liability
Coverage A
Coverage B

Surety Bond - RLI lnsurance Company
Business Administrator - Barbara S. Prettyman

Source: District Records,

95,093,156
1,000,000

50,000,000
10,000,000
10,700,000

500,000
100,000,000

1 1,000,000

11,000,000

ACV Basis
Replacement Cost

Statutory

2,000,000

6,000,000
100,000/300,000

25,000

5,000
10,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
1,000
5,000

0

0

1,000
0

0

5,000
5,000
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NIGHTLINGER, COLAWTA & VOLPA
A Professío nal Association

C e rfifi e d P u b lic Ac c o u nta nts
991 S. Slack florse Pike

P.O.Box799
Williamstown, N, OBO94

November 10. 2011

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTINGAND ON
COMPLTANCE AND OTTIER. MATTERS BASED ON ANAUDIT OF

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
\MITII GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Education
Town of Hammonton School Ðistrict
Countyof Atlantic, New Jersey

We have audited the financial statements of the goveürmental activities, the business-tJ¡pe
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Board of Education of the
Town of Hammonton School Distric! in the County of Atlantic, State ofNew Jersey, as of and for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 201t, which collectively comprise the Board of Education of the Town of Hammonton's
basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated Ñovember 10,2011. V/e conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Audítìng Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; and audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Finance and Regulatory
Compliance, Deparhnent of Educatior¡ State of New Jersey.

fnternal Control Ovef Fin?ncial Reportine

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Town of Hammonton Board of Education's
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purposeof expressing an opinion on the
effec-tiveness of the Town ofHammonton Board of Education's internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Hammonton Board of
Education's internal control over financial reporting.

A deficienqt in internøl control exists when the design or operation of a confol does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course ofperforming their assigned functions, to prevent or detect
and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A møterial wealmess is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
entity's financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corected on a timely basis.

K-1

(Bs6) 62$3111
fax (856) 728-2245



Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described
in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identifr all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not
identiff any deficiencies in intemal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Hammonton Board of
Education's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing
an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters
that are required to be reported under Government Audítíng Støndørds and audit requirements as prescribed
by the Division of Finance and Regulatory Compliance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management,
the Town of Hammonton Board of Education, the New Jersey Department of Education and other state and
federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties. However, this report is a matter of public record and its
distribution is not limited.

Respectfu lly submitted,

Raymond Colavita, CPA
Licensed Public School Accountant
No.915

NIGHTLINGER, COLAWTA & VOLPA A ProfæsìanalAssocÍntion
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tç2
NIGHTLINGER, COLAVITA & VOLPA

A Professional Assocìation

C e ¡tif Íed Pu b IÍc Acco u nta nts
991 S. Black Horce Pike

P.O. Box 799
Willlamstown, NJ 08094

(856) 629-3111
Fax (856) 728-2245

November 10. 2011

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIAI\CE \ilITH REQUIREMENTS THAT
COULD HAVE A DIRECT A¡ID MATERIAL EF'F'DECT ON EACII

MAJOR PROGRAM AI\D ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A.133 AND

NE\M JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR 04.04

The Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Education
Town of Hammonton School District
County of Atlantic, New Jersey

Compliance

'We have audited the compliance of the Board of Education of the Town of Hammonton School
District, in the County of Atlantic, State ofNew Jersey, with the types of compliance requirements described
in the U.S. Offrce of Mønagement ønd Budget (OMB) Círculør A-133 Complíønce Supplemenf and the
New Jersey State Aid/Grønt Compliance Supplementthat are applicable to each of its major federal and
state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. The Town of Hammonton Board of Education's
major federal and state programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal and state progftrms is the
responsibility of the Town of Hammonton Board of Education's management. Our responsibilþ is to express
an opinion on the Town of Hammonton Board of Education's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained în Government
Audítíng Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the audit requirements as
prescribed by the Division of Finance and Regulatory Compliance, Department of Education, State of New
Jersey; OMB Circular A-133 Audìß of States, Locøl Governmenß ønd Non-Proftt Organízatìozsr' and New
Jersey OMB's Circular 04-04, Síngle Audìt Polìcyþr Recípients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State
Aid. Those standards, OMB Circular A-133 and New Jersey OMB's Circular 04-04, require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal or state
program occured. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Town of Hammonton
Board of Education's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Town of Hammonton Board of Education's
compliance with those requirements.

LLL



In our opinion, the Board of Education of the Town of Hammonton School District, in the County
of Atlantic, State of New Jersey, complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal and state programs for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2011.

Internal Control Over Compliapce

Management of the Board of Education of the Town of Hammonton School District is responsible
for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal and state programs. In planning and performing our
audit, we considered the Town of Hammonton Board of Education's internal control over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal or state progftün to determine the
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and NJ Circular 04-04, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Hammonton Board of Education's internal
control over compliance.

A deJiciency in internal control over compliance exísts when the design or operation of a control
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent or detect and correct noncompliance with a fype of compliarice requirement of a federal or state
program on a timely basis. A material wealmess in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance; such that there is a reasonable possibility
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program will not be
prevented or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of the internal confrol over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identiff all deficiencies in intemal control over
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. 'We did not identify
any deficiency in internal control over compliance that we consider to be a material weakness, as defined
above.

This report is intended for the information and use of the audit committee, management, the Town
of Hammonton Board of F.ducation, the New Jersey State Department of Education, and other federal and
state awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not
limited.

Respectfu lly submitted,

NIGHTLINGER, COLAVITA &-VOLPA, PA

%øzØ
Raymond Colavita, CPA
Licensed Public School Accountant
No.915

A Professio nal Ass ociatio n

Ltz
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Federal Grantor/Pass-Through
Grantor/Prooram Ttleffi

General Fund:

Êducalion Jobs Fund
Medical Ass¡stance Program
Medical Ass¡stance Prooram

Total General Fund

U.S. Depaf.tmênt of Agdculturê
Passed-thÞugh State Department
of Educat¡on:

Enterprise Fund:

Food D¡st¡ibution Program
Food Distr¡but¡on Program
Nâtional School Lunch Program
Nat¡onal School Lunch Program
School Snack Program
School Snack Program
School BßaKast Program
School BreaKast Program

Total Enterprise Fund

US. DepaÉment of Education
Passed-through State Dêpartment
of Education:

Spec¡al Revenue Fund:

No Ch¡ld Leff Behind (N.C.L.B.)
T¡tle I

Titlè l, Carryover
ARRA-Ttle ¡. PartA
Title I, School lmpmvementAct, Carryover
ARRA - T¡tle I, School lmprovement Act
Title ll. PartA
Title ll, Part A, Carryovèr
Tiüe ll. Part D
Title ll, Part D, Carryover
ïtle lll, English Lang Enhancement
ïtle lll, Eng Lang Enhance, Carryover
Title lV, Carnover
TitleV, Carryovèr
IDEA Part B, Basic Regular
IDEA Part B, Basic Reg, Camrover
ARRA.IDEA PâTt B. Basic
IDEA Pârt B, Preschool
IDEA Part B, Preschool, Camrover
ARRA - IDEA Part B. Preschool

Carl D. Perkins, Secondary
Carl D. Perkins, Seændary

Total Spec¡al Revenue Fund

ïotal Federal F¡nanc¡al Assistânæ

pfior years,
Balances/

Federat crant or state prosram or carryover/ ,fgiåi,"åiCFDA Proiect Aì¡tard Granr g:lqlg9 Wäd,ã"ãó Cash Budsetary 'iancellø
Number Number Amount Period 6dôiìõ 'Anöúf ' nece¡vø eiü:-ñ¿-ñ'rii" Enäumbrances

¡¡
F
l¡,

84.4104 ARRA l1 441,411 09nc,t10_o9t3u12s3.778 N/A 55,538 07/01/1G06/30/1193.778 N/A 50,246 07101/0906/30/10

OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

10.5s0 N/A
10.550 N/A
10.555 N/A
10.555 N/A
10.555 N/A
10.555 N/A
10.553 N/A
10.553 N/A

of Federal Awards

$64,930 ütO'U10{,8ßOt11
79,493 07/01/0+06/30/10

480,616 07t01t1ùo6t30t11
419,092 07/01/0$.06/30/10

926 07nU10-O6t3U't1
2,430 07/01/09-06/30/10

87,962 A7ß1t1ùO6ßOt11
78,877 07t01t09.o,8ßOt't0

84.010 NCL&1960-11
84.010 NCL&196ù10
84.389 ARRA-I96G.10
84.010 NCL&1960-10
84.389 ARRA-196G10
84.367 NCLB-19ô&11
84.367 NCLB-196()-10
84.318 NCLB-196G11
84.318 NCLB-196G10

84.3654 NCLB-1960-11
84.3654 NCLB-1960-10
84.186 NCLB-1960-10

84.2984 NCL&196S09
u.o27A FT-196&11
u.o27A' FT-196G10
84.3914 ARRA"196Gr0
u.173 FT-1960-11
u.173 FT-1960-10

84.392A ARRA"196Gr0
84.048 PERK-196G11
84.048 PERK-'|96G10

(r0,285)

(10,285) __________-_:_ 106.214 (119,205)

64,572 (72,570\
31,357 (46,635)
10.285

$2,632

(26,277)

(65)

(5,810)

658,665 09tO1t'tO48t3.U11
602,832 09/0l/09-08ß1/10
189,307 09/01/0948/31/11
20,319 09/01/09{8Æt/10
8.285 09/01/0948ßt/11

95,918 09t0,1fi048Æí11
92,222 09/01/0908/31/10
1.7U 09Æ1/10{8/31/11
6,006 09/01/09-08/31/10

54,381 09/01/10-08/31/11
42,616 09/01r'09-08ß1/10
11.873 09Æ1/09-08/31/10
4.675 0901/07{8/31/08

644.550 09/01/1G08/31/11
631,143 09/01/09-08/31/10
758,169 09/01/09-08/31/11
22,924 09/01/10-08/31/11
21,705 09/01/09-08/31/10
27,334 09/01/09-08/31/11
51,884 07/01fG.06/30/11
49,039 07/01/09-06t30/10

2,632
(2,832\

(29.520) ____________:_ 626,545 (63Ét.990) ___j_ 3.076 (40.041)

64,930 (64,486)

447,81A (¡180,616)
26,277

924 (926)
65

80,719 (87,962)
5810

Dèfered (Accounts Dueto
Revênue Rêceivable) Grantorat6ß0t11 6f30/11 6t30ñ1

(7,998)
(15,2781

Exh¡blt K-3
Schedule A

G4r"a5ö O ,305"043 Q.o1r.eA (5.868) ,r, 656.141) 63,
(882,161) - 3,037.802 (2.766.017\ (5.868) 3.375 (620.258) 639

The Aconpaying Notes to Sct¡eduls ofAs¡rds ud Finucial AssÈa¡æ øe u inægnl pat ofúris sclredule.

(236,938)
(19,140)
(24,670\

(36,r7ô)

(4,918)

(18,663)
(8,735)

621

(261,189)
(206,069)

(6,905)
ß,75n

(15,8r7)

--:- 

(23,2761

269,263 (491,813)
331,942 (111,507)
93,815 (89,475)
29,673 (5,446)

453 (¡153)

57,666 (55,212')
36,752 (2,198\

585 (286)
5,932 (1,515) (49)

14,843 (25,531)
2O,47O (2,82n
8,804 (4,556) (69)

(621)
395,572 (564,255)
344,087 (126,290)
591,406 (402,832)
16,046 (22,924\
12,673 - (5,129)
19,560 (19,818)
39,684 (51,884)
15.417

(32,7981

Q,243\

(222,æ0t
(16,s03)
(14,800)

(4¿13)

(31,546)
(1,622)

299
(550)

(10,688)
(1,020)
(4,556)

(168,683)
(¡l{},392)
(17t49s)

(6'878)
- ô39

(4,015)
(12,2O0\



State Grantor/Prooram Tifl e

Staúe Depârtmant of Educâtion

General Fund:
Equalization A¡d
Spec¡al Education Aid
Special Education Efraordinary Aid
Special Education Extrâordinary A¡d
Nonpublic Transpo¡lation Aid
Nonpublic Transportdion Aid
TPAF Wage Freeze A¡location
On-BehaF TPAF Non-Contrib. lnsurance
On-Behaf TPAF Pension Contributions

Post Ret¡rement Med¡cal
Reimbursed TPAF

Social Security Contributions
Reimbursed TPAF

Social Securily Contributions

Total General Fund

Special Revenue Fund:
Preschool Education Aid
N.J. Nonpubl¡c A¡d:

TextbookA¡d
TextbookA¡d
Nursing Aid
Auxillary Services:

Compènsatory Education
Compensatory Education
Transportation
TransDoftat¡on
Home lnslruction
Home Instruction
English as a Second LânguâEe

Handicapped Services:
Examinât¡on & Classification
Examination & Classificat¡on
Coneclive Speech
Conective Speech
Supplemental lnstruct¡on
Supplemental lnstrucl¡on

Total Special Revenue Fund

Stâte Department of Education
Debt Service Fund

State Depertrnent of AEriculturc
Enterprise Fund:

State BreaKast Program
Slate School Lunch Prograni
Stete School Lunch Program

Total State Financiâl Assistance

Grant or Slâte
Project Number

1 1-495-034-5120-078
I 1-495-03+s120-089
1 1-100-03¿l-5120-473
10-100-03+5120473
1149*034-5120-044
1 G495-034-51 20-0¿14
I l-495-034-5095-002
1 1-495-034-5095-006

I 1-49&034-509S001

't 149S034-509$002

1 0-495-03&5095-002

ts
FÞ

Pfogram or
Award

Amount

Schedule of
TOWN OF HAIIIMONTON SCHOOL DISTR¡CÎ

$10,013,4s6
1,263,188

101,974
129,363

5,220
5,356
3,932

58,330

1,238,927

1,431,1'12

1,476,105

Grânt
Period

of State Financial Ass¡siance

07to1t10-o6t30t11
07t01t10-06t30t11
07/01/10-06/30/1 1
07/01/09-06/30/10 ($129,363)
07t01t10-06t30t11
07l0't/09-06/30/10 (5,356)
07l01l1ù06t30t11
07to1t10-06t30t11

07to1t10-06t30t11

07to1t10-o6t30t11

07/01/09-06/30/10 (t2,826\

g?rryover{ åliiiif35 Balance at June 30' 2o1r 
------¡eueñdãüG-Balance (Walkover) Cash . _Budgetåry _ cencelled _(Accgunts Defeffed Dueto Budgetary --iäaf

6/30/10 
.Amount- 

Recejyg!.__Elp9tñdlgräs_ enõum¡ránões iãcevã'Élel nãöõ cranìõ, R-äeïäËtä expeñonurcs

1 1-495-03+5120-086

1 1-100-034-512G064
10-10ù03+5120-064
1 1-100-034-5120-070

1 1-1 0È03+51 20-067
1 0-1 0ù034-51 20-067
1 l-10G034-5120-068
1$100-034-512G068
1 l-100-034-5't20-067
1 &1 00-034-5't 20-067
I lt 00-03+51 20-067

1 tl00-034-5120-066
1 G1 00-034-5120-066
I 1-1 00-034-5't20-066
1 Gl 00-034-51 20-066
1 110È034-5120-066
1010G034-5120-066

480,320

42,403
55,140
50,243

166,617
174,665
25,980
34,462

714
435
768

66,979
49,196
26,599
48,422
31,267
29.787

07101110-06t30t11

07to1t10-06t30t11
07t01t09-oBt30t10
07to1t10-06t30t11

07lo1l10-o6t30t11
07/01/0$.06/30/1 0
07to1t10-o6t30t11
07/01/09-06/30/1 0
07to1t'to-06t30t11
07/01/09-06/30/t 0
a7ro1l10-06ß0t11

07to1t10-o6t30t'11
07to1to9-06t30t10
07to1t10-06t30t11
07/01/09-06/30/1 0
07lo1t10-o6ß0t11
0710't/09-06/30/1 0

10,013,456
1,263,188

129,363

5,356

58,330

1,238,927

1,361,1s9

72,826

Balances/
Years'

(10,013,456)
(1,26s.r 88)

(101.974\

(5,220\

(3,932)
(58,330)

(1,238,s27'

fl,431,112\

11-495-03+5120-017

'tù100-010-3360-021
11-100.01G.336&023
1 0-1 00-01 0-3360-023

1,478

6,717

3

(435)

755

19,718

17

Exh¡bit K-4
Schedule B

295,696 07101/10-06/30/1 1

480,320

42,403

50,243

166,617

25,980

0
435
768

66,979

26,599

31,267

(101,e741

(5,2201

(3,9s2)

{69,953)

5,864 07/01/09-06/30n0 (fl| 417
15,350 O7l01l10-O6ls0t11 13,581 (15,350) (1,769) 15,350
20p79 OTtO'1t09-06/30/10 (1,279) 1,279

(340,s10)

(41,1s2t

(50,243\

(160,756)

(25,979)

(7141

r/68)

(48,s67)

(24,2521

(2e,8781

(1.696)015.277(15.350\0(1.769)00015.3s0

_l$1_g9pgqL_________9_ _Ëg1E;!_99___ÍqJ_59¡13I _____Gq.6!gt __Í!! 9€all9q8!_q_ _28ø___1_J-220_ _lþtsoÆ_

The Acæmpmying Notes to Schedulð of Awrds æd Financial Assistüce æ ð integral put of this rchedule.

.t39,810

(1,4781

(8,7171

(3)
(7141

(75s)

(1e,718)

(17\

921,892 10,013,456
116,296 1,263,188

101,974

s,220

3,932
58,330

1,238,927

1,431,112

295,696 _(295,696)

48,032 340,510

1,211 41,192

0 50,243

5,861 160,756

1 25,979

714

768

18,012 48,967

2,347 24,252

1,389 29.878

295,696



Town of Hammonton School District
Notes to the Schedules of f inancial Assistance
June 30,2011

NOTE 1. GENERAL

The accompanyrng schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance
include federal and state award activity of the Board of Education, Town of Hammonton School
District. The Board of Education is defined in Note 1(A) to the Board's basic financial
statements. All federal and state awards received directly from federal and state agencies, as
well as federal awards and state financial assistance passed through other government agencies is
included on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance.

NOTE 2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanlng schedules of expenditures of awards and financial assistance are presented on
the budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of programs recorded in the food service
fund, which are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are
described in Note 1 to the Board's basic financial statements.

NOTE 3. RELATIONSHIP TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAP
basis. Budgetary comparison statements or schedules @SI) are presented for the ge,neral fund
and special revenue fund to demonstrate finance-related legal compliance in which certain
revenue is permitted by law or grant agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas for
GAAP reporting, revenue is not recognized until the subsequent year or when expenditures have
been made.

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual basis with
the exception of the revenue recognition of the last state aid payment in the current budget year,
which is mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2. For GAAP purposes that payment is not
recogmzed until the subsequent budget year due to the state deferral and recording of the last
state aid payment in the subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in the
accompanþg schedules on the gr:arfi accounting budgetary basis which recognizes
encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis
does not. The special revenue fund also recognizes the last state aid payment in the current
budget year, consistent with N.J.S.A. l8A:22-4.2.

The net adjustment to reconcile from budgetary basis to GAAP basis is $191,250 for the gøreral
fund and $(14,851) for the special revenue fund. See the following schedules and Note 1@)9 for
a reconciliation of the budgetarybasis to the modified accrual basis of accounting for the general
and special revenue funds. There are no differences in the reporting of the food service or debt
service funds. Awards and financial assistance revenues are reported in the Board's basic
financial statements on a GAAP basis as follows:

1L5



Town of Hammonton School DistrÍct
Notes to the Schedules of X'inancial Assistance
June 30,2011

NOTE 3. RELATIONSHIP TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

General Special
Fund Revenue Fund Total

State Assistance:
Actual amounts (budgetary)
"revenues" from the Schedule of
Expenditures of State Financial
Assistance $14,116,139 723,259 14,839,398

Difference - budget to "GA AP"
Grant accounting budgetary

basis differs from GAAP in that
encumbrances are recognized as

expendifures, and the related
revenue is recognized.

The last state aid payment is
recognized as revenue for
budgetary purposes, and differs
from GAAP which does not
recognize this revenue until the
subsequent year when the State
recognizes the related expense
(GASB 33).

Total State revenue as reported
on the statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in
fund balances

191,250 (1,501) 189,749

$14,307,389 721,758 15,029,147

General Frurd
Special Revenue Fund
Debt Service Fund
Food Service Fund

Total Awards and
Financial Assistance

Federal

$ 119,205

sl,999,472

633,990

State

14,307,389
721,758
295,696

15,350

14,426,594
2,721,230

295,696
649,340

s23s2.667 ßs4oJ% ß. ßffi
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Town of Hammonton School District
Notes to the Schedules of tr'inancial Assistance
June 30r 2011

General Special
Fund Revenue Fund Total

Federal AssÍstance:
Actual amounts (budgetary)
"revenues" from the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards

Difference - budget to "GAAP"
Grant accounting budgetary

basis differs from GAAP in that
encumbrances are recognized as
expenditures, and the related
revenue is recognized.

Total Federal revenue as reported
on the statement of revenue,
expenditures, and changes in fund
balances

$119,205 2,012,922 2,132,027

(13,350) (13,350)

$119,205 1,999,472 2,119,677

NOTE 4. RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related
federal and state financial reports.

NOTE 5. OTHER

Revenues and expenditures reported under the Food Distribution Program represent current year
value received and current year distributions, respectively. The amounts reported as fplf
Pension Contributions represents the amount paid by the State on behalf of the district for the
year ended June 30, 2011. TPAF Social Security Contributions represents the amount
reimbursed by the State for the employer's share of social security contributions for TPAF
members for the year ended June 30, 2011.

NOTE 6. SCHOOLWIDE PROGRAM FLINDS

Schoolwide programs are not separate Federal programs as defined in OMB Circular A-133;
amounts used in schoolwide programs are included in the total expenditures of the progrÍlm
conhibuting the funds in the Schedule of Expenditure of Federal Awards. The district ãoes not
operate any schoolwide programs.

LL7



['inancial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:

1) Material weakness (es) identified?

2) Significant deficiencies identified?

Noncompliance material to basic
financial statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

1) Material weakness (es) identified?

2) Significant deficiencies identified?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with section .510(a) of
Circular A-133?

CF'DA Number(s)

EXHIBIT K-6

Unqualified Opinion

yes X no

none
yes X reported

yes Xno

yes X no

none
yes X reported

Unqualified Opinion

yes X no

Name of f,'eder¿l Program or Cluster
Title I
IDEA

National School Lunch
National School Breakfast Program

ARRA Title I
ARRA IDEA

ARRA IDEA Preschool
IDEA Preschool

TOWI\ O[' HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCIIEDULE OF'F'INDINGS AI\D QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE F'ISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2011

Section I - Summarv of AudÍtorrs Results

84.010
84.027
10.555
84.5s3
84.389
84.39t
84392
84.t73

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $ 300.000.00
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

118

X yes no



EXHIBIT K-6

TO\ü¡[ OF' THMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OX'FINDINGS A¡tD QUESTTONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JU¡I-E 30, 2011
(continued)

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results (continued)

State Awards

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $ 415"596

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Internal control over major programs:

X yes no

1) Material weakness (es) identified?

2) Significant deficiencies identified that
are not considered to be material
weaknesses?

yes X no

yes X no

yes X no

GMIS Number(s) Name of State Program

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: Unqualified Opinion

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to
be reported in accordance with NJOMB
Circular Letter 04-04

Identification of major programs:

rr-495-034-5120-078
tt-495-034-s09s-002
rr-495-034-s095-002
tt-49s-034-5 120-089

Equalization Aid
TPAF'Wage Freeze Allocation
Reimbursement TPAF Social Security
Special Education Categorical Aid

ttg



EXHIBIT K-6

TO\il¡I OF' HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FIT\DINGS AI\D QUESTTONED COSTS

x'oR THE FTSCAL YEAR EI\DED JUNE 30,2011
(continued)

Section II - Financial Statement ['indings

Findine: NONE

Criteria or qpecific requirement:

Condition:

Context:

Effect:

Cause:

Recommendation:

Managementrs resDonse:

L20



EXHIBIT K.6

TOWN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDUI"E OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIOI\"ED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUI\¡-E 30,2011
(continued)

Section III - Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance
Findings and Questioned Costs

X'EDERAL A\MARDS

Findine: NONE

Information on the federal program:

Criteria or specific requirement:

Condition:

Questioned Costs: None

Context:

Effect:

Cause:

Recommendation:

Managementf s response:

tzt



EXHIBIT K-6

TOWN OF' HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCI{EDULE OX',X'TNDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2011
(continued)

Section III - Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance
Findings and Questioned Costs

STATE F'INANCIAL ASSISTANCE

f indine: NONE

Program

Criteria or specific requirement:

Condition:

Questioned Costs: None

Conúext:

Effect:

Cause:

Recommendation:

Managementts response:

L22



EXHIBIT K-7

TO\ilN OF HAMMONTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OX'PRIOR AUDIT X'INDINGS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2011

This section identifies the status of prior - year findings related to the basic financial statements and Federal
and State awards that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 6.12 Govemment Auditing
Standards, U.S. OMB Circular A-133 (Section .315 (a) (b) and New Jersey OMB's Circular 04-04.

STATUS OF'PRIOR - YEAR F'INDINGS

Fìnanciøl Statement Findínss :

None

L23


